

# AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

#### **AND**

# THE FACULTY ASSOCIATION OF RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Effective July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2028

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

<b>ARTICLE</b>	<u>DESCRIPTION</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
ARTICLE 1	RECOGNITION, NEGOTIATIONS, DURATION, AND ONBOARDING	6
1.1	Agreement (Preamble)	6
1.2	Recognition	6
1.3	Duration	6
1.4	Unit Member Orientations and Onboarding	7
ARTICLE 2	EFFECT OF AGREEMENT	8
2.1	Effect of Agreement	8
2.2	Non-Grievability	9
ARTICLE 3	SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS	10
3.1	Separability and Savings	10
ARTICLE 4	LEAVES	11
4.1	Bereavement Leave	11
4.2	Judicial Leave	12
4.3	Personal Necessity Leave	13
4.4	Professional Conference Leave/In-Service Training	13
4.5	Industrial Accident or Illness Leave	13
4.6	Sick Leave	14
4.7	Extended Sick Leave	16
4.8	Quarantine Leave	18
4.9	Excused Absence With Pay	18
4.10	Personal Leave Without Pay	18
4.11	Personal Absence Without Pay	18
4.12	General Leave Policies	18
4.13	Sabbatical Leave	19
4.14	Retraining Leave	23 24
4.15	Banking Leave Program Association Leave	2 <del>4</del> 26
4.16 4.17		26 27
4.17	Parental Bonding Leave Act (EMLA) and the California	
4.18	The Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and the California Family Rights Act (CFRA)	27
ARTICLE 5	HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS	29
5.1	Eligibility	29
5.2	Benefits	29
5.3	District Joint Benefits Committee	31
5.4	Retiree Coverage	31
5.5	Surviving Dependents	32
5.6	Social Security Alternative	32
5.7	Part-time Unit Member Health Insurance Reimbursement	33
	Program	
ARTICLE 6	INSTRUCTIONAL HOURS, DUTIES AND WORKLOAD	36
6.1	Workload	36
6.2	Part-time Unit Member Employment Preference Rights	44
6.3	Other Full-Time Unit Members Duties	46
6.4	Multiple Site Assignments	49
6.5	Flexible Calendar	50

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

<b>ARTICLE</b>	<u>DESCRIPTION</u>	<b>PAGE</b>
6.6 Summer Session and Intersession (See Section 7.2 Summer		51
6.7	School Salary Schedule)	50
6.7	Parking	52 52
6.8	Coaching Assignments	52
6.9	Coaching Academic (Non-Athletic) Teams (e.g., Forensics, Model United Nations)	53
6.10	Instruction in Languages Other than English	53
6.11	Reduced Workload Program	54
6.12	Incentive For Early Notice of Retirement or Resignation	55
6.13	Dual Enrollment	56
6.14	Inmate Education	60
ARTICLE 7	SALARIES	64
7.1	Salary Schedules – Contract Year	64
7.2	Beyond Contract Assignments for College Credit Instructors	72
7.3	Salary Schedules	72
7.4	Distance Education Training – Compensation	73
7.5	Other Placement	74
7.6	Travel Allowance	74
7.7	Repayment of Overpayment	74
ARTICLE 8	EVALUATION	76
8.1	Purpose of Evaluation	76
8.2	Definitions	76
8.3	Evaluation Components/Documents	77
8.4	Evaluation of Probationary Unit Members	84
8.5	Evaluation of Tenured Unit Members: Instructional and Non- Instructional Assignments	89
8.6	Evaluation of Temporary Unit Members	93
8.7	Evaluation of Non-Contract/Part-time Unit Members	93
8.8	Additional Evaluations	96
8.9	Grievance of the Evaluation Process	96
ARTICLE 9	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	98
9.1	Definitions	98
9.2	Time Limits	99
9.3	Other Provisions	99
9.4	Procedural Steps	100
ARTICLE 10	FACULTY SERVICE AREAS	103
10.1	Faculty Service Areas	103
10.2	Procedure to Follow for FSA Designation	103
10.3	Disputes	103
10.4	Changes to Faculty Service Areas	104
ARTICLE 11	TRANSFER	105
11.1	Definitions	105
11.2	Requests for Voluntary Transfers	105
11.3	Administrative Transfer	106
ARTICLE 12	UNIT MEMBER RIGHTS	107
12.1	Investigations, Due Process and Discipline	107
12.2	Academic Freedom	110
12.3	Intellectual Property Rights	111

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>ARTICLE</u>	<u>DESCRIPTION</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
12.4	Personnel Files	112
12.5	Privacy	113
12.6	Protection of the Unit Member at Work	114
12.7	Professor Emeritus Status	116
ARTICLE 13	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	119

APPE	<u>NDICES</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
A	STIPULATED UNIT RECOGNITION AGREEMENT	120
В	LIST OF BOARD POLICIES	121
С	2025-2026 CREDIT INSTRUCTIONAL CALENDAR 2026-2027 CREDIT INSTRUCTIONAL CALENDAR 2027-2028 CREDIT INSTRUCTIONAL CALENDAR	122 123 124
D	2025-2026 NON-CREDIT INSTRUCITONAL CALENDAR	125
E	2025-2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE – 175 DAY 2026-2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE – 175 DAY 2027-2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE – 175 DAY	126 128 130
F	2025-2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE – 192 DAY 2026-2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE – 192 DAY 2027-2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE – 192 DAY	132 134 136
G	2025-2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE – 225 DAY 2026-2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE – 225 DAY 2027-2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE – 225 DAY	138 140 142
Н	2025-2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE A 2026-2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE A 2027-2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE A	144 145 146
I	2025-2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT BEYOND CONTRACT/OVERLOAD SALARY SCHEDULE B 2026-2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT BEYOND CONTRACT/OVERLOAD SALARY SCHEDULE B 2027-2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT BEYOND CONTRACT/OVERLOAD SALARY SCHEDULE B	147 148 149
J	2025-2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT NON-CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE C 2026-2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT NON-CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE C 2027-2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT NON-CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE C	150 151 152
J-2	2025-2026 FARSCCD PART-TIME SALARY SCHEDULE D 2026-2027 FARSCCD PART-TIME SALARY SCHEDULE D 2027-2028 FARSCCD PART-TIME SALARY SCHEDULE D	153 154 155
K-1	RSCCD DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: DEPARTMENT CHAIRS	155
K-2	DEPARTMENT CHAIR LHE FORMULA	159
K-3	DEPARTMENT CHAIR X-FACTOR AND FORMULA LHE IMPLEMENTATION	161
K-4	NON-INSTRUCTIONAL DEPARTMENT CHAIR ASSIGNMENTS SAC/SCC	162
L	FARSCCD STATEMENT OF GRIEVANCE FORM	164
M	INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS/COUNSELORS	168
N	CRITERIA EXTENSIVE PREPARATION LABORATORY CLASSES	169
O	DISTANCE EDUCATION UNIT MEMBER EVALUATION PACKET NON-CONTRACT (PART-TIME) UNIT MEMBER EVALUATION PACKET CONTRACT (PROBATIONARY) TENURE REVIEW PACKET TENURED UNIT MEMBER EVALUATION PACKET	171 176 182 195

# ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION, NEGOTIATIONS, DURATION, AND ONBOARDING

#### 1.1 **AGREEMENT** (Preamble)

The following Agreement between the District and the Association is recorded in written form to meet the requirements of Government Code 3540, et. Seq. and, more specifically, wages, hours or employment, and other terms and conditions of employment as defined therein in exchange for services.

#### 1.2 **RECOGNITION**

#### 1.2.1 Exclusive Representative

The Governing Board of the Rancho Santiago Community College District, hereinafter referred to as the "District," hereby recognized the Faculty Association of Rancho Santiago Community College District, hereinafter referred to as the "Association," as the sole and exclusive representative of those enumerated in the Stipulated Agreement. (See Appendix A, Stipulated Unit Recognition Agreement).

#### 1.2.2 Negotiations Restrictions

- A. The District agrees not to negotiate with any other organization in matters upon which the Association is the exclusive representative, and, agrees not to negotiate with any member of the unit individually during the duration of this Agreement on matters subject to negotiations.
- B. The Association recognizes the Board of Trustees as the duly elected representative of the people for the Rancho Santiago Community College District and agrees to negotiate only with the representative officially designated by the Board to act on behalf of the District. The Association further agrees that neither it nor any of its members or agents will attempt to negotiate privately or individually with the Board, any Board member, administrator, or other person or persons not officially designated by the Board of Trustees as the representative of the District.

#### 1.3 **DURATION**

The provisions of this Agreement and its subsequent amendments shall become effective on July 1, 2025, and remain in effect until and through June 30, 2028.

For the life of the agreement, each party may reopen one article, excluding Article 7. The parties may open on additional articles upon mutual agreement.

The Association agrees to submit its initial proposal for the successor agreement no earlier than September 1 of last year of this contract, and the District agrees to present its initial proposal not later than thirty (30) calendar days following the submission of the Association's proposal.

#### 1.4 <u>Unit Member Orientations and Onboarding</u>

- 1.4.1 The District will provide to the Association at least ten (10) calendars days advance notice of the New Faculty Orientation. FARSCCD designated leadership will be given an opportunity to speak for a minimum of 20 minutes at the Orientation.
- 1.4.2 The District will include the FARSCCD membership application form and member benefits pamphlet in any employee orientation or onboarding packet of District materials provided to any newly hired unit members. FARSCCD shall provide the copies of the FARSCCD membership materials to the District for distribution.

The District will collect the membership application form and notify the Association President or Designee that the form(s) is available for pickup.

F	A	$\mathbf{T}$	$\alpha$	~	$\sim$		
Н.	/\	ĸ	•			1	

Kalvin Reds

Kelvin Leeds, Lead Negotiator FARSCCD

District

Kristin Olson (Sep 26, 2025 13:41:29 PDT)

Kristin Olson Vice Chancellor, Human Resources

# ARTICLE 2 EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

#### 2.1 **EFFECT OF AGREEMENT**

- 2.1.1 A. The following District Board policies, as they specifically relate to the association, shall not be changed through June 30, 2025, except by mutual agreement between the Association and District: (See Appendix B, "List of Board Policies").
  - B. New Board policies which impact policies referenced in 2.1.1.A., shall not be initiated by the District through June 30, 2025, except by mutual agreement between the Association and the District.

#### 2.1.2 Administrative Rules and Regulations

- A. Written District Administrative Rules and Regulations in effect during 2013/14 with respect to those policies as referenced in 2.1.1.A., shall not be changed by the District through June 30, 2025, except by mutual agreement between the Association and the District.
- B. New District Administrative Rules and Regulations with respect to those policies as referenced in 2.1.1.A., shall not be implemented by the District through June 30, 2025, without prior consent of the Association.
- C. District procedures with respect to those matters specifically within the scope of representation as referenced above shall not be changed by the District, through June 30, 2025, without prior consultation with the Association.

#### 2.1.3 Other Provisions

- A. The District and the Association agree that in the event a concern arises between the parties, a conference session may be initiated by either party for the purpose of clarification. With respect to policies, rules and regulations, and procedures referred to above the Association and District may use past practices in an attempt to explain or clarify the provisions of the Agreement. This consultation does not preclude the utilization of the grievance procedure if applicable.
- B. The parties agree that the specific provisions contained in this Agreement shall prevail over Board policy, Administrative Rules and Regulations, and District practices and procedures to the extent permitted by State law.
- C. The Association recognizes and agrees that the District retains its rights to amend, modify, or rescind policies and practices referred to in this

Agreement in case of a Board declared emergency. An emergency is considered an Act of God or a natural disaster. Where an emergency is declared, the District shall immediately notify and consult with the Association. The Association agrees it will abide by such emergency decisions of the Board during the declared emergency.

- D. Nothing contained herein shall in any way be construed or interpreted to impose any limitation of any kind upon the District in regard to budgets, contracts or employment, or any other matters relating to employees covered under this contract in regard to compliance with the California Education Code.
- E. It is understood and agreed that the District is limited only by the expressed terms of this Agreement.

#### 2.2 **NON-GRIEVABILITY**

Section 2.1, Effect of Agreement, is not subject to the grievance procedure. Board policies and administrative rules and regulations referenced herein are subject to the grievance procedure to the extent that such policies, rules and regulations are governed by other sections of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 3 SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS

#### 3.1 **SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS**

If any article, section, subsection, sentence, or phrase of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any unit member or members is held invalid by operation of law or by a court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such article, section, subsection, sentence, or phrase shall be inoperative, but all other articles, sections, subsections, sentences, or phrases shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect.

#### ARTICLE 4 LEAVES

#### 4.1 **BEREAVEMENT LEAVE**

For purposes of this article, "immediate family" includes:

- The unit member's spouse or Domestic Partner,
- The following relations by blood, adoption, step, or foster for both the unit member and their spouse or Domestic Partner:
  - o child/children,
  - o parents,
  - o siblings,
  - o grandparent(s),
  - o grandchildren
- Any person living in the immediate household of the employee, excluding strictly landlord/tenant relationships.
- Additionally, unit members may designate one person per twelve (12) month period who is not listed above as an immediate family member upon the need to take a leave.

Unit members shall be granted, without loss of salary or other benefits, five (5) days of absence due to the death of the employee's spouse, parent, domestic partner, child, stepchild, and the children of the domestic partner of the employee.

- Except as noted above, unit members, upon notification to their supervisor, may be granted, without loss of salary or other benefits, leave of absence not to exceed three (3) regularly assigned working days for all other members of their immediate family.
- Should a unit member require additional bereavement leave beyond the three (3) days, unit members may use accumulated personal necessity leave. In the event the unit member does not have accumulated personal necessity leave, they may take up to two additional days of unpaid leave for purposes of bereavement.
- If out of state travel is required or travel exceeds two hundred (200) land miles one way from the District, unit members will be granted, without loss of salary or benefits, five (5) regularly assigned working days.
- Bereavement leave necessitated by the passing of an individual not included in the
  definition of immediate family may be withdrawn from the unit member's
  accumulated personal necessity leave. In the event the unit member does not have
  accumulated personal necessity leave, they may take unpaid leave for purposes of
  bereavement.

• Bereavement leave must be taken within six (6) months of the date of death; leave taken after that timeframe will not qualify as bereavement leave.

To qualify for bereavement leave, unit members must follow departmental timekeeping procedures as soon as possible and no later than the first day upon return to duty. If abuse of bereavement leave is reasonably suspected, the District may request documentation of the need to take the leave.

Unit members must notify their supervisor as soon as possible of the need to take bereavement leave. Notification should occur before the leave commences, unless the situation prevents prior notification.

#### 4.2 **JUDICIAL LEAVE**

- 4.2.1 Judicial Leave shall be granted when a unit member is summoned in the manner provided by law for jury duty, to serve as a witness in court (except when acting as a witness adverse to the District or litigating party in an action against the District), or to respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction.
- 4.2.2 Requests for judicial leave should be made by presenting in advance the official court summons to the unit members' immediate supervisor. The Dean or supervising administrator is responsible for arranging any necessary work coverage or substitute class instruction arrangements for unit members absent on judicial leave.
- 4.2.3 Judicial leaves granted under these provisions shall be without loss of salary or benefits. The unit member shall be required to transfer to the District any monies received from the court as jury duty pay or earned for serving as a witness with the exception of travel expenses such as mileage reimbursement or per diem reimbursement which shall be retained by the unit member.
- 4.2.4 A unit member called for jury duty shall not be encouraged in any way to seek postponement or exemption from such duty nor shall they be discriminated against in any way for not seeking such postponement or exemption. The unit member shall be entitled to paid leave necessary to fulfill their jury duty assignment.
- 4.2.5 Unit members are required to return to work during any day in which jury services or their court presence are not required. If released early from jury service or court proceedings after a partial day of service, a unit member shall be excused from work for the remainder of the day if the actual time of jury service or court proceedings, including reasonable allowance for travel or commute time, equals or exceeds fifty percent (50%) of the unit member's regularly scheduled work hours for that day.
- 4.2.6 The District may require verification of jury duty or witness time prior to, or subsequent to, providing compensation.

#### 4.3 PERSONAL NECESSITY LEAVE

4.3.1 A unit member may use a maximum of six (6) days leave of absence in any school year without loss of pay for personal necessity. Such leaves shall be deducted from the unit member's accumulated sick leave. An Employee Absence Card must be filed.

Personal necessity leave can be used for matters of compelling personal importance, including as a witness in an action adverse to the District, or family business which cannot be accomplished other than during the employee's regular assigned working hours, or deferred to a more convenient date or time to accommodate the regular work schedule.

- 4.3.2 Personal necessity leave may not be used for vacation or recreational use, or outside employment (present or prospective), or appearance in court as a litigant in an action adverse to the District.
- 4.3.3 The unit member will notify the appropriate administrator in advance of the need for personal necessity leave. Requests may be subject to verification.
- 4.3.4 In addition to Personal Necessity Leave, unit members shall be allowed to use up to six (6) days of sick leave per year to attend to the illness of employee's spouse, parent, domestic partner, child, and/or stepchild.

#### 4.4 PROFESSIONAL CONFERENCE LEAVE/IN-SERVICE TRAINING

Upon filing a conference request form, the Chancellor or his/her designee may grant to a unit member leave with pay (unless otherwise stipulated prior to attendance) for a professional conference or in-service training which will improve District operations or the ability of the unit member to more effectively perform his/her duties.

#### 4.5 INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT OR ILLNESS LEAVE

- 4.5.1 An industrial accident or illness is defined as one that arises out of the course and scope of the unit member's employment with the District. The accident or illness must be reported to the District in accordance with District regulations.
- 4.5.2 Unit members employed by the District under contract shall receive sixty (60) days' leave with pay in any one (1) fiscal year for an industrial accident or illness.
- 4.5.3 Industrial accident or illness leave shall commence on the first (1st) day of absence. Allowable leave shall not be accumulated from year to year. When an industrial accident or illness occurs at a time when the full sixty (60) days will overlap into the next fiscal year, the unit member shall be entitled to only that amount remaining for the same illness or injury at the end of the fiscal year in which the injury or illness occurred.

- 4.5.4 Payment for wages lost on any day shall not, when added to an award granted the employee under the worker's compensation laws of this state, exceed the normal wage for the day. Industrial accident leave will be reduced by one (1) day for each day of authorized absence regardless of a compensation award made under worker's compensation.
- 4.5.5 The industrial accident or illness leave of absence shall be used in lieu of entitlement acquired under Section 87786 of the State Education Code. When entitlement to industrial accident or illness leave has been exhausted, entitlement to other sick leave will then be used; but if a unit member is receiving worker's compensation, they shall be entitled to use only so much of their accumulated or available sick leave, accumulated compensation time, vacation, or other available leave, which, when added to the worker's compensation award, to provide for a full day's wage or salary.

#### 4.6 SICK LEAVE

- 4.6.1 Unit members employed on a full-time basis shall be entitled to twelve (12) days leave of absence for illness or injury with full pay annually. This entitlement shall be credited at the commencement of employment and thereafter at the start of each succeeding fiscal year (July 1) to full-time employees. Fractional assignments shall receive proportionate leave entitlement.
- 4.6.2 Unit members employed on a full-time basis for less than a full fiscal year are entitled to that proportion of the total days for leave of absence for illness or injury as the number of months they are employed.
- 4.6.3 Unit members employed less than full-time (for a fiscal year of service) shall be entitled to that proportion of the total days for leave of absence for illness or injury as the number of hours they are employed per week bears to a full-time assignment. When such unit members are employed for less than a full fiscal year of service, this and the preceding paragraph shall determine that proportion of leave of absence for illness or injury to which they are entitled.
- 4.6.4 Part-time unit members employed on an LHE basis shall earn leave of absence for illness or injury at the rate of one hour (1) per academic term (e.g. fall, spring, intersession, and summer) for each LHE worked in the academic term.
- 4.6.5 Pay for any day of such absence shall be the same as the pay which would have been received had the unit member been on a paid status during the day. Credit for leave of absence need not be accrued prior to taking such leave by the unit member and such leave of absence may be taken at any time during the year.
- 4.6.6 If the unit member does not take the full amount of leave allowed in any year under this section, the amount not taken shall be accumulated from year to year.

- 4.6.7 All sick leave absences shall be reported using the Employee Absence System. Unit members are responsible for reviewing and signing their own absence reports. The District reserves the right to require medical verification for illness or injury for any absence in excess of five (5) working days if abuse of leave is reasonably suspected.
- 4.6.8 Any sick leave taken must be covered by basic sick leave, regardless of when it was taken. Once basic sick leave is exhausted, then excess sick leave (e.g. previously accumulated overload and summer sick leave), if any available, will be used before using extended sick leave.
- 4.6.9 Unit members must be in active employment or on paid leave to earn or use sick leave. Unit members on extended illness leave are eligible to earn or use sick leave. Sick leave may be applied only on those days when the unit member is required to report for duty but cannot do so because of illness or injury. Unit members who become ill or are injured but are not required to report, such as those on leave or vacation, may not use sick leave credits.
- 4.6.10 When a unit member is separated prior to rendering a complete fiscal year of service, the sick leave entitlement for the partial year shall be equal to the annual entitlement times the number of months employed divided by the number of months in their annual contract.
- 4.6.11 Sick leave entitlement shall be reduced by one (1) day for each month a unit member is on personal leave without pay. Entitlement shall be granted for all other leaves.

#### 4.6.12 Absence Leave Reporting

- 4.6.12.1 Absence reporting for part-time unit members will be hour for hour.
- 4.6.12.2 A full-time unit member's workweek is to average 40 hours. A unit member work week in terms of absences will be viewed as 40 hours.
  - A. The maximum number of hours within a calendar day that can be deducted is eight (8) hours.
  - B. Partial day absences, meaning the unit member was absent for a portion of the day, will be counted as absent in increments of 30 minutes.
  - C. Absences for unit members who miss class "onground" but teach class "online," on that same day, will be calculated as a partial day absence only for the "on-ground" portion.

- D. Full-week absences the unit member has not reported to work any day in the full week will be considered absent for five duty days (calculated at the rate of 40 hours).
- E. Absence hours for overload/summer/intersession assignments will be reported in 30-minute increments.
- F. The chart below will be used to calculate full-time unit member absence hours:

Full Duty Days Missed	If Absent for a Portion of the Day. Partial Day absences will be calculated and deducted in 30-mlnute Increments.		
	1 minute to 30 mins	report	30 minutes
	31 mins to 1 hour	report	1 hour
This chart does not apply to	1 hr 1 min to 1 hr 30 mins	report	1 hour 30 mins
incidental late arrivals.	1 hr 31 mins to 2 hrs	report	2 hours
	2hrs 1 min to 2 hrs 30	report	2 hrs 30 mins
All full day absences will be	mins		
deducted at the rate of 8 hours.	2hrs 31 mins to 3 hrs	report	3 hours
	3hrs 1 min to 3 hrs 30	report	3 hrs 30 mins
All full week absences will be	mins		4.1
deducted as 5 days (a deduction of	3hrs 31 mins to 4 hrs	report	4 hours
40 hours).	4hrs 1 min to 4 hrs 30 mins	report	4 hrs 30 mins
	4hrs 31 mins to 5 hrs	report	5 hours
	5hrs 1 min to 5 hrs 30 mins	report	5 hrs 30 mins
	5hrs 31 mins to 6 hrs +	report	6 hours
	6hrs 1 mins to 6 hrs 30	report	6 hrs 30 mins
	mins		
	6hrs 31 mins to 7 hrs	report	7 hours
	7hrs 1 mins to 7 hrs 30 mins	report	7 hrs 30 mins
	7hrs 31 mins to 8 hrs +	report	8 hours

#### 4.7 **EXTENDED SICK LEAVE**

- 4.7.1 A unit member whose sick leave, including current, excess, and accrued, has been exhausted and that total of such sick leave used in a given fiscal year is less than one hundred (100) workdays, shall be compensated at fifty percent (50%) of their daily rate for the balance of one hundred (100) days.
- 4.7.2 A part-time unit member who has started or has been offered and confirmed a fall or spring semester assignment and whose sick leave, including current and accrued, has been exhausted, shall be compensated at fifty percent (50%) of their current

semester assignment pay for the remaining period of the absence or the end of the current semester assignment, whichever comes first.

4.7.3 In the event of a catastrophic illness, participating unit members who have exhausted all regular and extended sick leave may utilize a maximum of 100 days from the CATASTROPHIC ILLNESS BANK. The compensation shall be fifty percent (50%) of their daily rate. A unit member becomes a participant by contributing sick leave to the bank. (See Human Resources Office for procedures.) In cases of severe financial hardship, the District, by mutual agreement of the Chancellor and the FARSCCD President, may provide the benefits in this section concurrently with the benefits of 4.7.1.

#### 4.7.4 Definition of Catastrophic Illness or Injury

For purposes of this contract, "catastrophic illness or injury" is defined as a serious, debilitating physical or mental illness or injury, as certified by a licensed physician, that:

- 1. incapacitates the unit member so that the unit member is not able to report to work and prohibits the unit member from working a regular schedule for an extended period of time of not less than four (4) weeks; and
- 2. causes the unit member to exhaust all of the unit member's available regular sick leave, extended sick leave, and any other paid leave time.

Catastrophic illness or injury may include, for reference, but not be limited to, incapacitating diseases such as cancer or hospice, severe accidents, major surgery, and treatment for life threatening illnesses.

Because leave donations are strictly voluntary, award of catastrophic illness leave is subject to the availability of donated leave hours and is guaranteed to participating unit members unless the hours available in the catastrophic illness bank have been exhausted.

- 4.7.5 A unit member may be required to present a doctor's statement stating the need for extended absence to qualify for extended sick leave or catastrophic illness leave benefits.
- 4.7.6 Prior to returning to work, a unit member shall be required to present a doctor's statement stating the date the employee is able to return to work.
- 4.7.7 In consultation with the Association, a unit member may be required by the Chancellor/College President to be examined by a District approved physician or psychologist to determine fitness for return to duty.

#### 4.8 **QUARANTINE LEAVE**

Full-time unit members shall receive salaries in full for a period not to exceed fourteen (14) calendar days when quarantined by city or county health officers because of another's illness. Such quarantine must be verified by a physician or health officer.

Any additional quarantine period, or recommendation from a physician or health officer, beyond the fourteen (14) calendar days, shall require the unit member to use their accrued leaves.

The District requires unit members to provide a return-to-work certification or attendance at a fit-for-duty examination after quarantine from a public health official or health care provider.

#### 4.9 EXCUSED ABSENCE WITH PAY

Administrators are authorized to excuse a full-time unit member for an occasional absence up to a maximum of four (4) hours per semester for a change in assignment, or, for personal business of such a nature that it requires the presence for the member during their working day, and, such absence(s) is determined, in the sole discretion of management, in the best interests of the District. Hours are not cumulative from semester to semester.

#### 4.10 PERSONAL LEAVE WITHOUT PAY

Any full-time unit member is eligible to apply for a personal leave. Leaves may be granted for advanced professional training, travel, and maternity. No leave will be for less than one (1) semester, nor for more than one (1) year. Except in cases of emergency, the application for personal leave must be approved by the supervising administrator and submitted to the Human Resources Office for clearance at least ten (10) weeks prior to the start of the semester involved.

#### 4.11 PERSONAL ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

A request for personal absence without pay shall be filed through channels with the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and shall be recommended by the respective College President and shall require the approval, for up to five (5) days by the Chancellor, and for six (6) or more days by the Board of Trustees. The leave must conform to the criteria for Personal Necessity Leave (see Section 4.3). The Human Resources Office shall notify the requester of the action taken upon request. Requests must be received in ample time for all necessary action to be taken. An employee absence card must be filed.

#### 4.12 **GENERAL LEAVE POLICIES**

4.12.1 Periods of leaves of absence, paid or unpaid, shall not be considered a break in service of the unit member.

- 4.12.2 During all paid leaves of absence, whether industrial accident leave as provided in this section, sick leave, vacation, compensated time off, or other available leave provided by law, or the action of the Board, the District shall reduce the gross salary warrant due the unit member by the same amount as the amount of any worker's compensation check received by the unit member. The District shall issue the unit member appropriate warrants for any payment of wages or salary due over and above the worker's compensation benefit check and shall deduct normal retirement and other authorized contributions. Reduction of entitlement to leave shall be made only in accordance with this section.
- 4.12.3 When all available leaves of absence, paid or unpaid, have been exhausted and if the unit member is not medically able to assume the duties of their position, they shall, if not placed in another position, be placed on a reemployment list for a period of thirty-nine (39) months. When available during the thirty-nine (39) month period, they shall be employed in a vacant position in the class of their previous assignment over all other available candidates except for a reemployment list established because of lack of work or lack of funds, in which case they shall be listed in accordance with appropriate seniority regulations. A unit member who has been medically released for return to duty and who fails to accept an appropriate assignment to duty shall be dismissed. The District shall require certification by the attending physician that the unit member is medically able to return to and perform the duties of their position.

#### 4.13 **SABBATICAL LEAVE**

#### 4.13.1 Purpose of Sabbatical Leave

Sabbatical leaves may be awarded to qualified tenured members of the faculty for intellectual refreshment, normally to be obtained by study, research, travel, work experience, or other creative activity as delineated below:

#### A. Academic Study Leave

An academic study leave is one during which the unit member pursues a program of a minimum of eight (8) units each semester or the equivalent (432 hours) in an accredited institution of higher education.

#### B. <u>Independent Research Leave</u>

An independent research leave is one which must be related to the present or prospective service. The program must be at least equivalent in effort and content to the required units as pursued above. A complete plan for such study must be approved and filed with the original application for leave.

#### C. Travel Leave

A travel leave is one during which the unit member shall remain in travel status three and one-half  $(3\frac{1}{2})$  months for each semester of leave granted.

#### D. Professional Growth

A professional growth leave is one granted for any structured experience which would cause professional growth in the unit member's specialty or techniques of teaching.

#### E. Combination of Above

Types of sabbatical leaves may be combined. One (1) calendar month of travel is considered as equivalent to two (2) semester units when in combination. The sabbatical leave of absence shall have the ultimate objective of enhancing a unit member's service to the Rancho Santiago Community College District and increasing its distinction. The sabbatical leave of absence is not an earned right but is a privilege which may be granted by the Board of Trustees. It is expected, therefore, that applications shall be accompanied by a statement of a program which the applicant proposes to follow while on leave, and that, on return to regular duty, they shall submit a report on the result of the leave as a record of faculty growth and for retention in the District files.

#### 4.13.2 Sabbatical Leave: Service Eligibility

Full-time unit members with satisfactory performance may request sabbatical leave. The full-time service as a unit member in the Rancho Santiago Community College District must be at least six (6) consecutive years immediately preceding the sabbatical leave. A leave of absence, except a sabbatical leave, does not count as a break in continuity of service for purposes of sabbatical leave consideration.

#### 4.13.3 Sabbatical Leave: Length of Leave and Compensation

For the purpose of sabbatical leave, all 175-day employees shall be considered ten (10) month employees, eligible for a semester leave (5 calendar months) or a maximum of a school year leave (10 calendar months) at eighty percent (80%) contract salary. All 192-day employees shall be considered eleven (11) month employees, eligible for a semester leave (5 ½ calendar months) or a maximum of a school year leave (11 months) at eighty percent (80%) contract salary. All 225-day employees shall be considered twelve (12) month employees, eligible for a semester leave (6 calendar months) or a maximum of a school year leave (12 calendar months) at eighty percent (80%) contract salary. The school year leave may be taken in two separate terms provided that the leave of absence for both of the separate terms be commenced and completed within a three-year period. Any period of service intervening between the two separate terms shall comprise a part of the service required for a subsequent leave. An employee may choose to apply banked leave while on sabbatical to be eligible for one hundred percent (100%) contract salary. (See Section 4.15 for banked leave provisions.)

#### 4.13.4 Sabbatical Leave: Number of Leaves

The maximum number of sabbatical leaves granted in any one (1) year may be up to four percent (4%) of the full-time academic unit members. Exceptions shall be at the discretion of the District.

#### 4.13.5 Sabbatical Leave: Application for Leave

Application for a sabbatical leave must be filed with the Chancellor or their designate by December 15 for the following school year in conformance with the District approved application form. If there are remaining vacancies in the present academic year for a spring semester sabbatical leave, the employees may file application with the Chancellor or their designate by September 1. These spring sabbatical leaves of absence are to be within the 4% allowable. The Sabbatical leave Committee will screen applications and make suitable recommendations to the Chancellor. Should any application be denied for lack of a suitable plan, the applicant will be given an opportunity to improve their plan and resubmit the application within a period of two (2) weeks from the date of notification that the plan is not acceptable.

#### 4.13.6 Sabbatical Leave Agreement

As a condition of obtaining a sabbatical leave, the unit member must execute a written agreement specifying the terms and conditions of the sabbatical leave including the unit member's return to service for at least one year following a semester leave or two (2) years following a two (2) semester leave. The agreement shall stipulate that the unit member shall repay the District for all salary and fringe benefits received during the sabbatical if the post-sabbatical service is not met.

#### 4.13.7 Report on Sabbatical Leave

Each unit member returning from sabbatical leave must file with the sabbatical leave committee chair a written report on the District approved form no later than thirty (30) days after commencement of the semester following such leave. The purpose of the report to the committee is to demonstrate compliance with the approved sabbatical leave proposal and contract. The chair of the sabbatical leave committee shall then submit the report to the sabbatical leave committee for its consideration, and within a thirty (30) day period the committee shall by a majority vote indicate approval or disapproval. Reports, accompanied by committee recommendations, shall be presented to the Board of Trustees at a subsequent meeting. Unit members are expected to be present to supplement the written report. If action by the Board of Trustees does not indicate full compliance with the established terms and purposes of the approved sabbatical leave proposal, the Board may deem such leave to have been in whole or in part a leave of absence without pay and require said unit member and company to make financial restitution, in

whole or in part, to the District within ten (10) months. In no event shall the unit members be assessed more than the amount of pay received during the sabbatical period excluding pay for banked leave used during the time period. A unit member taking a sabbatical leave solely or partially for academic study shall, within thirty (30) days after commencement of the semester following such leave, provide the District with an official transcript of work. If, in the course of the sabbatical leave, the committee determines that the unit member is not carrying out the leave proposal in good faith, the unit member will be contacted and granted ten (10) days to respond to the evidence. If the committee deems the response unsatisfactory, it shall recommend to the Board of Trustees termination of the sabbatical leave. The Board may immediately terminate the sabbatical leave and one (1) order the unit member back to a regular district assignment or two (2) designate the remainder of the sabbatical leave a leave of absence without pay.

#### 4.13.8 Return to Service After Sabbatical Leave

At the expiration of the leave of absence of the unit member, they shall, unless otherwise agreed, be reinstated in the position held by them or in an equivalent position to that held at the time of the granting of the leave of absence.

#### 4.13.9 Salary Increase for Sabbatical Leave

Sabbatical leave shall count toward retirement and be considered as regular service to the District for purposes of advancement on the salary schedule. Unit members on sabbatical leave shall be permitted to accept full-time positions for pay only when such position provides an opportunity to upgrade knowledge or abilities in a manner not immediately available otherwise. The District shall adjust compensation for sabbatical leave downward such that the total compensation shall not exceed the amount the employee could earn on campus with a full teaching load, plus eight (8) hours' overload. This does not apply to scholarships, fellowships, and other such grants.

#### 4.13.10 Sabbatical Leave: Method of Payment

The compensation shall be paid to the unit member while on the leave of absence in the same manner as if the unit member were teaching in the District.

#### 4.13.11 Accident or Illness during Sabbatical Leave

Interruption of the program caused by serious illness or accident during a sabbatical leave, evidence of which is satisfactory to the District, shall not prejudice unit members regarding the fulfillment of the conditions on which leave was granted nor affect the amount of compensation to be paid to such unit members under the terms of such sabbatical leave. However, the Chancellor, or their designate, must be notified within thirty (30) days of such accident or illness.

#### 4.14 **RETRAINING LEAVE**

#### 4.14.1 Purpose of Leave

The purpose of the retraining leave is to provide tenured unit members the opportunity to prepare for a change in discipline. The need for such retraining will be determined by the District and may involve formal coursework, research, work experience, or other related activity approved by the District.

#### 4.14.2 Length of Leave and Compensation

The length of the retraining leave will be determined by the specific approved retraining plan. Unit members released from all or part of their normal assignment for the purpose of retraining shall earn pay and benefits as though they were working their normal assignment. The compensation shall be paid to the unit members while on leave in the same manner as if the unit members were teaching in the District.

#### 4.14.3 Application for Leave

Requests for retraining may be initiated by the unit member or the District. If a need for retraining exists, the appropriate administrator, in consultation with the unit member, will prepare a proposed retraining plan. The appropriate administrator will submit a recommended plan for consideration to the College President or their designee. Retraining plans are subject to the approval of the Chancellor and the Board of Trustees.

#### 4.14.4 Verification of Completion

Each unit member on an approved retraining plan must submit a verification of completion to the appropriate administrator. The verification of completion is subject to the approval of the appropriate College President or their designee. The verification may include, as appropriate, transcripts, verification of work experience, research reports, etc. to demonstrate compliance with the approved retraining plan. If the verification does not indicate full compliance with the approved plan, the leave may be deemed to have been wholly or in part a leave without pay requiring the unit members to make financial restitution in whole or in part to the District within ten (10) months. In no event shall the unit members be assessed more than the amount of pay received during the retraining leave period.

#### 4.14.5 Return to Service

At the expiration of the retraining leave the unit member shall be required to render service to the District for a period of time that is twice the length of time of the leave.

#### 4.14.6 Salary Increase

Retraining leave shall count toward retirement and be considered as a regular service to the District for purposes of advancement on the salary schedule. Approved unit for courses of study during the leave may be applied toward salary advancement per the established regulations governing salary changes.

#### 4.15 **BANKING LEAVE PROGRAM**

#### 4.15.1 General Provisions

- a. When a full-time unit member works beyond their regular contract or in a summer/intersession assignment, they can choose either to bank the extra LHE/hours or to be paid for them at the appropriate current beyond contract (Schedule B) or summer/intersession (Schedule A) salary rate. Continuing Education unit members may be granted banked leave on the basis of teaching hours per week.
- b. Banked leave will be an option available to the full-time unit members of the district in lieu of payment.
- c. A unit member may not accumulate more than thirty-six (36) LHE/hours of banked leave.
- d. Full-time contract unit members may request a leave of absence using available banked leave. A one semester of banked leave shall consist of fifteen (15) LHE at contract pay, plus up to six (6) LHE at beyond contract pay.
- e. Banked LHE/hours may be utilized to allow the unit member to fulfill a portion of their contractual obligation and may be used for professional or personal reasons.
- f. The accumulated banked LHE/hours and the resulting time off have no effect on fringe benefits.

#### 4.15.2 Banked Leave Program Guidelines

- a. A unit member cannot bank overload assignments during the same semester as when they are using banked leave, unless either of the two following scenarios apply:
  - (i) When a class is added or unfilled during the semester and there is no other way to fulfil the assignment.

- (ii) When the payment of the work is required as being paid at the beyond contract rate such as by a grant or by contract.
- b. The maximum duration of a full-time release will be one semester, unless the unit member has a medical condition or family situation that requires a leave of greater than one semester, or the unit member submits written notice to the district that they will retire at the end of the banked leave in which case a leave of two consecutive semesters may be granted.
- c. Banked leave shall count toward retirement and be considered as regular service to the District for purposes of advancement on the salary schedule.
- d. There is no expressed or implied guarantee that beyond contract classes are available for "banked" in any given semester.
- e. Only upon the retirement, resignation from the District, acceptance of a regular non-interim/acting non-unit position within the District, or death of a unit member, shall the cash value of any unused banked leave be paid to the unit member or their estate. Any such payment shall be at the beyond contract rate in effect on the date of retirement, resignation, or death.
- f. A unit member may use banked leave as load in conjunction with a sabbatical leave that is compensated at less than one hundred (100%) percent of the Unit Member's regular contract salary. The compensation for the load banked leave shall not, when added to the compensation for the sabbatical leave, cause the Unit Member's compensation to exceed one hundred forty (140%) percent of the Unit Member's regular contract salary.

#### 4.15.3 Banked Leave Program Verification Procedures

- a. Unless a self-service option exists, no later than October 1 of each year, the District shall provide each unit member with a statement of the unit member's banked leave balance as of the prior June 30.
- b. If the unit member believes that their banked leave balance is in error, they must notify the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources of the error no later than October 31.
- c. The failure of a unit member to notify the District of an error by the October 31 deadline shall constitute that unit member's acknowledgment that their banked leave balance is accurate and shall render any future claims of inaccuracy null and void.

#### 4.15.4 Banked Leave Program Procedures

- a. The unit member must complete and follow the process within the Banked Leave Application Form (available in Human Resources) and submit it to the supervising administrator prior to banked LHE/hours. The unit member must apply to bank the extra LHE/hours by end of day Tuesday prior to commencing work on the extra assignment, unless extenuating circumstances exist. The unit member's decision to bank or receive pay for the extra LHE/hours shall be irrevocable after work on the extra assignment has commenced.
- b. A unit member who elects to use banked leave must submit their initial written request to their supervising administrator no later than the Friday of the 9th week of the preceding semester with final confirmation by the Friday of the 14th week of the preceding semester. After consultation with the supervising administrator, and approval by the respective Vice President or designee, the leave will be granted if the leave will not adversely impact the program. A Vice President can authorize the use of banked leave outside of these timelines in unique circumstances.
- c. If an applicant's full-semester leave is denied, the applicant may appeal the decision to the College President for final decision.
- d. While the full-time unit member is on one or two full semester banked leave, unless an exception is granted by the Vice Chancellor, Human Resources, or designee, they will not be eligible to:
  - i. contract extension days;
  - ii. work overload;
  - iii. contract for extra assignments in the District;
  - iv. work on a stipend or reassigned time;
  - v. work on any hourly assignments.

#### 4.16 **ASSOCIATION LEAVE**

The Association shall be provided a maximum aggregate of ten (10) days leave of absence without loss of pay in any school year for matters related to the Association's function as a bargaining agent. Days not used shall not be cumulative from year to year. The Association shall pay for any substitutes assigned due to the use of this leave. The cost for such substitutes shall be paid by the Association within thirty (30) days of receipt of a District invoice. Association leave must be requested at least five (5) days in advance, approved by the appropriate administrator, and approved by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources

as to availability of leave time. The use of Association leave shall be accounted for in the same manner as the use of sick leave for a day or portion of a day.

#### 4.17 PARENTAL BONDING LEAVE

Unit members may take up to a maximum of 12 weeks of leave for the absence occasioned by the birth or the placement of a child in connection with adoption or foster care, as provided by the California Family Rights Act (CFRA) codified in Government Code Section 12945.2.

Unit members must use all paid accrued sick leave for the purposes of parental leave. Unit members taking this leave must have had scheduled assignments during the previous 12 months (excluding Summer and Winter Intersessions) prior to the start of the leave.

A Full-time unit member whose sick leave, including current, excess and accrued, has been exhausted, shall be compensated at the extended absence rate for the remaining period of the parental leave during which the unit member is assigned to work.

A Part-time unit member who has started an assignment or is scheduled for an assignment, in the fall or spring semester or during winter or summer intersession and whose sick leave, including current and accrued, has been exhausted, shall be compensated at the extended absence rate for the remaining period of the parental leave or the end of the current semester/intersession assignment, whichever comes first.

Parental Leave must be taken within 12 months after the birth or placement of the child and during a period that the unit member has an active scheduled assignment.

If AB65 is signed into law, the District will immediately apply the law as mandated and open negotiations to modify this section.

# 4.18 THE FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) AND THE CALIFORNIA FAMILY RIGHTS ACT (CFRA)

4.18.1 FMLA and CFRA are federal and state leave laws that allow unit members to take unpaid, job-protected leave as follows:

Twelve (12) workweeks of leave in a fiscal year for:

- A serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the essential functions of his or her job.
- To care for a grandparent, grandchild, sibling, or designated person (see Article 4.1) of the unit member and the spouse or domestic partner and the following relations of the unit member, spouse or domestic partner:

o Parent

- Child regardless of age
- The birth of a child and to care for the newborn child within one year of birth.
- The placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care and to care for the newly placed child within one year of placement.
- Participate in a qualifying event because of a family member's military deployment to a foreign country.

Unit members experiencing the birth or adoption or foster care of a child may utilize the additional benefit outlined in 4.17 Parental Bonding Leave.

Twenty-six (26) weeks of leave during the fiscal year to care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness if the eligible employee is the servicemember's spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin (military caregiver leave).

- 4.18.2 Unit members may designate one person per twelve (12) month period who is not listed as an immediate family member for CFRA leave use only. This is limited to one person per twelve (12) month period.
- 4.18.3 Unit members are allowed to use accrued or excess sick leave, if available, during the periods of FMLA or CFRA leaves.
- 4.18.4 If unit member is absent for a reason that qualifies as FMLA and/or CFRA, employer must designate the leave as FMLA/CFRA.

### ARTICLE 5 HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

#### 5.1 **ELIGIBILITY**

Unit members serving under a contract of 50% or more of a full-time equivalent are eligible for benefits as described below.

Full-time unit members who voluntarily reduce their load assignments below 100% will retain their eligibility for the same benefits as a full-time employee.

#### 5.2 **BENEFITS**

#### 5.2.1 <u>Medical/Dental Insurance</u>

For calendar year 2025, the portion of the medical/dental insurance premium paid by the District shall be limited to a maximum contribution of \$41,213.88\* per member per year ("District Maximum Contribution"). Thereafter, the District Maximum Contribution shall be automatically increased by an amount not to exceed 6% in each succeeding year. The new annual maximum contribution will be memorialized by the parties in a side letter to be attached to this collective bargaining agreement. If the annual premium renewal rates represent an aggregate increase of more than 6%, the District and FARSCCD agree to immediately reopen negotiations on this article.

Based on the 2017 rates, the District has approximately \$1.3 million in protective capacity available to address future increases over 6% and to stabilize rates in medical/dental insurance premiums up to the District Maximum Contribution.

#### 5.2.2 Life Insurance

The District will provide life insurance equal to the base salary for each eligible full-time unit member.

#### 5.2.3 Other Contributions

The District will contribute up to \$1,750 per year to full-time unit members serving under a contract of 75% or more. A contribution of up to \$1,750 per year will be prorated for those full-time unit members serving under a contract of 50% up to 75% based on the percentage equivalent to the full-time unit members contract percentage. The full-time unit member can assign this contribution or any part of it toward dependent or full-time unit member medical/dental coverage, or other approved deductions consistent with IRS regulations.

#### 5.2.4 <u>Dependent Medical/Dental Coverage</u>

Premium contributions not covered under Section 5.2.3 shall be made through authorized payroll deductions.

Dependent shall include full-time unit member's spouse, domestic partner, child, stepchild, foster child (foster children may only be covered if allowed by the medical plan rules), and the children of the domestic partner of the full-time unit member.

#### 5.2.5 Medically Disabled Full-Time Unit Members – Continuation of Benefits

Full-time unit members who have exhausted all paid sick leave and who are unable to return to service due to verified medical disability may continue the benefits described under section 5.2 for up to twelve (12) months under the following conditions:

- A. The full-time member must be under a district-approved leave of absence following exhaustion of all paid sick leave;
- B. If required by the District, full-time unit member must accept examination by a district-approved physician;
- C. The portion of the premium paid by the District will not exceed the amount paid by the District for an active unit member.

The continuation of benefits described herein is not renewable for the same condition or illness occurring within a one-year time frame.

#### 5.2.6 Full-Time Unit Member Opt-Out Due To Double Coverage

All eligible full-time unit members are required to have health coverage through either a District-paid health plan or a plan provided through a spouse or domestic partner who does not work for the District.

A unit member that is eligible for a District-paid health plan and is covered by another health plan through a spouse or domestic partner may voluntarily opt out of the District-paid health plan during the District's annual benefits open enrollment period.

By opting out of District-paid health coverage, the unit member will be eligible to receive an incentive stipend in the amount of \$500 for each full calendar year in which they are eligible for District-paid health coverage but opted out of coverage. The incentive stipend amount will not change if the eligible unit member is out on an approved leave that qualifies to receive full medical benefits.

To participate in this option, the unit member must provide the District with proof of active health coverage from the other health plan on an annual basis during the District's benefits open enrollment period. If a unit member is receiving this incentive stipend and loses health coverage through their spouse or domestic partner, then they will be required to enroll into one of the District's health plans with coverage beginning on the first working day of the subsequent month after the loss of coverage and the incentive stipend will end in the month of the termination of unit member coverage under the other health plan. To be eligible to enroll into a District health plan outside of the District's annual benefits open enrollment period, the unit member must provide proof of coverage termination from the other health carrier within 30 days of termination.

#### 5.3 DISTRICT JOINT BENEFITS COMMITTEE

FARSCCD shall have two (2) representatives on the Joint Benefits Committee. There will be a minimum of one meeting per year of the Joint Benefits Committee. FARSCCD's participation in the Committee shall not relieve the District of its obligation to immediately open negotiations as specified in Article 5.2.1.

The Joint Benefits Committee is an advisory committee that reviews the benefit offerings, cost benefit for employees, and cost containment. FARSCCD members on the Joint Benefits Committee will communicate updates relating to benefits to its membership and will make recommendations to its membership based on information shared during Joint Benefits Committee meetings.

#### 5.4 **RETIREE COVERAGE**

For the purposes of this section, retirement is defined as a full-time unit member's termination from full-time District employment which is concurrent with his/her retirement under STRS and/or PERS.

#### 5.4.1 District Contributions

Retired full-time unit members and eligible dependents shall receive district-paid benefits in accordance with the current medical/dental plans based upon the following eligibility criteria:

For full-time unit members whose first paid date of continuous full-time service contract service is prior to May 31, 1986, who have fifteen (15) years of service, the District will pay for the benefits described in 5.4.2 for life.

For full-time unit members whose first paid date of continuous full-time service contract service is on or after May 31, 1986, who subsequently qualify for the foregoing fifteen (15) year retiree service benefit, the District will pay for the benefits described in 5.4.2 until the retiree reaches age 70, after which such retirees may continue coverage at their own expense.

Full-time unit members retiring on or after July 1, 1975, with less than fifteen (15) but with ten (10) or more years of continuous full-time service to the District may participate in medical/dental benefits by paying their own premiums.

#### 5.4.2 Retiree Benefits

Eligible retirees and their eligible dependents will receive the same medical coverage with the same District contribution as current full-time unit members until reaching age 65.

Retired eligible full-time unit members and their eligible dependents age 65 and older will enroll in Medicare Part A, Part B, and Part D when eligible. The District will provide at no cost to eligible retirees a Group Medicare Supplemental insurance plan that is designed to be comparable to the level provided to active unit members.

The District will pay for the Group Medicare Supplement insurance plan for unit members who are vested with a minimum of 15 years of service within the district until reaching the age of 70.

The District agrees to perform an actuarial study and full cost analysis of current retiree benefit costs to cost out the proposal of extending medical and dental benefits for those with 25 years' service to age 75 by January 1, 2026, or as soon as possible thereafter. If an extension is needed, the District will keep FARSCCD informed of the extensions. The parties will meet and negotiate by no later than March 1, 2026.

#### 5.5 **SURVIVING DEPENDENTS**

For two (2) months from the date of an active unit member or retiree's death, the District will continue to pay the District's portion of the premiums for the medical and dental insurance in force for the unit member's surviving spouse or domestic partner and eligible dependents at the time of the unit member's death. At the conclusion of this benefit period, the surviving spouse or domestic partner and eligible dependents of the deceased unit member shall be provided the opportunity to continue health benefits under the District sponsored medical, dental, and vision plans at the individual's own expense and at the premium levels prescribed by insurance companies and governmental regulations as a member of the District's benefits program provided that they were covered eligible dependents at the time of the unit member's death.

#### 5.6 **SOCIAL SECURITY ALTERNATIVE**

Upon hire, part-time unit members will be provided with the option of enrolling in PARS or CalSTRS.

<u>For PARS</u>: the part-time unit member shall contribute 6.2% of their earnings to this plan and the District shall contribute an amount equal to 1.3% of the unit member's earnings to this plan. All administrative costs associated with this plan shall be paid from the 1.3% District contribution. If the administrative costs associated with this plan exceed the amount contributed by the District, the District shall pay those additional costs.

<u>For CalSTRS</u>: the part-time unit member shall contribute the percentage determined by CalSTRS of their earnings to this plan, and the District shall contribute the percentage determined by CalSTRS for the employer based on the unit members' earnings.

Effective July 1, 2025, and annually thereafter each September, all unit members who are not members of the State Teacher's Retirement System Defined Benefit program (STRS-DB) shall be given the option in writing by the District to be enrolled in the CalSTRS Defined Benefit (STRS-DB), in lieu of PARS.

# 5.7 <u>PART-TIME UNIT MEMBER HEALTH INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM</u>

The purpose of the program is to encourage and support securing medical insurance coverage. As such, the parameters of this program provide an opportunity for individual part-time unit members to receive reimbursement toward the cost of securing a comprehensive medical plan. To receive reimbursement for the plan a unit member is on must be demonstrated to be a comprehensive medical plan. Reimbursement will be provided on a semester basis for the purpose of purchasing medical insurance by unit members.

Unit members are eligible for reimbursement if enrolled on their own plan or as a dependent on a family member's plan. Unit members are not eligible for the reimbursement program if the unit member is enrolled in another employer's group medical plan as an employee.

Part-time unit members with the District whose teaching/work assignment equals or exceeds 40 percent of the cumulative equivalent of a minimum full-time teaching/work assignment (as defined by Ed. Code Section 87861) are eligible to receive reimbursement for a portion of the cost of medical health insurance for the part-time unit members, and eligible dependents, when the unit member works, as follows:

- 1. At least 40% or more of a full-time contract in either the Fall or the Spring semester. If a unit member has no load in a semester, they are not eligible for reimbursement for that semester.
- 2. 40% cumulatively over the course of both fall and spring semesters. To qualify for a cumulative 40%, a unit member must work more than zero percent load in both fall and spring semesters.

#### Program parameters:

- 1. There are two periods of reimbursement:
  - a. Fall semester, covering periods from June 1st through November 30th, and
  - b. Spring semester, covering periods from December 1st through May 31st
- 2. Reimbursement amounts are as follows; employees will receive actual amounts paid up to the semester maximum.

a.	Empl	oyee monthly cost	Reimbursement amount	
	i.	\$1 - 500	up to 2,950	
	ii.	\$501-900	up to 5,450	
	iii.	\$901+	up to 5,950	
	iv.	Medicare	up to 2,750	

- 3. The total amount of money available for reimbursement distribution shall not exceed \$215,000 per semester, for distribution to qualified unit members, totaling \$430,000 per year. Once all eligible employees and amounts have been determined, if the total amount is greater than \$215,000 per semester, the allocation amounts will be redistributed proportionately, so the total amount per semester equals but does not exceed \$215,000 per semester.
- 4. Reimbursement shall be applied toward a qualified voluntary comprehensive health insurance program, of the unit member's individual arrangement and choice, under the parameters that:
  - a. The unit member provides official documentation of current enrollment and monthly premium cost, which provides proof of premiums paid and proof of comprehensive medical coverage for the reimbursement period that shows the specifics of the medical coverage, and the unit member confirms that all documents submitted are accurate and true.
  - b. Eligibility is reviewed each fall and spring semester
  - c. Each semester the unit member must submit the following documentation no later than:
    - i. November 15th, for fall semester
    - ii. May 15th, for spring semester

5. If coverage terminates the unit member must notify the District within 10 days of the termination, which may proportionally impact the amount of reimbursement available to that unit member.

The reimbursement program is predicated on funding allocations provided by the State of California. The reimbursement program will discontinue if the State of California discontinues funding the Part-time Faculty Health Insurance Program (Education Code sections 87860 through 87868).

The District recognizes the importance of health insurance and will develop a marketing plan to meaningfully advertise the reimbursement program every two weeks to unit members, at the start of each semester, to encourage awareness and participation. Additionally, the District, in collaboration with FARSCCD will hold two town halls in the fall and spring semesters to discuss the reimbursement program and encourage participation. The District, in collaboration with FARSCCD will develop and submit an anonymous survey to unit members in 2025-2026 to determine interest in a health insurance program to review the data with FARSCCD in 2026-2027, to assess for feasibility of implementation.

# ARTICLE 6 INSTRUCTIONAL HOURS, DUTIES AND WORKLOAD

#### 6.1 **WORKLOAD**

#### 6.1.1 Work Year

#### A. Full-time Unit Members Working in the Credit Program

The standard contract year is one hundred seventy-five (175) days of service designated by the Instructional Calendar (see Appendix C).

# B. <u>Full-time Unit Members Working as Coordinators, Librarians, DSPS</u> <u>Learning Disability Specialists, and Other Categories not considered</u> Traditional Instructional Unit Members

The standard contract year is one hundred seventy-five (175) days of service as designated by the instructional calendar (Appendix C) or a July 1 – June 30 calendar year as mutually agreed between the unit member and supervisor. Days assigned beyond the 175 days of instruction will be assigned in accordance with the defined work week for coordinators, librarians, DSPS Learning Disability Specialist, and other unit members not considered traditional instructors.

Upon mutual agreement between the unit member and their direct supervisor, DSPS Learning Disability Specialists may be designated LHE during summer and intersession paid at the same rate as Librarians/Counselors/Nursing (.85 LHE) instruction rate per the FARSCCD PERMANENT CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE A.

#### C. <u>Unit Members Working in the Non-Credit Program</u>

The standard contract year for full-time unit members working in the non-credit program is one hundred seventy-five (175) days of service, as designated by the annual Non-Credit Instructional calendar (Appendix D).

## D. <u>College Counselors, Counselor Coordinators, Health Services Faculty, and</u> Distance Education Coordinator

The standard contract year is one hundred ninety-two (192) days of service within the period beginning the last workday of July and concluding no later than the second week of the summer session for full-time credit counseling unit members, and no later than the first week of the summer session for non-credit counselors. All counseling unit members assigned to the credit instructional program shall work the two weeks of registration prior to the start of classes each semester. Counseling unit members assigned to the non-

credit instructional program shall work the one week prior to the start of classes each semester. The remaining work weeks shall be based upon programmatic need.

The Health Services Faculty are Clinical Psychologists, Nurses, and other unit members providing health services to students or assigned to the student health center, only if hired as faculty and designated as faculty upon hire.

Yearly assignment schedules for each counselor will be finalized by June 1.

## E. Public Safety Coordinator

The standard contract year is two hundred twenty-five (225) days of service within the calendar year, July 1 – June 30 as mutually agreed upon between the employee and the supervisor.

## F. STRS Full-time Equivalent Definitions for Part-Time Unit Members

In accordance with the requirements of Education Code Sections 22138.5 (5) and 22138.5 (6), a full time equivalent annual assignment unit member is defined as follows:

Credit Instructional Program	525 hours (15 hrs. x 35 wks.)

Non-Credit (Adult Education) Instructional

Program 875 hours (25 hrs. x 35 wks.)

Librarians 1120 hours (35 hrs. x 32 wks.)

Counseling and Health Services Unit

Members 1365 hours (35 hrs. x 39 wks.)

## 6.1.2 Scheduled Assignment

For all unit members (teaching and non-instructional) an assignment scheduled for fewer than four (4) days is subject to approval by the supervising administrator and the appropriate College President. All instructional unit members shall fulfill professional duties that include teaching, preparation, maintenance of student office hours, institutional service (e.g. membership and participation on college governance committee(s), participation in accreditation teams, and student activities support), professional development and other duties. Instructional unit members are required to schedule student office hours to best meet the needs of students.

The supervising administrator retains the right to determine course offerings based on student needs and in support of student success in collaboration with the Department Chair. Course assignments must be approved and assigned by the supervising administrator. Full-time unit members may be assigned a fully online schedule. Full-time unit members may be assigned to perform a portion of their contract workload at their campus worksite in consultation with the unit member. Every effort will be made to meet unit member's preference for assignments. Full-time non-instructional unit members may have an assigned schedule for fewer than four (4) days in-person subject to approval by the supervising administrator.

## 6.1.3 Work Week

## A. Full-time Unit Members Working in the Credit Program

The standard work week is to average forty (40) hours. The standard instructional work week shall consist of fifteen (15) LHE of classroom assignments, fifteen (15) hours of preparation, five (5) student office hours, and five (5) hours of institutional service.

Instructional unit members shall not be required to schedule student office hours on days in which they are not assigned a class.

## B. Full-time Unit Members Working in the Non-Credit Programs

The standard work week is to average forty (40) hours. All full-time non-credit instructional unit members shall be assigned twenty-five (25) teaching hours per week. No less than five (5) of those teaching hours shall be released for program facilitation activities. Five (5) student office hours shall be posted and maintained in accordance with the needs of students. Instructional unit members shall not be required to schedule student office hours on days in which they are not assigned a class.

# C. <u>Full-time Counseling Unit Members (including EOPS and DSPS</u> Counselors)

The standard workweek for full-time counseling unit members shall average forty (40) hours, of which thirty (30) are assigned student contact hours.

Thirty (30) of these student contact hours will include any academic, career, and personal counseling, related student interfacing activities, and any other projects assigned by college administration. The remaining ten (10) hours will consist of counseling preparation, documentation, research, counseling-related campus support, and institutional service.

Assignments of counseling hours, teaching schedules, and modality shall be determined in coordination between the unit members and supervising administrator based on District needs. At the discretion of the supervising administrator, remote assignments can be done off-site. A maximum of three (3) LHE can be assigned for teaching or coordination in load (see Appendix M).

# D. Counseling Coordinators

The standard workweek for counseling coordinators is to average forty (40) hours with thirty-five (35) hours assigned to meet the needs of coordination as determined by the supervising administrator and in consultation with the department chair and unit member.

A maximum of three (3) LHE can be assigned for teaching in load (see Appendix M).

E. Coordinators, Health Services Faculty, Librarians, Special Services Unit Members (e.g., DSPS Learning Disability Specialists), and Other Categories not considered Traditional Instructional Faculty

The standard workweek for librarians, coordinators, special services faculty, and other categories not considered traditional instructional faculty is to average forty (40) hours with thirty-five (35) scheduled hours. Unit members may have the opportunity to work remotely based on the needs of the department and in consultation with the department chair and with supervising administrator approval. For classroom assignments which are taught as part of contract, ample preparation time consistent with district policy will be provided.

For Health Services unit members the standard work week is to average forty (40) hours with thirty-five (35) hours to meet the needs of the department or service area and five (5) hours of institutional service. Unit members may have the opportunity to work remotely one day per week based on the needs of the department in consultation with the department chair and with supervising administrator approval.

Psychologists who serve in a clinical role will average 22.5 hours per week of clinic operations for in-person direct service appointments (face-to-face contact with clients including: intake, individual/group counseling, and crisis intervention, classroom presentations, and face-to-face clinical supervision, etc.). The remaining hours will be allocated for documentation and non-direct service activities.

DSPS Learning Disability Specialists will be scheduled for a maximum of 30 hours of direct student contact, 5 hours administrative tasks and 5 hours Institutional Service.

Nursing instructors are not considered Health Services staff within the meaning of this section.

# F. Part-time Unit Members Working in the Credit Program

The maximum assignment for part-time unit members shall be limited to 67% of the hours per week considered a full-time assignment for unit members having comparable duties, except for assignments exempted from this limitation by statute. For classroom instructors, 67% of a comparable full-time assignment shall consist of no more than ten (10) LHE per semester of classroom assignments, and ten (10) hours of preparation, per semester.

The maximum workload for part-time counseling unit members, librarians, coordinators, special services unit members, Health Services unit members and other categories not considered traditional instructional unit members shall average 23 hours per week year-round. Part-time psychologists who serve in a clinical role are not to exceed 75% of their time in attended direct service appointments (face-to-face contact with clients including: intake, individual/group counseling, and crisis intervention and face-to-face clinical supervision) on a continuing basis.

## 6.1.4 <u>Teaching Load – Unit Members in the Credit Instructional Program</u>

A. Normal teaching load for full-time unit members shall be thirty (30) teaching units per school year. Classes are normally equated in terms of one teaching unit (LHE) equaling one lecture hour. Laboratory units will be assigned on a 0.90 ratio of a lecture hour. With the consent of the instructor, variations in the normal teaching load may occur to provide for research and innovation.

## B. Exceptions to the normal teaching load

For assignment in work experience and independent studies the load credits may be adjusted on the basis of student contract hours.

The lab rate is 1.0 LHE for extensive preparation courses (anthropology, geography, nursing, and hard sciences) using proposed criteria and process established by the Curriculum and Instruction Councils at Santa Ana College and Santiago Canyon College and approved by the District Curriculum and Instruction Council. Courses recommended for addition or

deletion in this category will be presented to FARSCCD for negotiations with the District. (See Appendix N).

High feedback, writing intensive composition courses shall receive an additional 0.5 LHE per section paid at the part-time or beyond contract rate. A process to add or delete high feedback, writing intensive composition courses will be established by the Curriculum and Instruction Councils at Santa Ana College and Santiago Canyon College and approved by the District Curriculum and Instruction Council. High feedback, writing intensive composition courses confirmed for addition or deletion will be presented to FARSCCD for negotiations with the District. The following are currently approved high feedback, writing intensive composition courses: ENGL C1000, ENGL 102, ENGL C1001, EMLS 109, EMLS 110, EMLS 112, ACE 106, ACE 116, PARA 246, PARA 248, SPAN 213, SPAN 212.

The list of courses identified in Appendix N and high feedback, writing intensive composition courses will be an automatic reopener in February of each year of the term of this Agreement if changes are recommended by District Curriculum and Instruction Council. Changes to Appendix N and high feedback, writing intensive courses will be implemented for the Fall semester immediately following the negotiations.

Any reassigned LHE (such as coordination, chair, laboratory, non-instructional and student center hours) may be used to meet the annual thirty (30) unit teaching requirement. Unit members can use up to 3 LHE per semester to make contract load in student centers.

## C. Load Balancing for Full-Time Unit Members

No contract will be issued for less than nine (9) LHE per semester. Regular college unit members employed on a partial basis shall be paid on a pro-rata rate.

Although the normal teaching load is fifteen (15) LHE per semester, unit members may have, with mutual agreement between the supervising administrator and the unit member, more or less than fifteen (15) LHE per semester as long as thirty (30) LHE is obtained for the contract year. To qualify for a full teaching load, any unit member with an assignment for fewer than fifteen (15) LHE during the fall semester may satisfy the unit member's contractual obligation by any of the following ways, at the unit member's option and mutually agreed upon with the supervising administrator:

1. Reassign classes assigned as overload or to a part-time unit member.

- 2. Carry a load in the spring semester which will, when combined with the fall load, equal thirty (30) LHE. No full-time unit member will be scheduled for less than nine (9) LHE per semester. Full-time unit members employed on a partial basis shall be paid on a pro-rata rate.
- 3. Use banked LHE, if available.
- 4. Agree to a reduced contract.
- 5. Only as a last available option, if no other options are possible, work with the supervising administrator to identify reassigned time activities to fulfill the required thirty (30) LHE per year, in spring semester only.

## 6.1.5 Teaching Load – Unit Members in the Non-Credit Instructional Program

Full-time unit members loads may be annualized. Annualized load may be assigned during another semester or term to offset underloads for any one semester on an hour-for- hour basis.

## 6.1.6 Beyond Contract/Overload

Full-time unit members with satisfactory performance on their most recent evaluation will have first consideration for beyond contract, intersession, and summer school assignments within the college department of their primary assignment. Satisfactory performance is defined as having received a rating of "meets expectations" in all categories in the most recent evaluation. Additional evaluations can be requested in accordance with Article 8.17 (Additional Evaluations).

Unit members cannot be required to work overload.

After full-time unit members, with satisfactory performance in a department have been given the initial opportunity to accept or not accept beyond contract/overload assignments, the remaining class sections will be assigned as follows:

When beyond contract, intersession or summer assignments are not available in departments of their primary assignment, full-time unit members with satisfactory performance (who have FSA's that qualify them to teach in other departments), will receive consideration for those other assignments, after full-time unit members assigned to those departments and prior to part-time unit members. This section only applies to assignments at the college to which the full-time unit member is currently assigned. This applies to assignments offered in categorically funded programs unless the program has specific qualifications or training included in the funding requirements.

After full-time unit members have had their first consideration opportunity for class assignments, part-time unit members will receive their opportunity for regular semester, intersession and summer school assignments. After a part-time unit member has been offered and accepted such an assignment, that assignment cannot be rescinded and given to a full-time unit member unless that assignment is required for the full-time unit member to receive a full contract load.

A beyond contract assignment for full-time unit members will be limited to ten (10.0) LHE per semester. Exceptions may be granted by the appropriate College President or his/her designee. Student office hours approximating one (1) hour per week for a three (3) LHE assignment will be maintained.

Each assigned teaching unit in excess of fifteen (15) in the fall semester will be compensated at the approved beyond contract rate. When extra pay has been received for the fall semester, and the spring semester assigned load is less than fifteen (15) LHE, the fall beyond contract assignment may be used to complete the spring semester assigned load. In this case, repayment of the fall extra pay amount will be made through salary deduction. Each assigned LHE in excess of thirty (30) in the academic year will be compensated at the approved beyond contract rate.

Full-time unit members shall be paid equal to the number of hours of the first scheduled class meeting when a class is cancelled less than one week before the first day of instruction.

Full-time unit members will be paid for the completed class meetings when a course being taught as overload is cancelled after the start date of the course.

#### 6.1.7 Extended Contract

Non-teaching assignments requiring work beyond the 175 days in the standard contract for instructors, coordinators, librarians, staff shall be compensated for at the daily rate of 1/200 of the individual annual rate. Non-teaching assignments requiring work beyond the 192 days in the standard contract for counselors and health services faculty shall be compensated for at the daily rate of 1/220 of the individual annual rate. Non-teaching assignments requiring work beyond the 225 days for Public Safety Coordinator is 1/257 of the individual annual rate.

## 6.1.8 Student Office Hours

Full-time Instructional Unit Members

Five (5) student office hours per week shall be posted in a location easily accessible to students and maintained in accordance with the needs and convenience of the students and community members. Unit members will schedule online or on campus student office hours in alignment with the modality of their scheduled classes (e.g., if teaching two on campus classes, then two on campus student office

hours will be scheduled.) Unit members who are on approved leave shall have their student office hours reduced by the ratio of 1 hour per 3 LHE of approved leave. Unit members who teach any distance education may have their student office hours reduced by the ratio of 1 hour per 3 LHE of online courses taught, with the understanding that the unit members are sufficiently available for students and are equivalently interacting with students to support student success. Scheduled student office hours will be held every week of the fall and spring semester that the unit member is assigned to teach.

## Part-time Instructional Unit Members

The District agrees to study the feasibility of student office hours for part-time instructional unit members during fall semester 2025, for review with a workgroup in spring 2026, consisting of two administrators and two FARSCCD representatives for consideration of implementing a pilot program.

## 6.2 PART-TIME UNIT MEMBER EMPLOYMENT PREFERENCE RIGHTS

Preference rights, will be used for scheduling part-time unit members. Instructional Part-time Unit Member:

Preference Rights for instructional part-time unit members shall be granted by the following criteria:

- Have been employed for eight (8) academic (fall or spring) semesters or more, and,
- have been assigned at least one (1) class in three (3) of the last four (4) semesters, and,
- have received a rating of "meets expectations" in all categories in the two most recent evaluations.

Any part-time unit member with employment preference rights shall have priority of assignment based on the priority lists established in Article 6.2.1, for one (1) teaching assignment in their discipline, within the college and department in which the employment preference rights were earned. If additional teaching assignments are available, part-time unit members who have not yet achieved preference rights may then be offered a teaching assignment. This priority of the teaching assignment shall be honored during fall and spring semesters only. If available, this teaching assignment will be assigned from those that the instructor has taught during the eight (8) academic (fall or spring) semesters or more time period and/or that the department chair and division dean mutually agree that the instructor is qualified to teach. The teaching assignment will be scheduled to meet the needs of students as determined by the appropriate supervisor. The part-time unit members with employment preference rights shall be assigned a teaching assignment in order of priority provided that the instructor is available to teach the class.

Non-Instructional Part-time Unit Member

Preference Rights for non-instructional part-time unit members shall be granted by the following criteria:

- Have been employed for eight (8) academic (fall or spring) semesters or more, and
- Have been assigned an average of at least six hours per week, which occurred in the most recent 4 semesters, and,
- Have received a rating of "meets expectations" in all categories in the two most recent evaluations.

Any part-time unit member with preference rights shall have priority of non-instructional assignment based on the priority lists established in Article 6.2.1, for six hours per week, within the college and department in which the preference rights were earned. This priority of non-instructional assignment shall be honored during fall and spring semesters only. If available, these hours will be assigned in areas from those that the unit member has worked during the eight (8) semesters or more time period and/or that the department chair and division dean mutually agree that the unit member is qualified to perform. The non-instructional assignment shall be made within a time period the part-time unit member has designated as preferable, if work is available and if it meets student needs, during that time frame as determined by the appropriate administrator. The part-time unit member with preference rights shall be assigned work hours in order of priority provided that the unit member is available to work.

- 6.2.1 Priority Lists: Preference rights will be based upon all courses/work areas the unit member has previously taught/worked at their college within their discipline during the eight (8) academic semesters or more period and/or those that the department chair and division dean mutually agree that the instructor is qualified to teach/work. The District shall establish up-to-date priority lists. The lists shall be ordered by discipline and initial date of hire into their college within their discipline, then if a tie, by the number of sections previously taught/average number of hours per week at their college within their discipline, and then if a tie, by lottery.
- 6.2.2 Suspension and Reinstatement of Preference Rights:
  - 6.2.2.1 Part-time unit members preference rights are suspended when a part-time unit member receives an evaluation performance rating of "does not meet expectations" in any category or has a break in service wherein the part-time unit member has not taught/worked in Fall of Spring semesters for two (2) years/four (4) semesters or more. A minimum assignment of 2 hours per week in a tutoring/learning center does not constitute a break in service.
  - 6.2.2.2 The preference right is reinstated when the part-time unit member receives two (2) consecutive "meets expectations" evaluations for all methods of evaluation. These evaluations will occur the next two (2) semesters that the unit member actually teaches/works and will include visitations and student evaluations.

- 6.2.3 Contingent Status of Part-time Unit Members: In all cases, part-time unit member assignments shall be temporary in nature, contingent on enrollment and funding, and subject to program changes. No part-time unit member shall have reasonable assurance of continued employment at any point, irrespective of the status, length of service, or reemployment preference of that part-time unit member.
- 6.2.4 Part-time unit members working in the Criminal Justice Academy and the Fire Academy will not earn re-employment preference rights.
- 6.2.5 Part-Time Unit Member Teaching Assignment Cancellation: Part-time unit members shall be paid equal to the number of hours of the first scheduled class meeting when a class is cancelled or re-assigned to a full-time unit member less than one week before the first day of instruction.

Part-time unit members will be paid for the completed class meetings when a course is cancelled after the start date of the course.

6.2.6 Part-Time Unit Member Service In Shared Governance Committees: The Academic Senate Presidents shall identify up to five (5) part-time unit members per college who will be paid a stipend of \$250 per semester to serve on selected College or District participatory governance committees.

## 6.3 OTHER FULL-TIME UNIT MEMBER DUTIES

#### 6.3.1 Institutional Service

Institutional service is work done by full-time unit members for the betterment of the college and district. It includes but is not limited to membership and participation on college governance committee(s), department meetings, curriculum development, screening committees, outreach, participation in accreditation teams, and student activities support.

Participation in council or committee assignments, course development, meetings, conferences, student office hours and other college/district activities is a part of the contractual responsibility.

Unit members serving on participatory governance committees that have scheduled meetings during off-contract periods will be paid at Schedule B, the hourly non-teaching rate, unless already compensated through reassigned time.

#### 6.3.2 Commencement

Full-time unit members who are on contract shall participate in the commencement ceremony for the college or continuing education school to which they are primarily assigned unless the unit member is fulfilling other assigned duties, and the unit member has notified their supervising administrator of their non-attendance.

Full-time noncredit unit members who are off contract, and are approved by their supervising administrator to participate in commencement shall be compensated for the hours of required attendance at the non-instructional rate on the beyond contract salary schedule.

## 6.3.3 Release Time, Compensation and Stipends for Extra Service Assignments

The District shall compute, according to established criteria, the annual released time and stipend recommendations for extra service assignments. Such stipends and released time shall be subject to consultation with FARSCCD and to the approval of the Board of Trustees upon the recommendation of the Chancellor. The Association will be consulted on changes in the released time allotment in a timely manner.

A process for selecting unit members who will receive release time to serve as Faculty Facilitators will be established in consultation with the Academic Senates at Santa Ana College and Santiago Canyon College, FARSCCD and the District. Unit members selected to serve in these roles will receive the agreed upon release time compensation or stipend.

Additional responsibilities for unit members shall be compensated on a ratio of 1 LHE for every 36 hours of required work.

## 6.3.4 Large Group Instruction (LGI)

Extra pay and instructional aide (IA) hours will be allocated in accordance with the chart listed below. Sections for LGI qualification must be pre-approved. Enrollment limits will be pre-determined at the beginning of the registration period. Limit and LGI qualification changes require administrative approval.

Qualification counts for the Bonus LHE and weekly instructional aide hours are determined on the final date of late registration. Head count may be required and/or substituted for the computer count. For eight (8) week classes, instructional aide hours will be provided to LGI classes at 1.5 times the rates in the table below. Aide hours for terms of other lengths may be prorated within this framework.

	LHE bonus factor per 3 LHE Class	TA Hours Weekly per 3 LHE class	Additional Weekly Student Office Hours per 3 LHE class
60 to 69	0	5	0.50
70 to 79	0.75	5	0.50
80 to 89	1.50	7	1.00
90 to 99	2.25	7	1.00
100 to 119	3.00	9	1.50
120 to 139	3.75	11	1.50
140 to 159	4.50	13	2.00
160 & above	5.25	15	2.00

## 6.3.5 Department and Department Chairs

## 6.3.5.1 Department Modifications

The College Administration in consultation with the Academic Senates of Santa Ana College and Santiago Canyon College will create a process to review and approve creation, deletion or modifications of new departments. The Academic Senates of Santa Ana College and Santiago Canyon College may create and/or modify curriculum associated with department modification. The District will review the effects of department modifications with FARSCCD.

## 6.3.5.2 Department/Chair Duties, Released Time/and Compensation

The duties and responsibilities common to all department chair assignments are presented in Appendix K-1. The released time for instructional department chair assignments shall be determined through negotiated formula and presented in Appendix K-2. Other department chair assignments, e.g. Counseling, Library, non-credit non-instructional, etc. are presented in Appendix K-3. Appendix K-4 contains the negotiated details of the chair assignment calculations. A department chair may have up to five (5.0) LHE of release time as part of the chair's contract load. The value of any department chair assignment in excess of five (5.0) LHE shall be paid at the Part-time or Beyond Contract rate. Using the credit calculation, a calculator will be created to determine the department chair compensation for non-credit instructional department chairs.

If department chair work is determined as needed by the supervising administrator, during off contract periods, during summer and winter intersession, a stipend will be provided for summer work in the amount of \$1,500.00 and in the amount of \$750.00 for winter intersession. The stipend will allow for the equivalent of three hours of work per week, with work and hours allocated appropriately and when needed for completion of the assigned work. If a department chair is not available, the department chair may recommend an alternative to the supervising administrator for approval. By mutual agreement with the supervising administrator, the work may be completely remote.

#### 6.3.6 Academic Senate Released Time

The District will provide thirty-seven (37) LHE/semester for the Santa Ana College Academic Senate which includes compensation for the unit member chair of the Curriculum Council and thirty-seven (37) LHE/semester for the Santiago Canyon College Academic Senate. To compensate Academic Senate Leadership for the carrying out of necessary duties while off contract, the District will provide an

additional six (6) LHE for the Santa Ana College Academic Senate and an additional six (6) LHE for the Santiago Canyon College Academic Senate.

The Senates will provide the District individual allocations in a timely manner during the planning schedule for each term. This section of the agreement shall not be subject to the reopener provisions in Article 1.3.

#### 6.3.7 Association Release Time

Release time each year will be available to the Association, provided for as follows:

- 1. The District shall provide 70 LHE of released time each year to the Association for on-going Association responsibilities. The Association shall determine the allocation of the release time between the academic sessions (fall, intersession, spring, and summer).
- 2. The Association may purchase additional released time at the beyond contract LHE rate. The additional released time must conform with the limitations defined in 6.1.6.
- 3. The Association may purchase additional released time during the summer at the part-time LHE rate. The additional released time must conform with the limitation defined in 6.1.6.
- 4. Any purchased release time shall be paid by the Association within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the district invoice.
- 5. The President of the Association shall contact the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources thirty (30) days prior to the first day of instruction for any term during which released time is used in order to initiate the use of released time referred to in Section 1,2,3, and 4 above.
- 6. The Association acknowledges that the released time specified in A1 and A3 above shall include the activities of the Associations negotiating team.
- 7. This shall constitute "reasonable periods of release time" within the meaning of Government code section 3543.1(c).

## 6.4 <u>MULTIPLE SITE ASSIGNMENTS</u>

#### 6.4.1 Assignments

The District will attempt not to assign a unit member to more than one instructional site during day hours of instruction. Unit members will be consulted prior to such assignments being confirmed.

## 6.4.2 Mileage

If a unit member's contractual assignment or responsibility requires work on a scheduled basis at more than one site in a day, the employee shall be eligible for mileage reimbursement for the travel between the sites. This includes Board of Trustee meetings, council work, department meetings, conducting unit member observations/evaluation at off-site campuses/locations and Academic Senate meetings. Mileage shall be calculated for the distance to the traveled site from the employees' normal site of employment, excluding any distance from the unit member's residence to the regular place of employment.

# 6.5 **FLEXIBLE CALENDAR**

#### 6.5.1 Instructional Unit Members

Each full-time unit member shall complete twelve (12) hours of appropriate professional development (Title 5) individual activities each fiscal year to be tracked by the District electronic system. Full-time unit members teaching more than fifteen (15) LHE shall complete additional flex hours equal to the amount of LHE they are assigned.

Full-time unit members shall also participate in, and receive flex credit for four (4) common days (6 hours each day) each fiscal year, which will be designated as common days for district, college, division, or departmental activities. Full-time instructors will be required to be on campus on these common designated days. Department activities have priority on one of the two common days each semester. Any changes in procedures or timelines for plan submission will be prepared in consultation with the Association and distributed by the District.

The appropriate administrator shall review and approve each unit member's flex activities as submitted on the electronic system plan to ensure that each unit member is in accordance with Title 5 regulations and district policies. If the activities are not approved by the appropriate administrator, a unit member may, within twenty (20) days, appeal the decision in writing to the appropriate College President or his/her designee.

Notwithstanding the right of the District not to release instructors from teaching or other assigned responsibilities if it is deemed in the best interest of the District, the College President or his/her designee will approve the professional development activities if it is in accordance with Title 5 regulations, district policies, and district needs. The decision of the College President or his/her designee is final.

The approved professional development activities are legally binding.

Professional development activities submitted by contract unit members shall constitute contractual obligations as outlined in the unit contract. Failure to submit

the professional development activities on time, or failure to complete part or all the professional development activities, will result in a proportionate reduction in compensation. A prorated number of staff development days will be computed for unit members on reduced contract, partial contract, and sabbatical leave assignment.

#### Part-time Instructional Unit Members

Part-time instructional unit members shall complete flex hours equal to the amount of LHE they are assigned. For part-time instructional unit members, staff development activities will be scheduled and organized in conjunction with administration and attendance at such activities is a required contractual obligation.

6.5.2 Counselors, Coordinators, Librarians, Health Service Staff, Special Services Faculty, and Other Categories not considered a Traditional Instructional Faculty

The appropriate administrator shall review and approve professional development hours that are in accordance with district policies. If the proposed plan is not approved, the full-time unit member may within twenty (20) days, appeal the decision in writing to the appropriate College President or his/her designee. The decision of the College President or his/her designee is final. The district reserves the right not to release staff if it is deemed in the best interest of the district.

The approved plan is a legally binding contract. Failure to complete part or all required professional hours will result in a proportionate reduction in compensation. Development plans submitted by unit members for flex days shall constitute contractual obligations.

#### 6.5.3 Continuance of the Flexible Calendar

The Board of Trustees retains the right to determine, after consultation with unit members and staff, whether to continue the flexible calendar format for subsequent academic years.

# 6.6 <u>SUMMER SESSION AND INTERSESSION – (See Section 7.2 Summer School Salary Schedule)</u>

Unit members may be assigned a maximum of twelve (12) LHE for the summer and six (6) LHE for the intersession terms upon mutual agreement.

Full-time counselors will be paid summer rate (Salary Schedule A) only when they have completed 192 days and only if they are scheduled to work once the summer session begins.

A maximum assignment of forty (40) hours per week will be allowed for all counselors. Combined counseling and instructional assignments shall be subject to the forty (40) hour

limit. Assignments during the summer session shall be 100% student contact unless modified by mutual agreement with the appropriate administrator.

A maximum schedule of forty (40) hours per week will be allowed for Health Services unit members, librarians and other non-instructional unit members, as mutually agreed upon by the supervising administrator and unit member.

A summer session assignment for noncredit unit members shall not exceed a total of two hundred and forty (240) hours, as mutually agreed upon by the supervising administrator and unit member.

## 6.7 **PARKING**

Effective July 1, 2017, the parking fee rate will be \$50 per year for all full-time unit members. Full-time unit members with less than a full academic year assignment will pay a prorated amount. The parking fee for part-time unit members will be \$20 per semester. Part-time unit members can purchase \$20 for each semester (fall and spring) and \$10 for the summer semester.

## 6.8 **COACHING ASSIGNMENTS**

#### 6.8.1 Head Coaches

Head Coaching Load: During the in-season semester, a Head Coach will receive 9 LHE for the in-season athletic class associated with their intercollegiate sport. In addition to the 2.70 LHE associated with an off-season intercollegiate athletic class, a Head Coach will receive 6.30 LHE of additional reassigned time for coaching duties performed during the off-season semester. The combination of LHE associated with the intercollegiate athletic class and additional reassigned time shall not exceed a total of 9 LHE in the off-season semester.

The Head Coach of an intercollegiate athletic team will receive an annual head coaching stipend of \$12,500 for the duties required of head coaches during the season of sport, such as team competitions, travel, and recruitment.

If a unit member is the Head Coach of more than one intercollegiate sport and those sports compete in different semesters, then the Head Coach will receive an additional head coaching stipend of \$12,500. No Head Coach shall be awarded more than two head coaching stipends per academic year. No additional LHE shall be received by the Head Coach for the extra head coaching assignment. Unit member acceptance of an additional head coaching assignment shall only occur by mutual agreement between the unit member and the college administration.

#### 6.8.2 Assistant Coaches

Assistant Coaching Load: The supervising administrator in consultation with the Head Coach shall determine if an athletic team requires Assistant Coaches and the number of assistant coaching positions needed. Each assistant coaching position will receive 6.50 LHE during the semester that the sport competes in-season, 2 LHE during the semester that the sport is off-season, and 1 LHE during the summer or intersession term directly preceding the semester that the sport competes in-season. Assistant coaching positions for the sport of basketball will include 1 LHE assigned during the intersession term. Assistant coaching positions are considered to be non-instructional positions receiving reassigned LHE compensated at the non-teaching unit member rate (36 work hours per LHE).

At the discretion of the Head Coach, the position of Assistant Coach may be split between multiple individuals with each individual compensated a designated portion of the position's assigned LHE.

All LHE assignments for assistant coaching positions shall be clearly communicated prior to starting the assistant coaching assignment.

## 6.8.3 Athletics Coach Rehire Rights

Part-time unit members' assignments to coach an intercollegiate sport, related to intercollegiate sport sections, and/or specifically connected to intercollegiate coaching duties cannot be used to establish priority for rehire eligibility for future teaching or athletic coaching assignments.

# 6.9 <u>COACHING ACADEMIC (NON-ATHLETIC) TEAMS (e.g., FORENSICS, MODEL UNITED NATIONS)</u>

6.9.1 In addition to the LHE associated with each non-athletic team's class, an Academic (Non-Athletic) Coach will receive 2.0 LHE of additional reassigned time per semester for coaching. Non-athletic coaches shall receive a minimum stipend of at least \$3,000.00 per semester, upon review and approval by the area vice president. Considerations in deciding upon the stipend amount will include the number of students involved, length of the competitive season, and number of competitive events while in-season.

#### 6.10 <u>INSTRUCTION IN LANGUAGES OTHER THAN ENGLISH</u>

6.10.1 Unit members not typically required by minimum qualifications for their assignment to provide instruction in a language other than English shall not be required to teach a course in a language other than English.

- 6.10.2 Unit members who accept an assignment to teach a course not typically taught in a language other than English (e.g. Modern Language courses) shall receive a \$500 stipend for teaching the course in a language other than English.
- 6.10.3 Observation of courses taught in languages other than English shall be conducted by a discipline expert (or discipline expert in a related field) who speaks that language fluently.

## 6.11 **REDUCED WORKLOAD PROGRAM**

- 6.11.1 The District permits full-time unit members who are at least age 55 to participate in the Reduced Workload Program in accordance with RSCCD Board Policy 7348 and applicable laws including California Education Code Sections 22713, 87483, and California Government Code Section 20900. Full-time unit members who meet the requirements of this article and all applicable Education and Government Codes may reduce their contract from full-time to a percentage of contract load equal to or greater than 50% while continuing to earn state retirement system service credit as if the unit member had been employed on a full-time basis.
- 6.11.2 Participation in the Reduced Workload Program is limited to a maximum of five (5) years and shall not extend beyond the end of the academic year during which the unit member reaches their 70th birthday. Retirement is mandatory at the end of the unit member's participation in the Reduced Workload Program.
- 6.11.3 Eligibility requirements for participation in the Reduced Workload Program include:
  - 1. The unit member must be fifty-five (55) years of age or older prior to participation in the Reduced Workload Program.
  - 2. The unit member must have been employed full-time in a position requiring membership in an appropriate California state retirement system for at least ten (10) years prior to participation in the Reduced Workload Program.
  - 3. The unit member must have been employed full-time in a faculty position within the District for a minimum of 5 years immediately preceding the reduction in workload without a break in service. For purposes of this section, sabbatical and other approved leaves of absence will not constitute a break in service. However, time spent on sabbatical or other approved leaves of absence will not be used in computing the five (5) year and ten (10) year full-time service requirements.
- 6.11.4 The unit member shall receive a salary that is the pro rata share of the salary they would have received had they remained in full-time employment and shall retain all other rights and benefits as if they had remained in full-time employment. When the unit member works less than a 100% full-time contract assignment, the amount

- of accumulated sick leave will vary in direct proportion to the percent of full-time employment.
- 6.11.5 A unit member whose contract has been reduced under this article shall contribute to the appropriate retirement system by payroll deduction the amount they would have contributed had they continued employment on a full-time contract basis. The District shall contribute to the appropriate retirement system the amount required by law.
- 6.11.6 The full-time unit member must submit the intent to participate in the Reduced Workload Program, to Human Resources no later than February 1 of the academic year immediately preceding the year the Reduced Workload program commences and specify the duration from one (1) to five (5) years of the requested Reduction in Workload as well as the requested percentage of full-time load that the unit member wishes to be assigned over the duration of the agreement. The District in conjunction with CalSTRS shall certify the unit member's eligibility for participation in the Program.
- 6.11.7 Reduced Workload agreements take effect at the beginning of the district's academic year.
- 6.11.8 A unit member may withdraw their Reduced Workload application at any time up until the signed completion of the contract document.
- 6.11.9 A Reduced Workload Agreement can be revoked only by mutual consent of the unit member and the District.
- 6.11.10 The duration length and/or the full-time percentage of assigned load identified within the original Reduced Workload Agreement may be changed only by mutual agreement between the unit member and the District. A unit member whose workload has been reduced under this article may request to change the duration or the percentage of reduction in contract by submitting a written notice to the College President or designee and shall take effect at the beginning of the next academic year.
- 6.11.11 Nothing in this article shall prohibit a unit member from requesting a reduction in contract workload outside of the provisions of this article or prohibit the District from granting such a request.

## 6.12 INCENTIVE FOR EARLY NOTICE OF RETIREMENT OR RESIGNATION

Any full-time unit member who notifies the District of their intent to retire or voluntarily resign at the end of the current academic year by September 1 will receive a \$500 early notification bonus. Payment will be made with the first available payroll following the unit member's retirement or resignation date.

## 6.13 **DUAL ENROLLMENT**

As long as the Dual Enrollment program continues, the District and Association agree to the following provisions:

#### 6.13.1 General Provisions

- 1. Unit members will not be required to adjust their class content, programs, assignments, presentations, etc., to accommodate subjects and/or topics that any K-12 sites and/or its administration deems inappropriate for its students to ensure that the unit members' classes are taught as they would be as if the classes were being taught at Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College. The District will reference Article 12 of this contract, regarding Academic Freedom for unit members.
- 2. Unit members will not be required to do anything above and beyond teaching in the classroom and/or what they would normally do in and/or for a class that meets at Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College. This includes requiring unit-members to attend and/or participate in extracurricular activities, assemblies, etc.
- 3. The current Learning Management System (LMS) adopted by RSCCD will be the required web-based learning management system for all online and in-person instruction that all unit members will use and which will be required of all K-12 sites participating in the Dual Enrollment program with Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College. Unit members should maintain their LMS gradebooks regularly to ensure students have access to the most current information.
- 4. Unit members are required to provide grades only to students and the Admissions and Records office of Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College. Unit members are not required to provide progress reports and grades to the K-12 sites; their administrators, employees, and/or staff; parents of students; etc.

#### 6.13.2 Full-time unit members:

- 1. Unit members will not be required to accept any dual enrollment assignments at any K-12 sites to make their contract load.
- 2. Dual Enrollment Instructional assignments can be taught as either part of a full-time unit member's load or as overload.
- 3. To accommodate K-12 site students, teaching full-time unit members will hold at least one-half hour of their five required student office hours online outside of school hours.

4. Non-instructional unit members, including but not limited to counselors, who provide services at the K-12 sites will have the option to do so as part of their agreed upon, scheduled load with the option of additional hours to be completed outside of load.

## 6.13.3 Part-time unit members and K-12 Site Instructors:

- 1. The hiring of part-time unit members from any K-12 sites will follow the same processes established for all part-time unit members.
- 2. K-12 site instructors who are teaching RSCCD classes on a K-12 site during their K-12 district's assignment must sign an instructional service agreement ("ISA") with RSCCD.
  - a. A K-12 site teacher teaching a college course under an ISA shall remain an employee of the K-12 site and will not become a District unit member by virtue of that assignment.
  - b. Salary and benefits for the K-12 site instructor teaching under an ISA are the responsibility of the employing K-12 district.
  - c. The District shall maintain academic oversight of the course: the K-12 site instructor will follow the approved Course Outline of Record, assessments, and grading policies of the College.
  - d. The K-12 site instructor shall receive a college orientation and necessary professional development before and during the assignment.

#### 6.13.4 Scheduling

- 1. The academic calendar negotiated between FARSCCD and the District will supersede any K-12 school site's academic calendar, unless an exception is requested by the instructor of record.
- 2. The established departmental course scheduling procedures, including the selection of classes, will apply. If there is more than one unit member within a teaching discipline or counseling area who is qualified to provide services at a Dual Enrollment site, then the scheduling of classes will be based upon seniority.
  - a. Full-time unit members who qualify to provide services at the Dual Enrollment sites and wish to do so will have priority over part-time unit members for schedules.

- b. The part-time unit member priority list will be considered when assigning Dual Enrollment services to part-time unit members.
- 3. In cases where a dual enrollment course is structured as a continuous offering across two academic terms, the District may, at its discretion, designate the course as a single cross-term section for part-time unit members. When approved in advance, and provided that the instructional assignment in each term does not exceed the statutory 67% load limit, the total instructional hours for the course may be used to calculate and assign a proportionate load across the academic year. This provision is intended solely for part-time unit members and shall not be construed as an entitlement or precedent. Full-time unit members' load for cross-term courses shall continue to be governed by existing workload provisions, including contract extension days when instruction occurs outside of the negotiated academic calendar.

## 6.13.5 Training and Regulations

- 1. Unit members who provide services at the K-12 site will be required to complete mandated reporter training and will be compensated at the hourly non-teaching rate for that training. The District will provide a process by which to submit the documentation for the training payment.
- 2. Any trainings, orientations, workshops, or meetings required of unit members to prepare to teach at, or during the course of teaching an assignment at a K-12 site, by either the District or any of the K-12 sites will be compensated at the current hourly non-teaching rate for the actual number of hours that the meeting takes place, rounded to the nearest quarter hour, or for one hour, whichever is greater. The District will provide a process by which to approve, document and submit professional development hours for the extra duty payment.
- 3. Unit members who provide services at the K-12 sites are required to comply with established laws, regulations, and rules provided to them governing K-12 sites.
- 4. Unit members who provide services at the high schools will abide by District policies regarding disclosure of academic information in observance of FERPA and other applicable state and federal laws.
- 5. K-12 site instructors who have signed an ISA shall receive a college orientation and necessary professional development before and during the assignment.

## 6.13.6 Travel and Mileage

- 1. Unit members who are required to travel between Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College and any of the K-12 sites for meetings, workshops, reviews, class meetings, etc., will be compensated based on the current IRS mileage rate times the designated mileage between Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College and the K-12 sites per trip.
  - a. If the unit member is required to return to Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College or the District office after their class at the K-12 site to teach another class or perform other required District duties, the unit member is entitled to mileage compensation for the round trip or double the mileage above.
  - b. A unit member who travels only between their home and a K-12 site will not be entitled to compensation for their mileage.
- 2. If a unit member is assigned work hours on the same day at different work sites, the assignments must be scheduled with a passing period that is at least equal to twice the average travel time, or one (1) hour, whichever is greater. Unit members are entitled to reimbursement for travel expenses for mileage between sites on the same day.
- 3. The unit member will keep a trip log with dates and mileage, supported by documentation, which will be turned in at the end of each month for mileage compensation.
- 4. The District will provide a process by which to submit the documentation for the mileage reimbursement. The District will reference section 6.4.2 of this contract, which outlines the process by which to submit the documentation for the mileage reimbursement.

#### 6.13.7 Evaluations:

- 1. Formal and/or informal student feedback provided to K-12 site administration, districts, and/or staff will not be used for regular District evaluations of the unit member's performance, which is outlined in Article 8 of this contract.
- 2. K-12 site instructors who have signed and ISA will be treated as part-time unit members: subject to class observations and student evaluations per Article 8 (Evaluation).

If during the course of the Dual Enrollment program any issue arises impacting the working conditions of unit members under this agreement,

not expressly covered in this Article, the District agrees to notify the Association in order to negotiate the issue.

## 6.14 **INMATE EDUCATION**

As long as the Inmate Education Program continues, the District and FARSCCD agree to the following provisions:

#### 6.14.1 General Provisions

Unless as part of a job announcement or a designated reassignment as accepted by the unit member:

- 1. Unit members will not be required to accept any inmate education assignments at jails and/or prisons of the California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation ("CDCR sites") to make their contract load.
- 2. Inmate education assignments can be taught as either part of a full-time unit member's load or as overload.
- 2. Non-instructional unit members, including but not limited to counselors, who provide services at CDCR sites will have the option to do so as part of their agreed upon, scheduled load with the option of additional hours to be completed outside of load.

#### 6.14.2 Scheduling

- 1. The established departmental course scheduling procedures, including the selection of classes, will apply.
- 2. If there is more than one unit member within a teaching discipline or counseling area who is qualified to provide services at CDCR sites, then the scheduling of classes will be based upon seniority.
- 3. Full-time unit members who qualify to provide services at CDCR sites and wish to do so will have priority over part-time unit members for schedules. Additionally, the part-time unit member priority list will be considered when assigning inmate education services to part-time unit members.
- 4. Unit members will receive a one-time stipend of \$500 at the course conclusion for each new course they teach in this new environment to compensate them for the additional time spent adapting pedagogy and delivery modality to meet the needs of this student population. The one-time stipend amount will be reviewed at the end of the first contract year.

## 6.14.3 Training and Regulations

- 1. Unit members who provide services at CDCR sites will be required to complete mandated reporter training as needed and will be compensated at the hourly non-teaching rate for that training.
- 2. Prior to beginning their assignments, all unit members who have chosen to provide services at CDCR sites will be required to participate in any training, orientations, workshops, or meetings as needed and upon supervisor approval, to prepare to teach at, or during the course of teaching an assignment at CDCR sites, by either the District or any of the CDCR sites. Those training, orientations, workshops, or meetings will be compensated at the current hourly non-teaching rate for the actual number of hours that the meeting takes place, rounded to the nearest quarter hour, or for one hour, whichever is greater.
- 3. Unit members who provide services are required to comply with established laws, regulations, and rules governing the CDCR sites. This includes criminal records search, background checks, and limitations on the types of materials that they may bring into the CDCR sites.
- 4. Additionally, unit members will not be required to adjust their class content, programs, assignments, presentations, etc., to accommodate subjects and/or topics that the CDCR and/or CDCR site administrators deem inappropriate for its inmates. However, while maintaining academic freedom, the unit member may agree to adjust their course content if the unit member deems appropriate.
- 5. CDCR requests for course modifications will be directed to the unit member's RSCCD supervising administrator.
- 6. Unit members who provide services at CDCR sites will abide by District policies regarding disclosure of academic information in observance of FERPA and other applicable state and federal laws.
- 7. Unit members are required to provide grades only to students and the Admissions and Records office of Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College. Unit members are not required to provide progress reports and grades to CDCR sites; their administrators, employees, and/or staff; family of students; etc.
- 8. The District will provide a process by which to submit the documentation for the training payment and by which to approve, document and submit professional development hours for the extra duty payment.

## 6.14.4 Travel and Mileage

- 1. Unit members who are required to travel between Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College and any CDCR sites for meetings, workshops, reviews, class meetings, etc., will be compensated based on the current IRS mileage rate times the designated mileage between Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College and CDCR sites per trip. If the unit member is required to return to Santa Ana College or Santiago Canyon College or the District office after their class at CDCR sites to teach another class or perform other required District duties, the unit member is entitled to mileage compensation for the round trip or double the mileage above. A unit member who travels only between their home and CDCR sites will not be entitled to compensation for their mileage. The unit member will keep a trip log with dates and mileage, supported by documentation, which will be turned in at the end of each month for mileage compensation.
- 2. If a unit member is assigned work hours on the same day at different work sites, the assignments must be scheduled with a passing period that is at least equal to twice the average travel time, or one (1) hour, whichever is greater. Unit members are entitled to reimbursement for travel expenses for mileage between sites on the same day.
- 3. Procedures required at CDCR sites may take additional time beyond the normal arrival time and departure time for typical teaching duties. Therefore, if applicable the unit member will be compensated daily in an amount equal to one half hour at the current hourly non-teaching rate regardless of the actual time taken per day. The unit member will keep track of their extra time during the semester and submit documentation to the District at the end of each month for an extra duty payment.
- 4. In the unlikely event of a lockdown or other similar situation requiring the teaching unit member to remain at CDCR sites beyond the time allotted to the class session, the unit member will be compensated by the District for the additional time at the current hourly non-teaching rate.
- 5. Unit members who provide services at CDCR sites other than instructional services and who are required to stay at the prisons and/or jails for a period of time that would increase their total work day to greater than seven or eight hours (depending on the classification of the unit member), shall be compensated for that extra time at the current hourly non-instructional rate.
- 6. The unit member shall keep track of any such extra time and mileage during the semester and submit the documentation to the District at the end of each month for an extra duty payment and mileage reimbursement.

- 7. The District will provide a process by which to submit the documentation for the mileage reimbursement. The District will reference section 6.4.2 of this contract, which outlines the process by which to submit the documentation for the mileage
- 8. The District will provide a process by which to submit the documentation for the extra duty payment reimbursement.

#### 6.14.5 Evaluations:

- 1. Formal and/or informal student feedback provided to CDCR sites administration and/or staff will not be used for regular District evaluations of the unit member's performance, which is outlined in Article 8 of this contract.
- 2. CDCR officials reserve the right to terminate a unit member's service at CDCR sites at any time during a teaching or non-teaching assignment if the unit member is found to be in violation of CDCR sites' rules and regulations. Only in such cases where the cause for termination of services also violates District policies and procedures could such assignment termination be grounds for District employee discipline procedures. The unit member will be paid only for services that were provided prior to the termination.
- 3. If during the course of the Inmate Education Program any issue arises impacting the working conditions of unit members under this agreement, not expressly covered in this Article, the District agrees to notify FARSCCD to negotiate the issue.

# ARTICLE 7 SALARIES

# 7.1 <u>SALARY SCHEDULES – CONTRACT YEAR</u>

- 7.1.1 The parties agree to the institutional goal to maintain not less than ninth (9th) place in the relative rank of the tenth active step on Class VI of the 175-day salary schedule for full-time unit members. Relevant salary schedules in effect on March 1, 2028, will be reviewed by March 31, 2028, to determine relative rank. Basic Aid districts shall be excluded from the ranking determination. Any additional compensation required to maintain relative rank will be negotiated for the successor agreement. The percentage adjustment required to maintain not less than ninth (9th) place shall be figured by determining the percent increase needed to maintain relative rank at the tenth active step on Class VI and applying that same percent to each class and step.
  - A. **2025-2026 Salary**: The 2025-2026 FARSCCD unit member salary schedules will be increased by 8% effective the first day of the unit member's respective work year for 2025-2026 as defined in Article 6.1.1-Work Year.
    - **2026-2027 Salary**: The 2026-2027 FARSCCD unit member salary schedules will be increased by 3.2% effective the first day of the unit member's respective work year for 2026-2027 as defined in Article 6.1.1 Work Year.
    - **2027-2028 Salary**: The 2027-2028 FARSCCD unit member salary schedules will be increased by 3.2% effective the first day of the unit member's respective work year for 2027-2028 as defined in Article 6.1.1 Work Year.

A new schedule D, for Part-Time unit members, will be developed using the current schedule B. This salary schedule will be increased by 5% to all steps and columns (Column I, II, III, IV; Step 3, 4, 5) on the 2024–2025 unit member salary schedule, for the first day of the unit member's respective work year for 2025-2026. The salary increases proposed for 2025/26, 2026/27 and 2027/28, will be applied to Schedule D.

For purposes of implementing the salary increases, part-time unit members will be deemed to have the same work year as their respective full-time counterparts.

B. The salary schedule for full-time unit members on one hundred seventy-five (175) day contract is shown in Appendix E. The salary schedule for counselors and Health Services full-time unit members on 192-day contracts is shown in Appendix F. The salary schedule for Public Safety and

Institutional Effectiveness & Assessment Coordinators on 225-day contracts is shown in Appendix G.

- C. **Short-term Temporary Substitute** is a temporary emergency appointment, per Education Code Section 87480, for no more than 20 working days to prevent the stoppage of district business where no persons are immediately available for contract classification. Unit members so appointed are deemed temporary employees, who are employed to serve from day to day. Service by a unit member in such a temporary appointment does not count toward achieving status as a regular district employee. Such temporary substitutes shall be paid off of the Beyond Contract/Part-time Hourly Salary Schedule B.
- D. A Long-term Substitute is a temporary unit member employed for a complete semester or a year in excess of 20 days and 67% more of a full-time load, per Education Code 87481, because a unit member has been granted leave for a semester or year, or is experiencing long-term illness. The number of persons so employed must be limited to the specific need identified, as determined by the number of unit member(s) out on leave. Long-term substitutes are required to perform all of the duties of full-time unit members. As such, they shall be paid per the appropriate step and column of the Full-time Salary Schedule.
- E. A **Long-term Temporary** is a temporary unit member employed for a complete school year, per Education Code 87482, where there is an organizational need for additional faculty during a particular semester. Long-term temporary employees are required to perform all of the duties of full-time unit members. As such, they shall be paid per the appropriate step and column of the Full-time Salary Schedule.

## 7.1.2 <u>Class Placement Requirements for Initial Placement and/or Class Changes</u>

- Class I (a) Bachelor's Degree
  - (b) CTE Placement Community College Credential
- Class II (a) Master's Degree
  - (b) Bachelor's Degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
  - (c) CTE Placement Appropriate Minimum Qualifications plus one of the following:
    - (1) A.A. Degree or 65 approved semester units, plus six years approved work experience credit
    - (2) Bachelor's Degree plus three years approved work experience credit

#### Class III

- (a) Master's Degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of degree.
- (b) Bachelor's Degree plus 49 approved semester units including a Master's Degree.
- (c) CTE Placement Appropriate Minimum Qualifications plus one of the following:
  - (1) A.A. Degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit.
  - (2) Bachelor's Degree plus six years approved work experience credit.
  - (3) Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II.

#### Class IV

- (a) Master's Degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree.
- (b) Bachelor's Degree plus 64 approved semester units including a Master's Degree.
- (c) CTE Placement Appropriate Minimum Qualifications plus one of the following:
  - (1) Bachelor's Degree plus nine years approved work experience credit.
  - (2) Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III.

#### Class V

- (a) Master's Degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree.
- (b) Bachelor's Degree plus 79 approved semester units including a Master's Degree.
- (c) CTE Placement appropriate Minimum Qualifications plus one of the following:
  - (1) Bachelor's Degree plus 45 approved semester units, plus nine years approved work experience credit.
  - (2) Master's Degree plus nine years approved work experience credit.
  - (3) Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV.

#### Class VI

- (a) Master's Degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree.
- (b) Bachelor's Degree plus 94 approved semester units including a Master's Degree.
- (c) CTE Placement Appropriate Minimum Qualifications plus one of the following:

- (1) Master's Degree plus 15 approved semester units, plus nine years approved work experience credit.
- (2) Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years of approved work experience credit after placement on Class V.

Class VII (a) Doctorate Degree

#### 7.1.3 Initial Placement

## A. Class Placement

All unit members at the time of issuance of their first contract shall be placed in a class and step according to professional training and experience as established by the provisions of the schedule. All units taken after earned degrees must be related to the staff assignment to be approved. Supporting transcripts for placement beyond Class I must be submitted within forty-five (45) days after the effective date of the contract. No changes in class placement shall be made after December 31 of the unit member's first contract year except through the provisions for vocational placement and/or change of classification.

This provision includes new unit members hired as administrators. When an administrator returns to teaching, counseling, or other non-administrative assignment, the academic placement at the time of first employment will determine placement on the basic schedule. Similarly, all vocational instructors will be assigned initial academic placement to which they will revert from vocational placement if they change assignments.

A unit employee entering contract status for the first time may be granted a maximum of eight (8) years credit:

- On a year-for-year basis for full-time teaching or other academic employment. Credit shall not be given for a year's experience unless the unit member has served 75% or more of the school days of that year on a full-time teaching or other academic assignment.
- 2) On a basis of one (1) year for each twenty-four (24) lecture units or equivalent of part-time assignments. The number of years credit cannot exceed the number of years that the unit member has served in part-time assignments. For Continuing Education unit members an accumulated 504 hours of instruction, which will equal one semester of experience credit (as verified by Human Resources).

- 3) On a basis of one (1) year for each two (2) years of full-time employment (non-academic) in an activity directly related to the assigned unit member service area.
- 4) Step placement credit required in 1), 2), and 3) above cannot be earned simultaneously.

## B. <u>Career Technical Educations (CTE)</u>

The intent of CTE placement is to recognize the value of work experience as an alternative to coursework for unit members of career technical education subjects. The work experience must be directly related to the teaching assignment.

Only unit members meeting the Minimum Qualifications in designated community college CTE subjects and assigned at least 50% to CTE programs as defined in the State Plan for Career Technical Education are eligible for CTE placement.

Full-time work experience occurring within the last sixteen (16) years may be substituted for full-time teaching experience. Creditable years not used for class placement will be applied toward step placement on a one for one basis up to the maximum entry step allowable. Teaching experience shall not be combined with work experience.

## C. Military Credit

Military service in the Armed Forces of the United States which is directly related to the teaching assignment may be applied toward placement.

## D. Rehire Policy

Unit members returning to the college after an absence of not more than thirty- nine (39) months shall be placed on the schedule at the next highest step than that on which they served their last full year.

## 7.1.4 Change of Classification

This section applies to Full-time and Part-time unit members

#### A. <u>Creditable Units</u>

Credit accumulated after initial employment as a result of college level study may be used for transferring from one class to another across the salary schedule. Such credit must be for no fewer than nine (9) upper division or graduate level semester units and no more than six (6) lower division semester units except as stipulated in C.2. All units must be from a college or university that has regional accreditation. Lower division units taken by instructors in disciplines in which they normally teach must be taken at colleges or universities other than Rancho Santiago Community College District. Units must be directly related to the improvement of the instructional programs.

# B. Work Experience

Credit equivalency for work experience may be earned by instructors through approved employment, subject to administrative approval. The appropriate Department chair, where one is designated, will make initial review and approval prior to administrative review and approval. (See REGULATIONS, Item 7, below).

# C. <u>Regulations</u>

Method and regulations governing such changes of salary class are as follows:

- 1. All work taken for change of salary class or vocational placement shall be completed by September 15 of the year in which the change becomes effective.
- 2. No more than six (6) lower division semester units may be used for each change of class including Rancho Santiago District Staff Development course units. The six (6) unit maximum for lower division course units may be waived (1) for vocational, computer applications, or foreign language programs in which upper division course work is not available or appropriate; (2) in approved retraining programs; or (3) when credit equivalency for work experience is applied. The waiver requires prior approval by the supervising administrator and the College President. The amount of credit for correspondence course, seminars, or any other course work of less duration than a regular semester, quarter, or summer session will be subject to the recommendation of the supervising administrator.
- 3. All transcripts showing evidence of work taken toward change of salary class must be on file with the Human Resources Office not later than October 15 of the year in which the change of salary class is to take place.

Unit members will receive confirmation of receipt and completion of necessary documentation for column advancement by November 30th, or sooner, when possible.

- 4. When an earned doctorate is involved, the degree shall be recognized for salary credit when the institution granting the degree certifies that all requirements were met prior to October 15 of the year in which the change of salary class is to take place, and such certification is on file in the Human Resources Office.
- 5. Changes of salary class shall be presented to the Board of Trustees not later than the second meeting in December.
- 6. A grade of C, or better, must be earned in all course work submitted for salary advancement.
- 7. Credit equivalency for work experience may be obtained on the basis of equating fifty-four (54) hours of approved employment to one (1) semester unit of course credit. Such work experience credit must be combined with at least five (5) semester units of course credit to advance to a higher class.

## D. Non-course Professional Work and Activity

Non-course professional work and activity, as defined below, may be used for advancement to Class II, III, IV, V, or VI on the current salary schedule, but may not be used for advancement to Class VII (Doctorate). Applications seeking credit for non-course professional work and activity is to be made within the time lines described in Section 7.1.4.C above. Non-course work shall apply for class advancement only and not for initial placement at time of hiring. In the areas to follow, all items are to be documented by the applicant on the District approved forms. Applications for credit are to be approved by the appropriate College President or designee. These units apply only to full-time credit or non-credit tenured unit members. A unit member may accumulate a lifetime maximum of thirty (30) units for all research and creative activity and professional activities.

Applications for approval of non-course professional activity units will be returned to the Human Resources Office, which will forward the applications to the District Review Committee. The review committee comprised of one representative from the Association, one representative from the Academic Senate, and one representative from the administration shall review all applications and determine the number of units to be awarded for each activity.

## 1. Research and Creative Activity

a. An original article in the unit member's present job description or field of teaching that is published in a professional journal may earn 0.5 to 1.5 units, depending

upon the scope. The journal must have an editorial board that reviews and selects articles for publications.

- b. An original published document or major revision of an original published document (e.g., textbook, workbook, or manual) for classroom use may earn one (1) to five (5) units, depending upon scope. This option does not apply to regular classroom materials such as course syllabi, outlines, and handouts.
- c. A book or text in the unit member's present field may earn one (1) to five (5) units depending upon scope. Self-published books shall not be considered except where they have been in evident use and benefit to the students in the classroom.
- d. An original score and/or published lyrics may earn 0.5 to three (3) units depending upon scope. Such music should be of evident use in the classroom and must be copyrighted.
- e. Other products of research or creative activity which show evidence of professional growth on the part of the unit member may earn from 0.5 to three (3) units depending upon scope.

## 2. Professional Activities

- a. The presentation of a scholarly paper or other original professional material relevant to the unit member's present field of employment at a conference, workshop, seminar or gallery showing, which shows evident research and is not merely extemporaneous in nature, may earn 0.5 to one (1) units depending upon scope.
- b. Holding a position of leadership on the association's Executive Board or the Academic Senate or being chair or co-chair of District councils or committees for three (3) or more consecutive years may earn one (1) to three (3) units for each year.

#### 7.1.5 <u>Longevity Steps</u>

Longevity steps will be awarded to eligible District unit members. Eligibility for the steps will be based on the following:

Step A – Member is eligible after three (3) years on Class VI or Class VII

at the Maximum step 16.

Step B – Member is eligible three (3) years after placement on Step A.

Step C – Member is eligible three (3) years after placement on Step B.

# 7.2 <u>BEYOND CONTRACT ASSIGNMENTS FOR COLLEGE CREDIT</u> INSTRUCTORS

Extra pay assignment beyond the regular contract load during the fall and spring semesters shall be paid at the established lecture hour equivalent (LHE) or fraction thereof; as shown on Salary Schedule "B". Initial placement for the unit members is at step one (1), with advancements occurring every two (2) semesters of beyond contract work.

Laboratory hours shall be compensated at 0.90 of a lecture hour. The lab rate will be increased to 1.0 LHE for extensive preparation courses (anthropology, geography, nursing and hard sciences) using proposed criteria and process. (See Appendix N)

Extra pay and part-time assignments in health services, DSPS, counseling, and library shall be paid on an hourly basis at 0.85 of the LHE rate.

# 7.3 **SALARY SCHEDULES**

#### 7.3.1 Schedule A - Intersession & Summer

- A. Schedule A is for summer and intersession work and applies to full-time unit members who were under contract the academic year preceding summer school.
- B. Placement on Summer Salary Schedule A is according to Class and Step placement as of the Spring semester immediately preceding summer school.

#### C. Courses:

- 1. Lecture Hours Equivalent (LHE) = 18 times the hourly rate except for counselors and librarians.
- 2. One (1) hour for Extensive Preparation Laboratory = 1.0 Lecture Hour;
- 3. One (1) hour for Laboratory = 0.90 Lecture Hour;
- 4. High feedback, writing intensive compositions courses shall receive an additional 0.5 LHE per section.

#### 7.3.2 Schedule B – Beyond Contract

Salary Schedule B applies to:

A. Beyond contract work for full-time unit members during fall and spring semesters.

#### B. Courses:

- 1. Lecture Hours Equivalent (LHE) = 18 times the hourly rate except for counselors and librarians.
- 2. One (1) hour for Extensive Preparation Laboratory = 1.0 Lecture Hour;
- 3. One (1) hour for Laboratory = 0.90 Lecture Hour;
- 4. High feedback, writing intensive compositions courses shall receive an additional 0.5 LHE per section.

Hourly assignments in health services, DSPS, library, and counseling shall be paid at the rate of 0.85 of a Lecture Hour.

### 7.3.3 <u>Schedule C – Continuing Education – Summer</u>

All continuing education full-time unit members employed for summer session to teach shall be paid according to Salary Schedule C.

#### 7.3.4 <u>Schedule D - Part-Time Unit Members</u>

Effective Fall 2025, part-time unit members will be placed on Salary Schedule D utilizing the criteria in 7.1.3. Initial placement for the unit members is at step one (1), with advancements occurring every two (2) semesters of work.

Schedule D applies to work during the regular year, summer and winter intersession and includes time for class preparation.

For the transition in Fall 2025, current unit members will be placed on the same column/step as they had previously occupied on Schedule B.

Part-time unit members will be afforded the opportunity for class change as outlined in 7.1.4.

#### 7.4 DISTANCE EDUCATION TRAINING – COMPENSATION

Unit members who are employed by RSCCD and are required to complete future Online Teaching Certification (SAC) or The Online Teaching Certification (SCC) or @ONE Online Teaching and Design Certification [herein referred to as Certifications] after April 1, 2024, in order to teach Distance Education are eligible to receive compensation in one of the following ways:

A. Unit members will be able to apply some or all hours accrued during Certifications towards meeting their professional development (i.e., Flex)

requirement. However, hours accrued in excess of a unit member's professional development requirement will not carry over to the next fiscal year, and/or towards column advancement and will be also paid a stipend of \$3000 OR

- B. Unit members who complete future Certifications may receive 2.5 CEUs which may be used toward column advancement.
- C. The total amount of stipends paid in an academic year cannot exceed \$102,000 at Santa Ana College, unless additional funds are authorized by the College President.
- D. The total amount of stipends paid in an academic year cannot exceed \$51,000 at Santiago Canyon College, unless additional funds are authorized by the College President.

# 7.5 **OTHER PLACEMENT**

#### Academic Personnel

Unit members employed in non-teaching positions which are fully funded through federal or state special project funds may also be issued extended contracts under the provisions of this section.

# Contract 1 and Contract 2 College Unit Members

Contract 1 and Contract 2 College unit members employed on a partial contract basis shall be paid according to the number of lecture hour equivalents divided by 36.

#### Substitutes and Special Lecturers

Substitutes shall be paid at an hourly rate equivalent to the established lecture and laboratory rate. The hourly rate for other non-teaching substitutes shall be 0.5 the substitute lecture rate.

#### 7.6 TRAVELALLOWANCE

All schedules include travel allowance, except for specific cases, as provided for in the Policy re: Authorization for Mileage Reimbursement adopted by the Board of Trustees and currently in effect. Wherever travel allowances are approved, the rate paid for mileage shall be at the maximum rate allowed by the IRS.

# 7.7 **REPAYMENT OF OVERPAYMENT**

In the event of an overpayment to a unit member, the District agrees to make every effort to work out an acceptable repayment plan with the affected unit members. Any payroll

error resulting in insufficient payment for a unit member shall be corrected, and a supplemental check issued, within five (5) days after discovery of the error or the unit member provides notice to the payroll department, whichever occurs first.

# ARTICLE 8 EVALUATION

#### 8.1 **PURPOSE OF EVALUATION**

- A. The excellence of the institution depends on the quality of its unit members. Unit member evaluation is a method of addressing performance. Meaningful evaluations can enhance unit member performance and promote excellence by providing positive reinforcement, constructive advice, and specific recommendations for improvement and professional growth. The evaluation process will follow the suggested evaluation plan, timetable, and Evaluation Appendices.
- B. During the semester in preparation for participation, an evaluation team training shall be scheduled for all evaluators, and attendance is mandatory every three (3) years. The purpose of the training is to give the evaluators the skills and knowledge necessary to provide the unit member being evaluated with positive reinforcement, constructive advice, and specific recommendations for improvement or professional growth during the evaluation cycle. Training is developed and provided by the Academic Senate, FARSCCD, and the District.

### 8.2 **DEFINITIONS**

#### 8.2.1 Unit member definitions

- A. Tenured Unit Member: Employment with tenure status. (Associate and full Professor)
- B. Probationary Unit Member: Employee who has not been granted tenure but has been hired to work full-time. Probationary unit members are employed in one of three categories:
  - i. Contract I Employment during the first academic year.
  - ii. Contract II Employment during the second academic year.
  - iii. Contract III Employment during the third and fourth academic year.
- C. Temporary Unit Member: Employee, other than as a substitute, hired for a specific assignment of not less than one semester and no longer than a complete school year or hired as a unit member in a program conducted under contract in a categorically funded project. Will be evaluated using the process for Probationary unit members.
- D. Non-Contract Unit Member (a.k.a. Part-time/Adjunct): Employee serving on an hourly basis with no contract with the Board.

E. Substitute Unit Member: Employee filling a position of a regular employed person absent from service.

#### 8.2.2 <u>Unit Members will be assigned the following titles:</u>

- A. Instructor: Non-contract (Part-Time/Adjunct) and substitute unit member.
- B. Assistant Professor: Permanent tenure-track (Contract I, II, III, unit member from hire date to approval of tenure), Temporary (non-tenure track) unit member, and/or Categorical and specially funded unit members.
- C. Associate Professor: Upon district approval of tenure status.
- D. Professor: Upon completion of five (5) years tenured service at RSCCD.

#### 8.2.3 Evaluation Teams

- A. Probationary Tenure Review Committee (PTRC) The PTRC will be comprised of two (2) tenured unit members (assigned by the department chair, or if necessary, in consultation with the Academic Senate President), one of whom will be identified as the co-chair and the supervising administrator (committee co-chair).
- B. Tenured Review Committee (TRC) The TRC will be comprised of the supervising administrator and a tenured colleague from the unit member's department/discipline/division, chosen by the department chairperson or by the Academic Senate President in the absence of a department chairperson. If the department chairperson is the evaluee, the Academic Senate President will select the peer. An additional tenured unit member may be added to the TRC at the request of the unit member being evaluated.
- C. Non-Contract (Part-time, Adjunct) Review Team (NCRT) The NCRT will be comprised of the department chair or full-time unit member designee, and the supervising administrator.

#### 8.3 **EVALUATION COMPONENTS/DOCUMENTS**

- A. The following documents will be utilized to complete the unit member evaluations. The district approved documents utilized in the evaluation process will be dependent on the unit member's hiring status (non-contract, probationary, tenured, etc.) within the district.
- B. With the exception of student evaluation and colleague evaluation surveys, no anonymous oral or written material shall be used in the formal evaluation process in any form; nor shall such materials be referenced in any evaluation record.

- C. Additional evaluations of unit members may be made at the request of the supervising administrator or the unit member. If an additional evaluation is requested, the supervising administrator will consult with the department chair involved. The activities for the additional evaluations may include, but not be limited to, classroom or online visitation(s), peer review processes, and student reviews.
- D. The supervising administrator, under direction of the appropriate vice-president, is responsible for overseeing the evaluation process on behalf of the Board. The supervising administrator will oversee the collection of all evaluation materials and will prepare the annual evaluation report, which will include a recommendation regarding the continued employment of the unit member.
- E. The unit member being evaluated is expected to sign all documents. The signature does not necessarily indicate agreement with the report.
- F. Instructional, Worksite and Distance Education observation forms include the following evaluation delineations:
  - a. Outstanding unit member demonstrates teaching/student support services that equal or exceed(s) current best practices in multiple areas.
  - b. Meets Expectations unit member demonstrates teaching/student support services that reflect(s) best practices.
  - c. Needs Improvement unit member demonstrates teaching/student support services that does not reflect(s) best practices and requires improvement.
  - d. Unsatisfactory unit member demonstrates teaching/student support services that is well below best practices and requires significant improvement.

# 8.3.1 <u>SELF-EVALUATIO</u>N: PORTFOLIO

The full-time unit member will compile a self-evaluation portfolio which will include a written self-evaluation indicating the unit member's perceived strengths and/or areas for improvement.

The Portfolio should include examples of:

- Class materials (sample syllabi, assignments, etc.) when applicable.
- Campus involvement and institutional service.
- Examples of actions you have taken to improve understanding of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility (DEIA) to enhance the educational experience for students.
- Professional development.
- Worksite presentation materials, promotional materials, etc.

• Other departmental, discipline, community, or industry related contributions.

#### 8.3.2 STUDENT REVIEWS

Student reviews allow students with an opportunity to provide feedback related to unit member performance in the classroom or at their worksite whether online or in-person. The student may provide both scores and narrative feedback.

- A. Each semester, the supervising administrator will ensure student reviews are initiated for all of the unit member's classes/worksites. This may be done more frequently at the discretion of the administrator, the department chair/designee, or by request of the unit member.
- B. The unit member will bring student reviews to the class being evaluated. A student will be identified to proctor the evaluations while the unit member leaves the classroom.
- C. For Instructional unit members, student reviews will be completed the approved district form no later than the halfway point of the course (e.g. by the eighth [8th] week of sixteen [16]-week course, the fourth [4th] week of an eight [8]-week course, etc.).
- D. For Counselors/Health Services/DSPS unit members, student reviews will be completed using the approved district form given to a random sample of students selected from appointments and walk-ins between the third (3) and eighth (8) week of each semester.
- E. For Librarian unit members, student reviews will be completed using the approved district form for the four weeks between the eighth (8th) and thirteenth (13th) weeks of the semester.
- F. Student narrative comments will be typed, unless completed electronically, to preserve anonymity and will be included in the evaluation record. Identical responses may be tabulated and not retyped.
- G. For Online Instruction, the Student Online Course Evaluation Survey Form will be utilized.
- H. When reviewing student reviews, the total number of students participating in the evaluation process will not be a basis of unit member performance.

#### 8.3.3 INSTRUCTIONAL/WORKSITE OBSERVATION REPORT

Unit member peers and/or the dean/supervising administrator observe unit member performance in the instructional/worksite and provide constructive feedback related to unit member performance whether online or in-person.

- A. The criteria for instructional/worksite observations may include but may not be limited to the following (See the appendix for the evaluation form to be used). The unit member:
  - 1. Is well prepared to teach.
  - 2. Provides organized and effective delivery of instruction.
  - 3. Is courteous and engaged.
  - 4. Encourages student participation.
  - 5. Provides instruction consistent with the Course Outline of Record.
  - 6. Makes effective use of teaching aids and materials, including visual, audio and various modalities.
  - 7. Observes appropriate safety protocols, as applicable.
  - 8. Demonstrates respect for students in general, creating a learning environment that is conducive to learning, setting an atmosphere of trust and sensitivity.
  - 9. Conveys professionalism and civility.

#### B. Observation timeframe:

- 1. For in-person classes, observations are typically conducted for 45 to 90 minutes, depending on the length of the class session.
- 2. For online classes, access is provided to the evaluator over a seven (7) day period.
- 3. For non-instructional unit member worksites, observations are typically conducted for 45 to 90 minutes.
- C. For Online and Hybrid classes, the Distance Education Classroom Observation and Evaluation form will be utilized.
- D. For counselors, librarians, and other non-instructional unit members, evaluations must include observation of unit member performance in the area of primary responsibility as specified in her/his/their job description; a classroom observation should be included when applicable.

# 8.3.4 COLLEAGUE CONSULTATION MEMO

Unit member colleagues who will consult as part of Option 2 or Option 3 for a tenured unit member will utilize this form to provide constructive feedback related to unit member performance.

A. Issues related to the unit member's normal assignment will be included in the memo so that pertinent information may be included in the Summary Evaluation (e.g., counseling strategies, textbooks, course overviews, handouts, exams, teaching techniques, daily assignments, classroom assessment techniques, etc.)

#### 8.3.5 COLLEAGUE SURVEYS

Colleague Surveys allow unit members, classified professionals, administrators and professional colleagues outside of the district with an opportunity to provide feedback related to unit member's professional performance. The colleagues provide both scores and narrative feedback.

- A. For Probationary unit members, the supervising administrator will conduct an evaluation survey of all full-time unit members of the probationary unit member's department, plus other appropriate unit members and staff who work with the unit member as suggested by the PTRC, peer evaluators, or the unit member. The format and procedure approved by the District will be used. Anonymity of narrative comments will be preserved and will be included in the evaluation record.
- B. Colleague surveys will be conducted and scored by the District in a uniform and consistent manner for all unit members. The average scores will exclude "not applicable" and "I don't know" answers from the denominator.

#### 8.3.6 SUMMARY EVALUATION

The Summary Evaluation allows members of the PTRC or the TRC an opportunity to take a holistic look at the performance of the unit member and provide a summarized overview of all evaluation materials and unit member portfolio including employment recommendation when appropriate.

- A. A meeting of either the PTRC or the TRC will be called to review the results of all evaluation activities.
- B. Based on the PTRC meeting, the Supervising Administrator will prepare this form, which summarizes the results of all evaluation activities and PTRC observations.
- C. This document will include the administrative summary and recommendation.
- D. The peer evaluators will have an opportunity to review and sign this form for accuracy prior to submission to the probationary unit member.
- E. The report will include, but is not limited to, the following criteria:

- 1. Competency in and delivery of subject matter
- 2. Professionalism and civility respect of colleagues, staff, and students
- 3. Contribution to the institution and/or participation in faculty/college governance, service on college committees, projects and/or supervising student organizations
- 4. Actions taken to address understanding of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility (DEIA)
- 5. Professional development
- 6. Community/industry/discipline engagement and activities
- 7. Meets workplace responsibilities

#### F. Recommendations:

- 1. For Probationary unit members, the Summary Evaluation must conclude with one of the following recommendations:
  - i. Renewal of employment contract (performance improvement plan if appropriate)
  - ii. Non-renewal of contract (Not recommended for rehire)
  - iii. Granting of Tenure
- 2. For Tenured unit members, the Summary Evaluation may conclude with the following recommendation:
  - i. Special Evaluation Recommended (faculty performance improvement plan [FPIP] should be included)

#### 8.3.7 FACULTY PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FPIP)

A Faculty Performance Improvement Plan may be created to enhance unit member performance and to promote excellence by providing positive reinforcement, constructive advice, and specific recommendations for improvement and professional growth.

- A. For any performance area in which the unit member's performance is marked as "Needs improvement" or "Unsatisfactory," an FPIP will be developed to address these deficiencies with clear areas of improvement, objectives and timelines.
- B. The Supervising Administrator will prepare this form with input from all members of the PTRC, TRC or NCRT.

- C. The unit member co-chair of the PTRC, TRC or NCRT will have an opportunity to review and sign this form for accuracy prior to submission to the unit member.
- D. The supervising administrator may rely on members of the PTRC, TRC or NCRT to monitor unit member progress toward completion of the FPIP as needed.
- E. The FPIP will be signed by the unit member, unit member co-chair and supervising administrator.
- F. If the PTRC's recommendation is to terminate employment/not rehire a probationary unit member, an FPIP will not be completed.
- G. Upon completion of the FPIP, the PTRC, TRC, or NCRT will meet to discuss the progress of the unit member. The district approved FPIP form will be completed and signed by the team.
- H. The supervising administrator will meet with the unit member to review the completed FPIP.
- I. The unit member will sign the completed FPIP form in acknowledgement of receipt of the form.

# 8.3.8 INSTITUTIONAL TENURE REVIEW FORM (ITR)

At the Institutional Tenure Review level, the parties (FARSCCD, Academic Senate President and the appropriate Vice President[s]) agree to meet collectively to review the evaluation process for the probationary unit member. At the conclusion of this meeting, the parties will sign the ITR form. Each member of the ITR has the following responsibilities based on their role:

- FARSCCD ensures that the Article 8 (Evaluation) processes and the CBA have been followed.
- Academic Senate ensures that policies and procedures of the Academic Senate in regards to academic freedom (BP/AR 4030), curriculum and evaluation (as outlined in BP/AR 2410) have been followed.
- Appropriate Vice President ensures that Board policies, Administrative Regulations, Title 5 and the CBA have been followed.

The completed ITR form will be included in the unit members tenure-track evaluation portfolio and forwarded to the Appropriate College President for review.

The ITR form will not be part of the permanent personnel file but will be maintained and managed in a confidential file in Human Resources.

# 8.4 **EVALUATION OF PROBATIONARY UNIT MEMBERS**

#### 8.4.1 PROCEDURES & TIMELINE

Probationary unit members are expected to go through a four-year tenure process, not four one-year processes. At the end of the fourth year, a decision to grant or not grant tenure will be made based on the entire four-year evaluation process, which includes all evaluation materials. In exceptional cases, tenure may be recommended in fewer than four years.

When probationary unit members have assignments in more than one department/worksite, the unit members should have observations for all departments/worksites (e.g. Counseling/Coordinating/Instruction).

The supervising administrator, under direction of the appropriate vice-president, is responsible for overseeing the evaluation process on behalf of the Board. The supervising administrator will oversee the collection of all evaluation materials and will submit all completed and signed probationary tenure review materials, which will include a recommendation regarding the continued employment of the unit member.

#### A. UNIT MEMBERS: INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. The Probationary Tenure Review Committee (PTRC) members will be determined. (Between weeks 1-2 of the semester).
- 2. The PTRC will meet to review the Probationary Tenure Review timelines and process. At this meeting, the colleague survey distribution list will be determined and a calendar for future meetings will be developed. (Week 3).
- 3. The Dean/Supervising Administrator will notify the unit member of the evaluation process and timeline including the membership of the PTRC. The unit member will provide a list of colleagues to be added to the colleague survey distribution list. (Between weeks 3-4 of the semester).
- 4. Each member of the PTRC will schedule an instructional observation. (Between weeks 5 12 of the semester).
- 5. Colleague surveys will be distributed to the agreed upon colleague survey distribution list. (Between weeks 8-11 of the semester).
- 6. Student Reviews are generated and distributed per guidelines in 8.3.2. Timelines are dependent on course scheduling modality and must be completed by the midway point of each course [e.g. by the eighth (8th) week of sixteen (16) week course, the fourth (4th) week of an eight (8) week course, etc.].
- 7. The Probationary Unit member will submit their Self Evaluation-Portfolio to the dean/supervising administrator. (Week 12).

- 8. Colleague Surveys and Student Reviews are completed, and data is compiled for the PTRC to review. (Week 13).
- 9. Each member of the PTRC will independently prepare a signed written instructional observation report on the approved Evaluation form. The observation reports will be collected by the supervising administrator and shared with the PTRC members in the collaborative development of the summary evaluation. (By week 14).
- 10. The PTRC meets to discuss the evaluation materials and compose and sign summary evaluation report and create and sign a Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (PIP), if necessary. (Between weeks 14-15).
- 11. Prior to submission of the Summary Evaluation Report/Recommendation to the appropriate vice-president, the supervising administrator will meet with the unit member to review the evaluation documents (student review results and comments, colleague survey results and comments, instructional observation reports and PTRC's summary evaluation report/recommendation, and a faculty performance improvement plan if necessary). (Between weeks 15-16).
- 12. Within three (3) working days of this meeting, the District will provide a copy of all of the evaluation documents to the unit member.
- 13. Probationary unit members may respond within fifteen (15) working days.
- 14. If the probationary unit member disagrees with the summary evaluation, the unit member shall have fifteen (15) working days from the summary evaluation meeting to submit a written response. This response shall be attached to the summary evaluation report and be sent to the appropriate vice-president for review. The response will be included in the employee's personnel file.
- 15. The Dean/supervising Administrator will make available the unit member's portfolio and tenure review materials from the current and previous years (as applicable) to the appropriate Vice-President. (Before the district closes for winter break).
- 16. The FARSCCD and Academic Senate representatives (1 representative each) will be provided with up to five (5) business days to review all evaluation documents prior to meeting with the appropriate Vice-President. The Dean/supervising administrator will make available the evaluation documents. (By the third (3rd) week of January).
- 17. The appropriate vice-president(s) will meet with representatives of FARSCCD and the Academic Senate to review the summary evaluation report, recommendations and will complete the Institutional Tenure Review Form. (By the fourth (4th) week of January).

- 18. The vice-president(s) will forward the summary reports and recommendation to the college president who will then forward the recommendation to Human Resources. (By February 15th).
- 19. The Board will take action on all tenure review recommendations by March 15th.
- 20. If warranted, an additional evaluation may be recommended or requested for the subsequent spring semester in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.3.C

# B. UNIT MEMBERS: NON-INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGMENTS (Counselors, Coordinators, Librarians, Health Services, Special Services Unit Members (e.g. DSPS Learning Specialists)

- 1. The Probationary Tenure Review Committee (PTRC) members will be determined. (Between weeks 1-2 of the semester).
- 2. The PTRC will meet to review the Probationary Tenure Review timelines and process. At this meeting, the colleague survey distribution list will be determined and a calendar for future meetings will be developed. (Week 3).
- 3. The Dean/Supervising Administrator will notify the unit member of the evaluation process and timeline including the membership of the PTRC. The unit member will provide a list of colleagues to be added to the colleague survey distribution list. (Between weeks 3-4 of the semester).
- 4. Each member of the PTRC will schedule a worksite observation. The observation of their performance should be conducted in the area of primary responsibility as specified in their job description. (Between weeks 5 -12 of the semester). Classroom observations should be included when applicable (see timeline for instructional unit members).
- 5. Colleague surveys will be distributed to the agreed upon colleague survey distribution list. The peer review process for a coordinator will include unit members working in areas served by the coordinator. (Between weeks 8-11 of the semester)
- 6. Per 8.3.2 guidelines, student reviews are generated and distributed for unit member with direct student contact using a form distributed to a random sample of 25 100 students selected from appointments and walk-ins both in person and chat/online interactions for up to a four (4) week period. (Between weeks 3-9 of the semester). Student reviews of librarians will be conducted using the approved form distributed to a random sample of 25-100 students selected from appointments and walk-ins both in person and chat/online interactions for up to a four (4) week period. (Between weeks 8-13 of the semester).

- Student reviews for non-instructional unit members who also teach, will be collected utilizing the approved instructional observation form and timeline.
- 7. The Probationary Unit member will submit their Self Evaluation-Portfolio to the dean/supervising administrator. (Week 12).
- 8. Colleague Surveys and Student Reviews are completed, and data is compiled for the PTRC to review. (Week 13).
- 9. Each member of the PTRC will independently prepare a signed written instructional/worksite observation report on the approved Evaluation form. The observation reports will be collected by the supervising administrator and shared with the PTRC members in the collaborative development of the summary evaluation. (By week 14).
- 10. The PTRC meets to discuss the evaluation materials and compose and sign summary evaluation report and create and sign a Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (FPIP), if necessary. (Between weeks 14-15).
- 11. Prior to submission of the Summary Report/Recommendation to the appropriate vice-president, the administrator will meet with the unit member to review the evaluation documents (student review results and comments, colleague survey results and comments, worksite/instructional observation reports and PTRC's summary report/recommendation, and a faculty performance improvement plan if necessary). (Between weeks 15-16).
- 12. Within three (3) working days of this meeting, the District will provide a copy of all of the evaluation documents to the unit member.
- 13. Probationary unit members may respond within fifteen (15) working days.
- 14. If the probationary unit member disagrees with the summary evaluation, the unit member shall have fifteen (15) working days from the summary evaluation meeting to submit a written response. This response shall be attached to the summary evaluation report and be sent to the appropriate vice-president for review. The response will be included in the employee's personnel file.
- 15. The Dean/supervising Administrator will make available the unit member's portfolio and tenure review materials from the current and previous years (as applicable) to the appropriate Vice-President. (Before the district closes for winter break) The Dean/supervising administrator will make available the evaluation documents.
- 16. The FARSCCD and Academic Senate representatives (1 representative each) will be provided with up to five (5) business days to review all evaluation documents prior to meeting with the appropriate Vice-President. (By the third (3rd) week of January).

- 17. The appropriate vice-president(s) will meet with representatives of FARSCCD and the Academic Senate to review the summary evaluation report, recommendations and will complete the Institutional Tenure Review Form. (By the fourth (4th) week of January).
- 18. The vice-president(s) will forward the summary reports and recommendation to the college president who will then forward the recommendation to Human Resources. (By February 15th).
- 19. The Board will take action on all tenure review recommendations by March 15th.
- 20. If warranted, an additional evaluation may be recommended or requested for the subsequent spring semester in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.3.C.

#### 8.4.2 REQUIRED DISTRICT FORMS

The forms listed below as described in 8.3 will be utilized to complete the evaluation process for probationary unit members.

# A. UNIT MEMBERS: INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. Self-Evaluation Portfolio
- 2. Student Reviews
- 3. Instructional Observations
  - i. In Person Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
  - ii. Online Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
- 4. Colleague Surveys
- 5. Summary Evaluation
- 6. Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (if necessary)
- 7. Institutional Tenure Review Form

#### B. UNIT MEMBERS: NON-INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. Self-Evaluation Portfolio
- 2. Student Reviews
  - i. Counselor/Health Services/Coordinator form
  - ii. Librarian form
- 3. Worksite Observation
- 4. Instructional Observations where applicable
  - i. In Person Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
  - ii. Online Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
- 5. Colleague Surveys
- 6. Summary Evaluation
- 7. Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (if necessary)
- 8. Institutional Tenure Review Form

# 8.5 <u>EVALUATION OF TENURED UNIT MEMBERS: INSTRUCTIONAL and NON-INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS</u>

Tenured unit members are evaluated at least once every three years in the area of their primary responsibility. The supervising administrator or designee will conduct an observation and consultation. Student reviews will be collected in all classes assigned to the unit member for inclusion in the portfolio.

#### 8.5.1 PROCEDURES & TIMELINE

By the twelfth (12th) week of the semester preceding the year of the tenured unit member's evaluation, they will select from of the following options for the peer review process and report to the supervising administrator.

The supervising administrator, under direction of the appropriate vice-president, is responsible for overseeing the evaluation process on behalf of the Board. The supervising administrator will participate in classroom evaluations, oversee the collection of all evaluation materials, and will submit all completed and signed materials in the summary evaluation.

- **OPTION 1:** A colleague from their department/discipline/division, chosen by the department chairperson, or by the Academic Senate President designee in the absence of a department chairperson will conduct a classroom visitation and subsequent consultation. If the department chairperson is the evaluee, the Academic Senate President or designee will select the peer. If the evaluee teaches an online class, the evaluation process shall include one (1) peer evaluator with experience teaching online courses or trained in online evaluation.
- OPTION 2: A colleague from their department/discipline/division, chosen by the department chairperson, or by the Academic Senate President designee in the absence of a department chairperson will meet to discuss issues related to the unit member's normal assignment and, as appropriate, include the results of student reviews, with a focus on potential areas for improvement. If the evaluee teaches an online class, the evaluation process shall include one (1) peer evaluator with experience teaching online courses or trained in online evaluation.
- **OPTION 3**: A colleague will be involved in a process combining Options 1 and 2 above. If the evaluee teaches an online class, the evaluation process shall include one (1) peer evaluator with experience teaching online courses.

The unit member has the option of adding one additional peer reviewer. Both peers will then consult with the unit member to determine the number and timing of

classroom observations, if applicable, or other evaluation elements and subsequent peer consultations.

#### 8.5.2 UNIT MEMBERS: INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. The Tenured Review Committee (TRC) members, to include the supervising manager and at least one other unit member, will be determined. (Between weeks 1-2 of the semester).
- 2. The TRC will meet to review the Tenured Review timelines and process. At this meeting a calendar for future meetings will be developed. (Week 3).
- 3. The Dean/Supervising Administrator will notify the unit member of the evaluation process and timeline. (Between weeks 3-4).
- 4. Each member of the TRC will schedule an instructional observation. If Option 2 is selected, a meeting between the unit member and colleague reviewer will be scheduled. (Between weeks 4 -12).
- 5. Student reviews are generated and distributed. Timelines are dependent on course scheduling modality and must be completed by the midway point of each course [e.g. by the eighth (8th) week of sixteen (16) week course, the fourth (4th) week of an eight (8) week course, etc.].
- 6. The Tenured Unit member will submit their Self Evaluation-Portfolio to the dean/supervising administrator. (Week 12).
- 7. Student Reviews are completed and data is compiled for the TRC to review. (Week 13).
- 8. Each member of the TRC will independently prepare a signed written instructional/worksite observation report on the approved Evaluation form, or if Option 2 or 3 is chosen, the colleague will complete and submit the Colleague Consultation Memo that may include constructive criticism to the supervising administrator. (By week 14).
- 9. The TRC meets to discuss the evaluation materials. The supervising administrator will complete the Summary Evaluation Form and create a Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (FPIP) if necessary. (Between weeks 14-15).
- 10. Prior to submission of the Summary Evaluation Report to the appropriate vice-president, the administrator will meet with the unit member to review the evaluation documents (student evaluation results and comments, Colleague Consultation Memo, Instructional Observation Reports, Summary Evaluation Report, and a FPIP if necessary). (Between weeks 15-16).
- 11. Within three (3) working days of this meeting, the District will provide a copy of all of the evaluation documents to the unit member.
- 12. If the unit member disagrees with the summary evaluation, the unit member shall have fifteen (15) working days from the consultation meeting with the dean to submit a written response. This response shall be attached to the Summary Evaluation Report and be sent to the appropriate vice-president for review. The response will be included in the employee's personnel file.

- 13. The Dean/supervising administrator will send the unit member's summary evaluation materials (as applicable) to the appropriate Vice-President prior to the end of the semester.
- 14. The vice-president(s) will forward the reports and recommendations to the college president who will then forward their final decision to Human Resources.
- 15. If warranted, an additional evaluation may be recommended or requested for the subsequent semester in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.8.

#### 8.5.3 UNIT MEMBERS: NON-INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. The Tenured Review Committee (TRC) members, to include the supervising manager and at least one other unit member, will be determined. (Between weeks 1-2 of the semester).
- 2. The TRC will meet to review the Tenured Review timelines and process. At this meeting a calendar for future meetings will be developed. (Week 3).
- 3. The Dean/Supervising Administrator will notify the unit member of the evaluation process and timeline. (Between weeks 3-4 of the semester).
- 4. Each member of the TRC will schedule a worksite observation of the unit member's primary duty. This may include counseling sessions, workshop presentations, or other duties. (NOTE: Observations need to adhere to all applicable privacy laws.) (Between weeks 5 -12 of the semester).
- 5. Student Reviews will be collected, when appropriate, from all students interacting with the unit member for a period of three (3) weeks and completed by week 11 of the semester.
- 6. The tenured unit member will submit their Self Evaluation-Portfolio to the dean/supervising administrator. (By Week 12).
- 7. Student Reviews are completed, and data is compiled for the TRC to review. (By Week 13).
- 8. Each member of the TRC will independently prepare a signed written observation report on the approved evaluation form to the supervising administrator. (By week 14).
- 9. The TRC meets to discuss the evaluation materials. The supervising administrator will complete the Summary Evaluation Form and create a Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (FPIP) if necessary. (Between weeks 14-15).
- 10. Prior to submission of the Summary Evaluation Report to the appropriate vice president, the supervising administrator will meet with the unit member to review the evaluation documents (student evaluation results and comments, worksite/instructional observation reports, Colleague Consultation Memo and Summary Evaluation Report and a FPIP if necessary). (Between weeks 15-16).
- 11. Within three (3) working days of this meeting, the District will provide a copy of all of the evaluation documents to the unit member.

- 12. If the unit member disagrees with the summary evaluation, the unit member shall have fifteen (15) working days from the summary evaluation meeting to submit a written response. This response shall be attached to the Summary Evaluation Report and be sent to the appropriate vice president for review. The response will be included in the employee's personnel file.
- 13. The Dean/supervising administrator will send the unit member's summary evaluation materials (as applicable) to the appropriate Vice-President prior to the end of the semester.
- 14. The vice-president(s) will forward their recommendations to the college president who will then forward their final decision to Human Resources.
- 15. If warranted, an additional evaluation may be recommended or requested for the subsequent spring semester in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.8.

#### 8.5.4 REQUIRED DISTRICT FORMS

The forms listed below as described in 8.3 will be utilized to complete the evaluation process for tenured unit members.

#### A. UNIT MEMBERS: INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. Self-Evaluation Portfolio
- 2. Student Reviews
- 3. Instructional Observations, as applicable
  - i. In Person Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
  - ii. Distance Education Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
- 4. Colleague Consultation Memo with plans for continued improvement (if Option 2 or 3 was selected)
- 5. Summary Evaluation Report
- 6. Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (if necessary)

#### B. UNIT MEMBERS: NONINSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. Self-Evaluation Portfolio
- 2. Student Reviews
- 3. Worksite Observation
- 4. Instructional Observation, if applicable
  - i. In Person Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
  - ii. Distance Education Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
- 5. Colleague Consultation Memo with plans for continued improvement (if Option 2 or 3 was selected)
- 6. Summary Evaluation Report
- 7. Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (if necessary)

### 8.6 **EVALUATION OF TEMPORARY UNIT MEMBERS**

Temporary unit members shall be evaluated during each non-consecutive year of temporary status utilizing the procedures for Probationary Unit Members under Contract I status. See 8.4 for procedures, timelines, and required forms.

Should temporary unit members be hired into probationary status, their evaluations and recommendations shall be utilized to place them at the corresponding Contract status. (e.g. after one (1) year of temporary status, the unit member will begin in Contract II).

#### 8.7 EVALUATION OF NON-CONTRACT/PART-TIME UNIT MEMBERS

- 8.7.1 Non-contract unit members shall be evaluated during the first two (2) semesters of employment and at least once (1) every third semester thereafter. If a non-contract unit member is assigned a class at a second college in the District within this cycle, that college shall have the right to evaluate the non-contract unit member in the first semester at that college. The evaluation at the second college shall reset the cycle.
- 8.7.2 Non-contract unit members shall be evaluated by the supervising administrator or department chair or a subject matter specialist from the discipline designated by the supervising administrator. If the evaluee teaches an online class, the evaluation process will include one (1) evaluator with experience teaching online courses, preferably in the content area.
- 8.7.3 Nothing in section 8.7 will be construed to imply that full-time unit members teaching beyond contract loads within their department shall undergo additional evaluations solely because of this section.

#### 8.7.4 PROCEDURES & TIMELINE

# A. NON-CONTRACT: UNIT MEMBERS: INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. The supervising administrator will notify all non-contract unit members due for evaluation in a given semester by the end of the third (3rd) week of the semester or within one (1) week of being hired when hired mid-semester.
- 2. A member of the Non-Contract Review Team (NCRT) will schedule an instructional observation. (Between weeks 5 -12 of the semester).
- 3. Student Reviews are generated and distributed per 8.3.2 guidelines. Timelines are dependent on course scheduling modality and must be completed by the midway point of each course [e.g. by the eighth (8th) week of sixteen (16) week course, the fourth (4th) week of an eight (8) week course, etc.].
- 4. Student reviews (data and comments) will be compiled and sent to the NCRT for review. (Between weeks 6-13 of the semester depending on the course timeline, see 2. above).

- 5. The observation form will be submitted to the dean/supervising administrator and division office. (Between weeks 6 14 of the semester).
- 6. Should the observation contain a "does not meet" expectations, the NCRT will meet to discuss the evaluation materials and create and sign a Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (FPIP) if necessary. (Between weeks 14-15 of the semester).
  - a. A meeting will be scheduled with the unit member and the NCRT to discuss the FPIP. (Between weeks 15-16 of the semester).
  - b. Unit members will have fifteen (15) working days to respond to the evaluation.
  - c. Should the unit member not fulfill the FPIP, this is considered as an unsatisfactory evaluation.
- 7. If all areas of the evaluation meet expectations, the observation form and student reviews will be forwarded to the unit member. (Between weeks 15 17 of the semester).
- 8. The division office will submit the evaluation data in order to update the unit member's preference rights and the Priority List. (Within three [3] weeks of the end of the semester).
- 9. The evaluation will be submitted to the vice chancellor of human resources. (Within three [3] weeks of the end of the semester).
- 10. If warranted, an additional evaluation may be recommended or requested for the subsequent spring semester in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.3.C.
- B. NON-CONTRACT UNIT MEMBERS: NON- INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS (Counselors, Coordinators, Librarians, Health Services, Special Services Unit Members (e.g. DSPS Learning Specialists)
  - 1. The supervising administrator will notify all non-contract unit members due for evaluation in a given semester by the end of the third (3rd) week of the semester.
  - 2. A member of the Non-Contract Review Team (NCRT) will schedule a worksite observation. The observation of their performance should be conducted in the area of primary assignment. (Between weeks 5 -12 of the semester).
  - 3. Classroom observations should be included when applicable (see timeline for instructional unit members).
  - 4. Per 8.3.2 guidelines, student reviews are generated and distributed for unit members with direct student contact using a form distributed to a random sample of 25-100 students selected from appointments and walk-ins both in person and chat/online interactions for up to a four (4) week period. (Between weeks 3-9 of the semester).

Per 8.3.2 guidelines, student reviews of librarians will be conducted using the approved form distributed to a random sample of 25-100 students selected from appointments and walk-ins both in person and chat/online interactions for up to a four (4) week period. (Between weeks 8-13 of the semester).

Student reviews for non-instructional unit members who also teach will be collected utilizing the approved form and timeline.

- 5. Student reviews (data and comments) will be compiled and sent to the NCRT for review. (Between weeks 6-13 of the semester depending on the course timeline, see 2. above).
- 6. The worksite observation form will be submitted to the dean/supervising administrator and division office. (Between weeks 6-14 of the semester).
- 7. Should the observation contain a "needs improvement," the NCRT will meet to discuss the evaluation materials and create and sign a Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (FPIP). (Between weeks 14-15 of the semester).
  - A meeting will be scheduled with the unit member and the NCRT to discuss the FPIP. (Between weeks 15-16 of the semester)
  - b. Unit members will have 10 working days to respond to the evaluation.
  - c. Should the unit member not fulfill the FPIP, this is considered as an unsatisfactory evaluation.
- 8. If all areas of the evaluation meet expectations, the observation form and student reviews will be forwarded to the unit member. (Between weeks 15 17 of the semester).
- 9. The division office will submit the evaluation data in order to update the unit member's preference rights and the Priority List. (Within three [3] weeks of the end of the semester).
- 10. The evaluation will be submitted to the vice chancellor of human resources. (Within three [3] weeks of the end of the semester).
- 11. If warranted, an additional evaluation may be recommended or requested for the subsequent spring semester in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.3.C

# 8.7.5 REQUIRED DISTRICT FORMS

The forms listed below as described in 8.3 will be utilized to complete the evaluation process for non-contract unit members.

#### A. UNIT MEMBERS: INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. Instructional Observations
  - i. In Person Classroom Observation and Evaluation form

- ii. Online Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
- 2. Student Reviews
- 3. Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (if necessary)

#### B. UNIT MEMBERS: NON-INSTRUCTIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. Worksite Observation
- 2. Instructional Observations where applicable
  - i. In Person Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
  - ii. Online Classroom Observation and Evaluation form
- 3. Student Reviews
  - i. Counselor/Health Services/Coordinator form
  - ii. Librarian form
- 4. Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (if necessary)

# 8.8 **ADDITIONAL EVALUATIONS**

- 8.8.1 Additional evaluations of unit members may be made at the request of the supervising administrator, students, or the unit member.
- 8.8.2 If an additional evaluation is requested, the supervising administrator will consult with the department chair involved. The activities for the additional evaluations may include, but are not limited to, classroom/worksite or online visitation(s), peer review processes, and student reviews.

# 8.9 GRIEVANCE OF THE EVALUATION PROCESS

Only the process, and not the content, of the evaluation shall be subject to the full grievance arbitration process. A contract unit member who has not been recommended for tenure may use the grievance procedures to determine whether a decision to not grant tenure was unreasonable (for Contract III employees) or that the district violated, misinterpreted, or misapplied (for Contract I, II, and III employees) any of its policies and procedures concerning the evaluation of the employee.

The grievance procedures may not be used to appeal any Board decision if such decision is a result of a State or Federal Regulatory commission or Agency, or State or Federal Law.

#### 8.9.1 PROBATIONARY UNIT MEMBER

The grievance procedure may be used if a Contract I or Contract II unit member believes that the district, in a decision not to offer a second or third contract, violated, misinterpreted, or misapplied any of its policies and procedures concerning the evaluation of the contract unit member.

The grievance procedure may be used if a Contract III unit member believes that the district, in a decision denying tenure, made a negative decision that to a reasonable person was unreasonable, or violated, misinterpreted, or misapplied any of its policies and procedures concerning the evaluation of the contract unit member.

Pursuant to the provisions of Education Code Section 87610.1, FARSCCD "shall have no duty of fair representation with respect to taking any of these grievances to arbitration, and the employee shall be entitled to pursue a matter to arbitration with or without the representation by the exclusive representative."

#### 8.9.2 TENURED, TEMPORARY, AND NON-CONTRACT UNIT MEMBER

If a tenured unit member believes the district violated, misinterpreted, or misapplied any of its policies and procedures concerning the evaluation, a grievance may be filed in writing, within 20 days of the Summary Evaluation Report Meeting with the administrator, according to the process outlined in Article 9.

# ARTICLE 9 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

PURPOSE: To provide an orderly procedure for reviewing and resolving grievances promptly at the lowest administrative level.

#### 9.1 **DEFINITIONS**

Day

A "day" (for the purposes of this "Grievance" Article) is any day on which the central administrative office of the District is regularly open for business. A "day" begins at 12:00 AM and ends at 11:59 PM.

#### Grievance

A formal written allegation by a grievant that the grievant has been adversely affected by a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of a specific article, section, or provision of this Agreement. "Grievance", as defined in this Agreement, shall be brought only through this procedure. Actions to challenge or change the policies of the District as set forth in law, policies, rules and regulations, or administrative regulations and procedures not contained within this Agreement, must be undertaken under the separate process determined by present existing policies.

# **Grievant** A grievant is:

- A. A unit member who, at the time of filing, is a member of the bargaining unit;
- B. A contract unit member who was a member of the bargaining unit during the preceding semester and who has not been recommended for tenure (see 9.3.1);
- C. An officer of the association who has been authorized to file the grievance on behalf of the association by its executive board; or
- D. An officer of the association who has been authorized by an individual unit member to file the grievance on behalf of the employee.

**Appropriate Administrator** The appropriate administrator is the administrator who allegedly violated, misinterpreted, or misapplied this Agreement.

#### File a Grievance

To deliver either personally, via email, or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the office of the appropriate administrator and copy to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or electronically to FARSCCD@rsccd.edu, or both within the time limits as provided.

- 9.2 <u>TIME LIMITS</u>: It is expected that all parties will work to meet the established timelines.
  - 9.2.1 A grievant who fails to comply with the established time limits at any step shall forfeit all rights to further application of this grievance procedure. District failure to respond within established time limits at any step entitles the grievant to proceed to the next step.
  - 9.2.2 Time or procedural steps may be waived at any step by mutual agreement in writing between the District and the grievant and/or the Association. During the summer session and intersession, the grievant or Association may request to toll the timelines to no later than the start of the next semester. The request will not be rejected without good cause by the District.
  - 9.2.3 The grievance timeline begins the day after submission of the grievance or grievance response.

# 9.3 **OTHER PROVISIONS**

### 9.3.1 Member Legal Rights

- A. Nothing contained in this Grievance Procedure, shall deny to any member his/her legal rights under state or federal constitutions and laws.
- B. A contract unit member who has not been recommended for tenure may use the grievance procedures to determine whether a decision to not grant tenure was unreasonable (for Contract III employees) or that the district violated, misinterpreted, or misapplied (for Contract I, II, and III employees) any of its policies and procedures concerning the evaluation of the employee.
- C. No member shall use this grievance procedure to appeal any Board decision if such decision is a result of a State or Federal Regulatory commission or Agency, or State or Federal Law Decision.

#### 9.3.2 Representation

At Levels I through IV, the grievant and the District representative may be accompanied by an advisor who may advise, or act for or fully represent the District representative or the grievant. A grievant may be advised by a representative of the Association or another representative of their choice at Levels I-III.

In the event that an agreement is completed to resolve the grievance between the District and a unit member who is not represented by the Association, FARSCCD will be consulted by the District before the agreement is finalized. Agreements that do not have FARSCCD's approval will not be used in future contract interpretation matters.

Only the Association may move a grievance to Level IV (binding arbitration), except for grievances regarding non-renewal of contract unit members.

# 9.3.3 <u>Grievance Processing – Limits</u>

- A. Any grievance or alleged grievance which occurs during the period between the termination date of this Agreement and the effective date of a new agreement shall be processed under this grievance procedure.
- B. Any grievance which arose prior to the effective date of this agreement shall not be processed under this grievance procedure.
- 9.3.4 A unit member of the Association shall initiate Level I of the grievance process within twenty (20) days of the occurrence of the alleged grievance, or within twenty (20) days of the date the unit member knew or should have known of the alleged grievance. Any grievance or alleged grievance which occurred or is alleged to have occurred and which the unit member knew of or should have known of more than twenty (20) days prior to notification shall not be processed by the District.

# 9.3.5 Record Keeping

Any record(s) pertaining to a grievance shall be kept in a file separate from a grievant's official District personnel file.

#### 9.4 **PROCEDURAL STEPS**

#### 9.4.1 Level I – Appropriate Administrator

- A. When twenty (20) days of the occurrence or of the time the grievant knew or should have known of the occurrence of an alleged grievance, the grievant shall file a Level I written grievance on the "Statement of Grievance Form" (Appendix L) with the appropriate administrator with a copy to the Association.
- B. The appropriate administrator is the administrator who took the action which led to the alleged grievance. The grievance process will begin at the level which aligns to the appropriate administrator.
- C. The appropriate administrator (or designee) shall communicate the decision to the grievant in writing within fifteen (15) days of receiving the grievance.
- D. Either the grievant or the supervising administrator (or designee) may request a personal conference within the above time limits. Any such meeting shall be by mutual agreement.

# 9.4.2 <u>Level II – College President (or designee)</u>

- A. If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level I, they may appeal the decision in writing within fifteen (15) days to the College President (or designee). If the College President is the appropriate administrator to hear the Level I, or if the appropriate administrator is above the College President in the chain of command, the grievant will proceed directly to Level III.
- B. In order to be considered, the appeal shall include a copy of the original written grievance with decision rendered and reasons for the appeal.
- C. The College President (or designee) shall communicate the decision in writing to the grievant within fifteen (15) days.
- D. Either the grievant or College President (or designee) may request a personal conference within the above time limits. Any such meeting shall be by mutual agreement.

#### 9.4.3 Level III – Chancellor

- A. In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level II, the decision may be appealed on the appropriate approved form to the Chancellor (or designee) within fifteen (15) days. If the Chancellor was the appropriate administrator to hear the Level I, the grievant will proceed directly to Level IV.
- B. In order to be processed or considered, the appeal shall include copies of the original grievance and decision(s) rendered and reasons for appeal.
- C. The Chancellor (or designee) shall communicate the decision to the grievant in writing within twenty (20) days of receiving the appeal.

#### 9.4.4 Level IV – Binding Arbitration

- A. Within twenty (20) days after the decision of the Chancellor (or designee) or after no decision has been given by the Chancellor, the Association may submit the grievance to binding arbitration by filing a request for arbitration with the Chancellor.
- B. If arbitration is requested, the grievant and the District shall attempt to agree upon an impartial arbitrator. If no agreement can be reached, they shall request the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service (SMCS) to supply a list of seven names of persons experienced in hearing grievances in community college matters. Each party shall alternately strike a name until one name remains. The remaining panel member shall be the impartial arbitrator. The order of striking shall be determined by toss of a coin.

- C. The reasonable and customary fees and expenses of the arbitrator and the hearing shall be borne equally by the District and the Association. When requested by the Association, the grievant and all necessary witnesses shall be provided release time at District expense for the time during which they are needed at the hearing. All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them.
- D. The arbitrator shall, as soon as possible, hear evidence and render a decision on the issue or issues submitted. The arbitrator shall establish as early a hearing date as is practical. A date for the hearing must be selected within ninety (90) days of the date of selection of the arbitrator, or either the Association or the District may request a new arbitrator.
- E. The arbitrator will have no power to add to, subtract from, or modify the terms of this Agreement between the District and the Association. If the arbitrator's findings and conclusions establish that a monetary award is necessary to enforce the terms of the Agreement so as to fully remedy the wrong to the grievant, such an award shall be made.
- F. The decision of the impartial arbitrator shall be final and binding to the parties.
- G. Either party may request a certified court reporter to record the entire arbitration hearing. The cost of the services of such court reporter shall be paid by the party requesting the reporter or shared by the parties if they mutually agree. If the arbitrator requests a court reporter, the costs shall be shared by both parties.
- Η. The hearing need not be conducted in accordance with technical rules relating to evidence and witnesses but hearings shall be conducted in a manner most conducive to determination of the truth. Any relevant evidence may be admitted if it is the type of evidence on which reasonable persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs regardless of the existence of any common law or statutory rules which might make improper the admission of such evidence over objection in civil actions. Hearsay evidence may be used for the purpose of supplementing or explaining any direct evidence but shall not be sufficient in itself to support a finding unless it would be admissible over objection in civil actions. The rules dealing with privileges shall be effective to the same extent that they are now or hereafter may be recognized in civil actions, and irrelevant and unduly repetitious evidence may be excluded. Decisions made by the Arbitrator shall not be invalidated by any informality in the proceedings, and the Arbitrator shall not be bound by technical rules of evidence.

# ARTICLE 10 FACULTY SERVICE AREAS

# 10.1 **FACULTY SERVICE AREAS**

A unit member shall be considered both qualified and competent to serve in an FSA if:

- (a) They meet the minimum qualifications pursuant to Section 87356 of the Education Code to teach the subject and/or a discipline within a service area; or
- (b) They have been grandparented by possessing a valid California Community College credential authorizing service in a subject and/or discipline within the service area. Holders of Standard or General Secondary must meet the requirements listed in (a) above.

In areas affected by external accreditation agencies (such as nursing, pharmacy technology, legal assistant, etc.) or contract schools or agencies (such as cosmetology, court reporting, dental technician, etc.) – in addition to either (a) or (b) above – the unit member must meet the qualification and competency requirements defined by the external agency.

# 10.2 PROCEDURE TO FOLLOW FOR FSA DESIGNATION

- A. Unit members may petition the District for recognition of competence in additional FSA's by filing such a petition on or before February 15 of each academic year. The unit member shall provide the district with all records necessary to substantiate the additional claims of competence. Such petitions will be filed with the Human Resources Office. A determination will be made if the requirement of the FSA has been met as noted in the Board of Governor's approved Disciplines List. FSA's claimed on the basis of equivalencies will go through the district equivalency process. The equivalency committee will act on the petition by March 30 of that academic year.
- B. Newly hired unit members shall qualify for the FSA's listed on their job recruitment announcement as of the completion of the first day of performing in such an assignment.
- C. The Human Resources Office shall maintain a listing of all FSA's and the unit members who qualify for them.

#### 10.3 **DISPUTES**

In the event of the denial of an FSA, the unit member may appeal such denial to the equivalency committee of the department/discipline.

If the denial is a result of action taken by an equivalency committee, an arbitration committee shall be convened to determine said qualification. The committee shall consist of five members: the department chair, a unit member for the FSA or a related discipline appointed by the Academic Senate, and a peer chosen by the unit member; with the president or designate of the Association and the appropriate Dean of Instruction or designate. The committee shall convene and reach a decision within thirty (30) days of the appeal. A dispute from an allegation that a unit member has been improperly denied an FSA is grievable under Article 9.

# 10.4 CHANGES TO FACULTY SERVICE AREAS

Any changes, additions, or deletions to the approved Disciplines List will be negotiated upon notification to the District and the Association of such changes.

- A. In the process of adding a new course, courses, program or discipline, the curriculum committee shall determine the FSA(s) affected and, upon adoption, shall notify the Human Resources Office. In the case of a new FSA, the FSA will be sent to the Association and the Board of Trustees for approval.
- B. Upon request from a department chair, Dean, or member of the Association Executive Board, a FSA must be reviewed before changing the definition of the FSA. A review panel consisting of representatives of the affected FSA(s), the appropriate Dean, one Association representative, and the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designate (non-voting) will examine existing conditions and evaluate alternatives. If changes are to be made, they will be presented to the Board of Trustees. Approved changes become effective not earlier than February 16 or the academic year following the decision so that each year retains the same terms of reference for FSA recognition and specific FSA competency standards.
- C. Upon request of either the Board or the Association, this article may be opened for review of district policy or standards. Any changes resulting from the process must be approved by the Board of Trustees and the Association and become effective no earlier than February 16 of the academic year following the decision so that each year retains the same terms of reference for district policy and procedures.

# ARTICLE 11 TRANSFER

#### 11.1 **DEFINITIONS**

- 11.1.1 A transfer refers to any administrative or Board action that results in the movement of a full-time unit member from the administrative jurisdiction of one college president to another.
- 11.1.2 A transfer may be requested by the unit member (voluntary transfer) or initiated by the District (administrative transfer).

#### 11.2 REQUESTS FOR VOLUNTARY TRANSFERS

- 11.2.1 Voluntary transfers shall be limited to tenured unit members.
- 11.2.2 Tenured unit members and the Association shall be notified of tenure track faculty vacancies on all sites prior to any general advertising or recruitment.
- 11.2.3 A unit member may request transfer to a vacant position by submitting their request in writing to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources. The request shall be acknowledged in writing, with a copy to the Association.
- 11.2.4 The Vice Chancellor of Human Resources shall submit the transfer request(s) to the college presidents, who will review the request(s) with the program administrators and division and/or department chair from the affected discipline area and submit a recommendation to the Chancellor. The recommendation will be based upon the following considerations:
  - a. The educational and programmatic needs of the District;
  - b. Minimum qualifications to perform the required services;
  - c. Demonstrated competence in the subject field;
  - d. Seniority;
  - e. The needs of the unit member
  - f. Staff composition.
- 11.2.5 A unit member, whose transfer request is denied, may apply for a vacant full-time position by submitting the required application materials and competing in the open recruitment process for the position.

#### 11.3 **ADMINISTRATIVE TRANSFER**

- 11.3.1 An administrative transfer may be made by the Chancellor, based upon a recommendation from one or more of the college presidents and/or the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources, for one or more of the following reasons:
  - a. Enrollment increase or decrease;
  - b. Staffing needs;
  - c. Establishment or elimination of programs;
  - d. Interpersonal conflicts that negatively affect the educational program or the functioning of the campus;
  - e. Nepotism;
  - f. Compelling reasons of personal safety.
- 11.3.2 The District shall provide notice to the Association of the intent to administratively transfer a unit member. This notice shall be provided prior to the effective date of the transfer and prior to notification of the unit member.
- 11.3.3 A unit member who is administratively transferred shall be given the reasons for the transfer and shall have the right to indicate preference from a list of current vacancies.
- 11.3.4 If a vacancy at the transferred member's previous work site occurs and the issues that gave rise to the administrative transfer have been resolved, the unit member may apply for a return to his/her previous work site.

# ARTICLE 12 UNIT MEMBER RIGHTS

# 12.1 <u>INVESTIGATIONS, DUE PROCESS, AND DISCIPLINE</u>

#### 12.1.1 Right to Association Representation

- 12.1.1.1 Unit members will receive prior notice of any meetings with District Administration, or an agent of the District, that is related to complaints, investigations, and/or discipline procedures. Unit members will have an opportunity to secure an Association representative prior to any such meeting, without undue delay. District administration will make every effort to remind unit members of their right to have Association representation.
- 12.1.1.2 If the unit member does not initially have Association representation present at a meeting as permitted above, the unit member may, during the meeting, request that Association representation be present. Should the unit member request that Association representation be present during the meeting, the meeting will pause until an Association representative can be present. An Association representative will be made available to the unit member without undue delay.
- 12.1.1.3 In accordance with the Educational Employment Relations Act, unit members have a right to have Association representation upon request at meetings regarding employment relations not listed above. District Administration may meet with unit members without representation present regarding non-disciplinary discussions with employees about performance issues, work instruction, guidance, expectations, standards, or evaluations and for regular routine meetings with a unit member. Unit members may have representation present at such meetings.

# 12.1.2 Rights of a Unit Member as a Respondent in an Investigation

- 12.1.2.1 If a complaint is filed under a Board Policy or Administrative Regulation, the rights of a unit member shall be governed by that policy or procedure.
- 12.1.2.2 For complaints that are not filed under a Board Policy or Administrative Regulation, the following protocols shall apply.
  - 12.1.2.2.1 The District will investigate the complaint as needed to determine what happened and what course of action is needed in response.

- 12.1.2.2.2 Within 14 calendar days of receiving the complaint, the District will notify the Respondent that they are the subject of a complaint that may lead to an investigation interview.
- 12.1.2.2.3 If requested by the complainant or respondent, and both parties agree, the supervising administrator shall arrange and mediate an informal meeting between the parties in an effort to resolve the concern informally.
- 12.1.2.2.4 Whether an anonymous complaint requires investigation will be at the sole discretion of the District. If an anonymous complaint is investigated by the District, the District shall provide written explanation for the file.
- 12.1.2.5 Before conducting an investigative interview with the respondent, the District shall inform the respondent of their right to have a representative present during the interview and of the allegation(s) made against them, in reasonable detail, so they have time to prepare for the interview.

The respondent will be provided with a list of topics that questions will be derived from, no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the interview. The Association acknowledges the right of the investigator to ask additional follow-up questions.

12.1.2.2.6 After the investigation is concluded, the respondent will be informed of the outcome. If the District decides to move forward with written reprimand or discipline for which the respondent would have the right to a hearing (i.e., suspension or dismissal), the District shall provide a copy of the written investigation report to the unit member. The unit member may respond in writing to the investigation report within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt before iudgement of the report any recommendation for disciplinary action is initiated. The unit member's written response to the investigation report shall be permanently attached to the investigation report.

# 12.1.3 Pre-Disciplinary Corrective Actions for Full-time Tenured Unit Members

- 12.1.3.1 When concerns arise about a full-time tenured unit member's performance of assigned duties and responsibilities, the District and the Association shall be committed to resolving such concerns at the earliest opportunity. The District will make reasonable efforts to remediate issues and assist the unit member in correcting performance concerns before resorting to disciplinary action. (i.e., suspension with or without pay or termination under the Education Code).
- 12.1.3.2 Pre-disciplinary intervention may include informal meetings, verbal guidance, counseling, verbal or written warnings, reasonable trainings, professional development activities, off-cycle evaluation, and/or other collegial communication between the unit member and the supervising administrator.
- 12.1.3.3 The following actions will be applied except where the serious nature of the offense may require the District to directly impose a written reprimand.
  - 12.1.3.3.1 Verbal Warning, the documentation of which will not be placed in the unit member's personnel file.
  - 12.1.3.3.2 Written Warning, the documentation of which will not be placed in the unit member's personnel file.

## 12.1.3.3.3 Written Reprimand

Written reprimands may serve as the initial corrective action when proportionate to the concern being addressed or follow the issuance of warnings. The unit member will sign the reprimand to acknowledge receipt, and a copy may be placed in the unit member's personnel file. The unit member has a right to respond in writing to the written reprimand and have the response permanently attached to the written reprimand within their personnel file. If the unit member is able to materially demonstrate to the District that complaint or allegation for which a written reprimand was issued is untrue, all records of the reprimand shall be permanently removed from the unit member's personnel file.

12.1.3.3.4 Alleged violations of the process in this section may be grieved. The substance of any corrective actions

taken under this section shall not be subject to the grievance process. Instead, the unit member may prepare a response and have it attached to the documentation of the corrective action.

# 12.2 **ACADEMIC FREEDOM**

In alignment with RSCCD Board Policy 4030, the District and the Association are committed to free and open inquiry in all matters in the class setting; protections of academic freedom include but are not limited to the following:

- 1. Class Discussion: Unit members are entitled to academic freedom in class discussions of their course subject matter and may examine or endorse unpopular or controversial ideas or viewpoints that are relevant to the official course outline of record and student learning.
- 2. Instructional Materials: Academic freedom includes the right of unit members to select textbooks and create and use instructional materials that are thought-provoking, contain controversial or unpopular ideas, or that challenge prevailing social attitudes or beliefs so long as they are relevant to the courses they teach and align with the course's outline of record.
- 3. Instructional Methodology: Unit members have the authority to explore, select, and modify different teaching styles and methods of instruction and determine which methods are best for delivering instruction to students.
- 4. Grading: The unit member is solely responsible for the student grades that they assign for their courses. No unit member may be directed to change a student grade except in certain narrow circumstances authorized by Education Code Section 76224(a), "When grades are given for any course of instruction taught in a community college, the grade given to each student shall be the grade determined by the instructor of the course and the determination of the student's grade by the instructor, in the absence of mistake, fraud, bad faith, or incompetency, shall be final."
- 5. Scholarly Work: Unit members have the freedom to publish, present, and/or participate in professional scholarship to the extent permitted by law, provided these activities do not interfere with the performance of their regular District assigned duties.
- 6. Intramural Comments: Unit members have the right to utilize normal channels of District communication free of censorship or disciplinary action in the collegial expression or discussion of their opinions and viewpoints on matters of college and District policy including through District email; during department, college, and/or District meetings; and while participating in the governance structure of their college and/or the District.

7. Extramural Comments: The District shall respect the right of unit members in their public lives to exercise freedom of speech, freedom of association, freedom of union activity, and freedom to express expert opinions in a public forum provided it is clear that the unit member is not speaking or acting on behalf of the District. Further, as scholars and institutional officers, unit members should consider that the public may judge their profession and their institution by their utterances. Hence unit members should make a reasonable effort to be accurate, and show respect for the opinions and beliefs of others.

Academic freedom is to be practiced within the parameters of applicable federal and state policies and laws and local policy and regulations. Unit members have a responsibility to engage in teaching and learning that honors and respects the rights of others to hold divergent viewpoints; avoid harassment or discriminatory treatment of students; and to avoid engaging in speech that may reasonably be expected to lead to interference with teaching or learning or to physical injury to individuals. A unit member's exercising of their right of academic freedom as delineated within this article shall not be subject to any disciplinary or other action adversely affecting the unit member's employment status with the District. Nothing in this article prevents the District from taking disciplinary action against a unit member for unlawful conduct.

# 12.3 <u>INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS</u>

- 12.3.1 The District acknowledges the ownership rights of unit members to all instructional materials that they have created in support of or related to their performance of course instruction (including both classroom and distance education) and other unit member duties while employed by the District and/or in connection with their employment. This ownership right of unit members applies to works in all media forms including but not limited to instructional materials (e.g., syllabi, lectures, illustrations, student exercises, web-based activities, textbooks, study materials, course management tools, and quizzes and tests), books, articles, dramatic and musical compositions, poetry, fictional and non-fictional narratives, analyses (e.g., scientific, logical, opinion or criticism), works of art and design, photographs, films, video and audio recordings, computer software, architectural and engineering drawings, and choreography created by the unit member. This right may be inapplicable in and not extend to situations where unit members are paid by the District, a grant or otherwise, to develop a product, content, or curriculum for common use.
- 12.3.2 To protect intellectual property rights, the District agrees that course syllabi and the course instructional materials developed or created by a unit member within the District's learning management system (e.g., Canvas, Blackboard, Google Classroom, or any future learning management platform) shall not be sold, reused, nor distributed to other unit members by the District without the express prior written consent of the unit member.
- 12.3.3 The District encourages unit members to innovate and pursue development of materials and/or inventions. If the unit member enters into a written agreement with

the District that the materials and/or inventions developed will be "work for hire" in exchange for access and/or use of District resources in the development process, then that written agreement shall determine the terms and mutually agreed upon dissemination and share of royalties granted to the unit member and the District from the marketing of those materials and/or inventions specified within the agreement. The Association shall be notified of and approve any such agreements. The District and the Association shall make every effort to develop uniform intellectual property rights contracts for unit members. Materials and/or inventions developed while the unit member is on a sabbatical leave shall not be considered "work for hire."

## 12.4 PERSONNEL FILES

- 12.4.1 There shall be only one (1) official District personnel file maintained for each unit member within the District. All documents concerning a unit member and included within the District personnel file shall be securely maintained by the District Human Resources Department. Personnel files shall be maintained in confidence and shall be available for inspection only to appropriate administrators or other designated employees or agents of the District when necessary in the proper administration of the District's affairs or the supervision of the unit member. All applicable Federal and California state laws governing the rights to privacy and confidentiality will be followed by the District in regard to the maintenance and release of information contained within District personnel files. Copies of personnel records may be released without the express prior written consent of the unit member if legally required. If the District is required to release copies of personnel file documents in response to a Public Records Act request or for other legal process requests where prior notice was not given by the requesting party, the District will provide written notice to the unit member within ten (10) working days of receipt of the request.
- 12.4.2 In accordance with RSCCD Board Policy 7005, information regarding the medical condition or medical history of any employee shall be maintained in a separate confidential medical file. Access to employee medical files shall be restricted to only those persons who have a legal right or authorization to inspect confidential medical records.
- 12.4.3 Unit members shall have the right to review their own District personnel files provided such review is conducted at a time when the unit member is not scheduled to render services to the District. A unit member may, upon clear written authorization signed and dated by the unit member, designate a representative to review the material within their District personnel file. Review of District personnel files shall be by appointment and shall take place in the presence of and be supervised by authorized representatives of the District Human Resources Department. A unit member may request one (1) copy of the materials in their District personnel file per academic year at no cost to the unit member. Nothing in this procedure shall entitle a unit member to review ratings, reports, or records that

- (a) were obtained prior to the employment of the unit member, (b) were prepared by identifiable examination committee members, or (c) were obtained in connection with a promotional examination or interview.
- 12.4.4 Documents may not be removed from or entered into District personnel files without the authorization of the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources. Any item to be placed in a unit member's District personnel file shall be clearly identified as to its source or originator and its date of receipt by the District Human Resources Department. Unverified communications will not be placed in the unit member's District personnel file nor in any other file maintained in the District. Student grievance documentation shall not be placed in the concerned unit member's District personnel file unless attached to some form of written disciplinary action that is placed in the file.
- 12.4.5 Unit members shall have the right to submit materials for placement into their District personnel files that they reasonably determine to be relevant to their assigned duties, professional responsibilities, District employment requirements, or that may have bearing on their position as a unit member. In the case of bulky items such as manuscripts or books, only a reference shall be placed in the District personnel file. All reasonable requests by the unit member for placement of relevant material into their personnel file shall be accommodated. Materials not added to the personnel file shall be returned to the unit member within ten (10) working days along with a written explanation stating the specific reason why the unit member's request was denied.
- 12.4.6 Derogatory materials or information shall not be entered into the unit member's District personnel file unless and until the unit member is provided with notice and the opportunity to review and comment on that information. The unit member shall be notified during normal business hours, provided with a complete hardcopy of the derogatory material at the time of notification, and shall be released from duty for the purpose of reviewing those materials without salary reduction. Unit members shall be notified of their right to respond in writing to any such derogatory material. The unit member's written response shall be permanently attached to the derogatory material and placed in their District personnel file. Any false or erroneous derogatory materials can be removed from the unit member's file upon mutual agreement with the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and the unit member.

## 12.5 **PRIVACY**

12.5.1 Documents and files stored upon a unit member's assigned District-owned office computer and messages stored within a unit member's District-owned electronic mail and voicemail accounts may not be deleted without the express prior written consent of the unit member, unless the materials are found to be of an illegal or illicit nature, or unless the information is purged or deleted though the normal course of business in connection with storage retention procedures.

12.5.2 Information obtained from campus surveillance equipment will not be used to initiate an investigation except in cases of alleged criminal activity or alleged misconduct. Information obtained from campus surveillance equipment will not be used in the normal course of the evaluation process.

# 12.6 PROTECTION OF THE UNIT MEMBER AT WORK

- 12.6.1 The District agrees to comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations affecting unit member safety in providing and maintaining safe facilities, working conditions, and equipment. Safe working conditions include, but are not limited to, properly maintained equipment and facilities with adequate lighting, ventilation, security, and cleaning/sanitation.
- 12.6.2 The District shall take reasonable and prompt corrective action to eradicate all known cases of toxins, carcinogens, and hazards within District facilities as mandated by law. To the extent that certain toxic or hazardous materials are necessary to the operation of the colleges and/or to conduct certain instructional programs, the District is responsible for ensuring that all necessary hazardous or toxic materials will be stored with all necessary precautions to control access and minimize risk to District personnel in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local requirements.
- 12.6.3 If the District Chancellor or College President, or their designee, orders an immediate evacuation of three (3) days or fewer of the campus or any part of the campus in response to an emergency, unit members shall not suffer a loss of pay or deductions from accumulated sick leave during the period of such evacuation, and shall remain available for immediate return to work after the situation is resolved and a clearance is issued. In the case of extended emergency situations in excess of three (3) days duration, the District, in consultation with the Association, will establish safety protocols related to the return to work.
- 12.6.4 In the course of performing their normally assigned work, unit members shall be alert to observe unsafe practices, equipment, and conditions as well as environmental conditions in their immediate area which represent health or safety hazards and shall report any such identified conditions in a timely manner to the Dean or other site administrator. In a situation of real or apparently hazardous teaching location, a unit member shall make reasonable effort to change the class teaching location. If a change of class location is not possible, the unit member shall cancel the class meeting without loss of pay. Advance notice of class cancellation due to hazardous or unsafe teaching location should be provided to the Dean or supervising administrator if reasonably possible. For this provision, a "real or apparently hazardous teaching location" shall mean a condition that any reasonable person would conclude to be a physical danger that could potentially affect the health or safety of the unit member and/or the students. In an emergency circumstance that endangers the immediate safety of the unit member and/or others,

unit members have the authority to take reasonable emergency action(s) to secure their immediate safety and the immediate safety of others. Should such emergency action be taken, the unit member shall report the condition(s) and any mitigating actions taken to the Dean or supervising administrator and/or district safety department as soon as possible. The District shall not discipline or retaliate against a unit member for the reporting of unsafe or unhealthy working conditions and/or taking reasonable emergency actions.

- 12.6.5 Unit members shall report all accidents involving injuries observed and/or incurred as soon as possible to their immediate supervisor on forms provided by the District. In the case of injury to a unit member that requires medical attention, such report shall be submitted to the District within one (1) workday of knowledge of the incident giving rise to the injury.
- 12.6.6 The District shall take all necessary and immediate action to contain or mitigate all reported work-related incidents of violence or threats of bodily harm towards unit members.
  - 1. If an incident or threat is witnessed or received directly by a unit member, then the unit member shall immediately report it to both the Dean or supervising administrator and the District safety department.
  - 2. If a District management employee or District safety department employee is informed through appropriate documentation or a credible source that there are circumstances which may pose a threat to the health or safety of any unit member(s), then the District shall immediately notify the impacted unit member(s) regarding the threat and inform them of the actions being taken to assure their safety. Where a serious credible threat is against the District as a whole, the District will warn all potentially affected individuals.
  - 3. The District shall conduct a timely investigation of all alleged work-related threats and/or incidents of violence towards unit members and contain or mitigate as necessary. During the period of investigation and mitigation, if the affected unit member(s) feel endangered, they may request that the District make a reasonable effort to ensure a safe work environment by doing such things as changing class locations, providing on-site security, reassigning or removing a threatening student, or other appropriate remedy relative to the nature of the perceived threat.
  - 4. The District shall provide assistance to any unit member who has been established to be a legitimate victim of an attack/assault or a threat of bodily harm or injury by any student or other community member while such unit member is acting within the scope and

course of their District employment. This assistance shall include paid release time, if needed, to attend any related legal proceeding initiated or supported by the unit member where there is prior notice to and approval by the District Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee.

12.6.7 The District will indemnify and defend a unit member against any civil claim or action arising out of a direct act or omission within the unit member's scope and course of District employment, subject to any District rights under Government Code section 825-825.6 and 995-996.6.

The District will provide a defense to unit members against third-party civil claims only when all of the following conditions are met:

- 1. The alleged act or omission occurred within the course and scope of the unit member's employment with the District;
- 2. The act or omission is determined by the District, in its sole discretion, to have been unintentional;
- 3. The defense is permitted and covered under the District's applicable insurance policies; and
- 4. The unit member cooperates fully with the District and its designated legal counsel in the defense of the claim.

Nothing in this provision shall obligate the District to provide a defense where doing so would be inconsistent with District policy, the determination of its insurance carrier, or applicable law. The District retains sole discretion to determine whether a claim falls within the course and scope of employment and whether a defense will be provided under this section.

# **Criminal Matters**

The District shall have no obligation to provide legal representation or defense to a unit member in any criminal investigation, proceeding, or prosecution, regardless of whether the conduct at issue occurred during the course and scope of employment. However, if the criminal charges are dismissed with prejudice or result in a full acquittal, and the District determines that the conduct was within the course and scope of employment and unintentional, the District may, in its sole discretion, reimburse the unit member for reasonable legal fees incurred, subject to applicable policy limits and insurance coverage.

# 12.7 **PROFESSOR EMERITUS STATUS**

## 12.7.1 Eligibility for Professor Emeritus Status

A. Unit members who retire in good standing and have served at least fifteen years as full-time faculty within the District are eligible for Professor Emeritus status.

- B. Exceptions to the fifteen-year service requirement may be granted in exceptional circumstances by unanimous decision of the Academic Senate Executive Board at the unit member's most recent RSCCD home college, and subject to final approval by the College President.
- C. The title of Professor Emeritus may be granted posthumously.
- D. Unit members who are granted Professor Emeritus status will receive a formal letter detailing the award. They must communicate their acceptance of the status in writing within 30 days of receiving the letter.

## 12.7.2 Maintenance of Professor Emeritus Status

- A. Professor Emeritus status carries no duties to the college or district and provides no stipend or remuneration. Individuals awarded Professor Emeritus status are not considered employees of the district.
- B. Once granted, Professor Emeritus status remains in effect indefinitely unless revoked by a unanimous decision of the Academic Senate Executive Board at the unit member's most recent RSCCD home college, or by sole discretion of the College President if circumstances warrant removal.
- C. Emeritus status may only be revoked due to documented cases of moral turpitude or criminal conviction. In cases of moral turpitude, the individual will be notified of the allegations and given the opportunity to respond before any decision to revoke their status is made.

# 12.7.3 Recognitions and Privileges of Professor Emeritus Status

The following recognitions and privileges shall be granted to unit members awarded Professor Emeritus status:

- A. Use of the title "Professor Emeritus".
- B. Listing on the college webpage at the unit member's most recent RSCCD home college.
- C. Invitation to attend college commencement ceremonies.
- D. Official College Identification Card: Issuance of a card designating Professor Emeritus status which grants:
  - 1. Discounted admission to RSCCD athletics home events.
  - 2. Lifetime physical library borrowing privileges at both district colleges.

- 3. Discounted admission to student performing arts events at both district colleges.
- E. Access to fitness facilities at both district colleges during hours designated for staff and individuals with emeritus status.
- F. Lifetime access to a district email account, with an emeritus designation, unless restricted by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources due to extenuating circumstances such as existing or anticipated litigation, disciplinary matters, or criminal conviction.

# ARTICLE 13 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The District retains all of its powers and authority to direct, manage, and control to the full extent permitted by law. All of the rights, powers, and/or authority which the District lawfully exercised prior to the execution of this Agreement shall be retained and remain in full force and effect, except as to those rights, powers and authority that are modified, abridged, and/or waived by this Agreement.

# STIPULATED UNIT RECOGNITION AGREEMENT

## "COLLEGE FACULTY UNIT"

This agreement is between the RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as "DISTRICT" and the FACULTY ASSOCIATION OF RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as "ASSOCIATION."

It is hereby agreed between DISTRICT and ASSOCIATION that:

- 1. Pursuant to the Rodda Act (SB160) and rules and regulations of the Public Employment Relations Board, the Board of Trustees of DISTRICT recognizes ASSOCIATION as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for an academic unit of employees designated as the "COLLEGE FACULTY UNIT."
- 2. The COLLEGE FACULTY UNIT shall
  - a. INCLUDE

All academic employees, full-time and part-time credit and full-time continuing education, assigned to duties in the Rancho Santiago Community College District.

- b. EXCLUDE
  - 1. All part-time hourly academic employees assigned to the Continuing Education Division,
  - 2. All academic employees paid on the Administrative Salary Schedule,
  - 3. All day-to-day substitutes,

Sep 26, 2025

4. And all other academic employees lawfully designated as management, supervisory, or confidential.

DATE:		
DISTRICT:	Kristin Olson (Sep 26, 2025 13:41:29 PDT)	
ASSOCIATION:	Redia Ledr	

# APPENDIX B

# **BOARD POLICIES**

7120	Recruitment and Hiring
4030	Academic Freedom
7150	Employee Evaluation
7348	Faculty Pre-Retirement (Workload Reduction)
7141	Organizations Right of Access
7130	Compensation
4020	Program, Curriculum, and Course Development

RSCCD CREDIT INSTRUCTIONAL CALENDAR 2025 - 2026

	Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat	
	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	Summer Ends 8/8
August	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	Common Days SAC 8/12 & 14; SCC 8/13 & 14
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	Start Fall 2025 Semester
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	
September	31	1	2	3	4	5	6	Labor Day: September 1
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	
October	28	29	30	1	2	3	4	
	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	End of 8th week
	19 26	20 27	21 28	22	23	24	25	
November	26 2	3	28 4	29 5	30 6	31 7	1 8	
November	9	10	11	<b>]</b> 12	13	14	15	Veterans Day: November 11
	16	10 <b> </b>	18	19	20	21	22	veteruns buy. November 11
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	Thanksgiving: November 27-28
Dagamban	30		25	3	4		6	End of Fall 2025 Semester
December	7	8	9	10		5 12	13	End of Fall 2023 Semester
	, 14	8 15	9 16	10 17	11 18	19	20	
	21	22	23	24	25	26	20 27	Christmas Holiday: December 25
January	28	29	30	31	1	20	3	New Years Day; January 1
January	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Four-week Intersession
	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	rout-week intersession
	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	Martin Luther King Holiday: January 19
February	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	Wartin Lather King Holiday. January 19
Cordary						50	91	
	1	2	3	4		6	7	Common Days SAC 2/3 & 5: SCC 2/4 & 5
	1 8	2 9	3 10	4 11	5 12	6 13	7 14	Common Days SAC 2/3 & 5; SCC 2/4 & 5 Start Spring 2026 Semester
	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	Start Spring 2026 Semester
		9 16	10 17	11 18	12 19	13 20	14 21	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13
March	8 15 22	9	10	11	12 19 26	13	14	Start Spring 2026 Semester
March	8 15	9 16 23	10 17 24	11 18 25	12 19	13 20 27	14 21 28	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13
March	8 15 22 1	9 16 23 2	10 17 24 3	11 18 25 4	12 19 26 5	13 20 27 6	14 21 28 7	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13
March	8 15 22 1 8	9 16 23 2 9	10 17 24 3 10	11 18 25 4 11	12 19 26 5 12	13 20 27 6 13	14 21 28 7 14	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13
March	8 15 22 1 8 15	9 16 23 2 9 16	10 17 24 3 10 17	11 18 25 4 11 18	12 19 26 5 12 19	13 20 27 6 13 20	14 21 28 7 14 21	<b>Start Spring 2026 Semester</b> Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16
	8 15 22 1 8 15 22	9 16 23 2 9 16 23	10 17 24 3 10 17 24	11 18 25 4 11 18 25	12 19 26 5 12 19 26	13 20 27 6 13 20 27	14 21 28 7 14 21 28	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31
	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31	11 18 25 4 11 18 25	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week
	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 1 8	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week
	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 1 8 25 22 29	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 -10 17	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week
	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 1 8 15 22 29 6	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 -10 17 24 1 8	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break
April	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 1 8 15 22 29 6 13	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25
April	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement
April	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement Santa Ana College: June 4 Commencement
April	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement
April May	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 —10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement Santa Ana College: June 4 Commencement End of Spring 2026 Semester
April May	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 -10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement Santa Ana College: June 4 Commencement End of Spring 2026 Semester  Start of Summer 2026
April May June	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement Santa Ana College: June 4 Commencement End of Spring 2026 Semester  Start of Summer 2026 Juneteenth: June 19
April May	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement Santa Ana College: June 4 Commencement End of Spring 2026 Semester  Start of Summer 2026
April May June	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement Santa Ana College: June 4 Commencement End of Spring 2026 Semester  Start of Summer 2026 Juneteenth: June 19
April May June	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement Santa Ana College: June 4 Commencement End of Spring 2026 Semester  Start of Summer 2026 Juneteenth: June 19
April May June	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement Santa Ana College: June 4 Commencement End of Spring 2026 Semester  Start of Summer 2026 Juneteenth: June 19
April May June	8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12	9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13	10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7	11 18 25 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15	12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9	13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3	14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18	Start Spring 2026 Semester Lincoln's Birthday: Feburary 13 President's Day: February 16  Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break  Memorial Day: May 25 Santiago Canyon College: June 5 Commencement Santa Ana College: June 4 Commencement End of Spring 2026 Semester  Start of Summer 2026 Juneteenth: June 19

**NOTE**: If the holiday is a Friday, weekend classes <u>DO NOT</u> meet. If a holiday is a Monday, weekend classes <u>DO</u> meet.

	Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
August	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
	16	17	18	19	20	21	22
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
September	30	31	1	2	3	4	5
	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
	13	14	15	16	17	18	19
	20	21	22	23	24	25	26
October	27	28	29	30	1	2	3
	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
	11	12	13	14	15	16	17
	18	19	20	21	22	23	24
	25	26	27	28	29	30	31
November	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
	15	16	17	18	19	20	21
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28
December	29	30	1	2	3	4	5
	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
	13	14	15	16	17	18	19
	20	21	22	23	24	25	26
January	27	28	29	30	31	1	2
	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
	10	11	12	13	14	15	16
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30
February	31	1	2	3	4	5	6
•	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
March	28	1	2	3	4	5	6
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
April	28	29	30	31	1	2	3
·	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
	11	12	13	14	15	16	17
	18	19	20	21	22	23	24
	25	26	27	28	29	30	1
May	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
	16	17	18	19	20	21	22
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
June	30	31	1	2	3	4	5
	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
	13	14	15	16	17	18	19
	20	21	22	23	24	25	26
July	27	28	29	30	1	2	3
	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
	11	12	13	14	15	16	17
	18	19	20	21	22	23	24
	25	26	27	28	29	30	31
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
		•					ř

Summer Ends 8/7								
Common Days SAC 8/11 & 13; SCC 8/12 &13								
Start Fall 2026 Semester								
Labor Day: September 7								
End of 8th	week							
Veterans D	ay: November 11							
· ·	ng: November 26-27  2026 Semester							

Christmas Holiday: December 25 New Years Day; January 1

Four-week Intersession									
Martin Luther King Holiday: January 18									
Common Days SAC 2/2 & 4; SCC 2/3 & 4									
Start Spring 2027 Semester									
Lincoln's Birthday: February 12									
President's Day: February 15									
Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break									
Memorial Day: May 31 Santiago Canyon College: June 3 Santa Ana College: June 4 End of Spring 2027 Semester									



	Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat	
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	
August	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	
	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	
September	29	30	31	1	2	3	4	
	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	
October	26	27	28	29	30	1	2	
	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	
	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	
November	31	1	2	3	4	5	6	
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	
December	28	29	30	1	2	3	4	
	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	
January	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	
	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	
February	30	31	1	2	3	4	5	
, ,	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	
	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	
	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	
March	27	28	29	1	2	3	4	
TVICIT CIT	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	
April	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	
, .p	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	
	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	
May	30	1	2	3	4	5	6	
,	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	
June	28	29	30	31	1	2	3	
	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	,
	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	
	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	
July	25	26	27	28	29	30	1	
•	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	
	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	
	30	31	1	2	3	4	5	
					-		ı '	

	- 1-								
Summer Ends	<u> </u>								
Common Days	SAC 8/10 & 12; SCC 8/11 & 12								
Sta	rt Fall 2027 Semester								
Lak	aar Day Santambar 6								
Lak	oor Day: September 6								
End	d of 8th week								
Vet	terans Day: November 11								
Tha	anksgiving: November 25-26								
En	d of Fall 2027 Semester								
Ch.	ristmas Haliday: Dosambar 25								
	ristmas Holiday: December 25								
Ne	New Years Day; January 1								

Four-week Intersession									
Martin Luther King Holiday: .	anuary 17								
Common Days SAC 2/1 & 3; SCC 2/2 & 3									
Start Spring 2028 Semester									
Lincoln's Birthday: Febrary 1	8								
President's Day: February 21	<u>.</u>								
Cesar Chavez Day: March 31 End of 8th week Spring Break									
Memorial Day: May 29									
Santiago Canyon College: Jur	ne 2								
Santa Ana College: June 1									
End of Spring 2028 Semeste	r								
·									

Start of Summer 2028
Juneteenth: June 19
Independence Day: July 4 (observed)
End of Summer 2028

\*\*\*\* RSCCD NONCREDIT INSTRUCTIONAL CALENDAR 2025 - 2026\*\*\*\*

	Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat	Faculty Projects: August 11 - 14
August	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	SAC SCE F/T Common Days 12, 14
, lugust	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	SCC SCE F/T Common Days 13, 14
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	Fall 2025: Instruction Begins August 18
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	
September	31	1	2	3	4	5	6	Labor Day: September 1
ocpteoc.	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	
October	28	29	30	1	2	3	4	
	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	
	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	
November	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Veterans Day: November 11
	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	·
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	CEFA:Thanksgiving: Nov 24-29 FARSCCD: Thanksgiving Nov 27-29
December	30	1	2	- <b></b>	4	5	6	
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	FARSCCD End of Fall 2025 Semester: December 12
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	CEFA End of Fall 2025 Semester: December 13
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	Christmas Holiday: December 25
January	28	29	30	31	1	2	3	New Years Day: January 1
	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Faculty Projects: January 6, 8 F/T Common Days 7, 8
	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	Spring 2026: Instruction Begins January 12
	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	Martin Luther King Holiday: January 19
	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	
February	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	
,	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	Lincoln's Birthday: February 13
	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	President's Day: February 16
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	
March	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	
	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	
	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	
April	29	30	31	1	2	3	4	Cesar Chavez Day: March 31
·	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	Spring Break April 6-11
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	
	26	27	28	29	30	1	2	
May	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	SAC Commencement June 4 SCC Commencement June 5
,	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	FARSCCD End of Spring Semester 2026: May 22
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	CEFA End of Spring Semester 2026: May 23
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	Memorial Day May 25
June	31	1	2	3	4	5	6	Summer 2026 Instruction Begins May 26
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	Juneteenth: June 19
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	
July	28	29	30	1	2	3	4	Independence Day: July 3 (observed)
•	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	
August	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	End of Summer 2026: August 1
5								<u> </u>

NOTE: If the holiday is a Friday, weekend classes DO NOT meet. If a holiday is a Monday, weekend classes DO meet.

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 175 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	CLASS I	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$ 81,468.92	\$ 87,531.70	\$ 91,547.04	\$ 95,560.79	\$ 99,574.52	\$ 103,588.29	\$ 107,773.72
4	\$ 85,226.76	\$ 91,289.52	\$ 95,307.98	\$ 99,315.49	\$ 103,332.37	\$ 107,328.95	\$ 111,519.05
5	\$ 88,970.55	\$ 95,044.22	\$ 99,054.87	\$ 103,073.32	\$ 107,066.77	\$ 111,086.76	\$ 115,275.31
6	\$ 92,723.71	\$ 98,795.79	\$ 102,808.02	\$ 106,815.52	\$ 110,827.73	\$ 114,843.05	\$ 119,026.92
7	\$ 96,472.15	\$ 102,548.95	\$ 106,567.41	\$ 110,588.97	\$ 114,587.13	\$ 118,604.01	\$ 122,778.51
8	\$ 100,230.01	\$ 106,295.86	\$ 110,314.31	\$ 114,320.26	\$ 118,337.14	\$ 122,354.01	\$ 126,530.08
9	\$ 103,984.69	\$ 110,055.24	\$ 114,078.37	\$ 118,074.97	\$ 122,094.98	\$ 126,099.34	\$ 130,280.08
10	\$ 107,737.84	\$ 113,813.09	\$ 117,825.27	\$ 121,826.54	\$ 125,841.84	\$ 129,852.50	\$ 134,034.79
11	\$ 111,490.98	\$ 117,564.67	\$ 121,567.46	\$ 125,587.47	\$ 129,598.12	\$ 133,607.18	\$ 137,791.05
12	\$ 115,245.68	\$ 121,319.35	\$ 125,326.89	\$ 129,335.98	\$ 133,341.90	\$ 137,358.78	\$ 141,541.09
13		\$ 125,069.39	\$ 129,076.88	\$ 133,093.76	\$ 137,104.41	\$ 141,115.04	\$ 145,294.23
14		\$ 128,822.53	\$ 132,831.61	\$ 136,846.93	\$ 140,859.13	\$ 144,872.86	\$ 149,048.93
15		\$ 132,575.68	\$ 136,586.32	\$ 140,603.18	\$ 144,609.15	\$ 148,622.90	\$ 152,800.51
16				\$ 144,357.89	\$ 148,357.60	\$ 152,374.48	\$ 156,553.66
Α						\$ 157,997.17	\$ 162,181.01
В						\$ 163,633.90	\$ 167,808.39
С						\$ 169,265.94	\$ 173,438.10

#### CLASS PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL PLACEMENT AND/OR CLASS CHANGES

CLASS I a) Bachelor's degree

b) CTE placement - appropriate minimum qualifications

CLASS II

- a) Master's degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree or 65 approved semester units plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus three years approved work experience credit

CLASS III

- a) Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 49 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus six years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 175 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### CLASS IV

- a) Master's degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 64 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III

#### CLASS V

- a) Master's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 79 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Master's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV

### CLASS VI

- a) Master's degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 94 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units plus nine years
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years approved work experience credit after placement on Class V

#### CLASS VII a) Doctorate degree

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2026/2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 175 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	CLASS I	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$ 84,075.92	\$ 90,332.71	\$ 94,476.54	\$ 98,618.74	\$ 102,760.91	\$ 106,903.12	\$ 111,222.48
4	\$ 87,954.02	\$ 94,210.78	\$ 98,357.83	\$ 102,493.59	\$ 106,639.00	\$ 110,763.47	\$ 115,087.66
5	\$ 91,817.61	\$ 98,085.64	\$ 102,224.63	\$ 106,371.67	\$ 110,492.90	\$ 114,641.54	\$ 118,964.12
6	\$ 95,690.87	\$ 101,957.25	\$ 106,097.88	\$ 110,233.62	\$ 114,374.22	\$ 118,518.02	\$ 122,835.78
7	\$ 99,559.26	\$ 105,830.52	\$ 109,977.57	\$ 114,127.82	\$ 118,253.92	\$ 122,399.34	\$ 126,707.42
8	\$ 103,437.37	\$ 109,697.33	\$ 113,844.37	\$ 117,978.51	\$ 122,123.93	\$ 126,269.34	\$ 130,579.04
9	\$ 107,312.20	\$ 113,577.00	\$ 117,728.87	\$ 121,853.37	\$ 126,002.02	\$ 130,134.52	\$ 134,449.04
10	\$ 111,185.45	\$ 117,455.11	\$ 121,595.68	\$ 125,724.98	\$ 129,868.78	\$ 134,007.78	\$ 138,323.90
11	\$ 115,058.69	\$ 121,326.74	\$ 125,457.62	\$ 129,606.27	\$ 133,745.26	\$ 137,882.61	\$ 142,200.36
12	\$ 118,933.54	\$ 125,201.57	\$ 129,337.35	\$ 133,474.73	\$ 137,608.84	\$ 141,754.27	\$ 146,070.40
13		\$ 129,071.61	\$ 133,207.34	\$ 137,352.76	\$ 141,491.75	\$ 145,630.72	\$ 149,943.64
14		\$ 132,944.85	\$ 137,082.22	\$ 141,226.04	\$ 145,366.62	\$ 149,508.79	\$ 153,818.50
15		\$ 136,818.10	\$ 140,957.08	\$ 145,102.48	\$ 149,236.64	\$ 153,378.83	\$ 157,690.13
16				\$ 148,977.34	\$ 153,105.04	\$ 157,250.46	\$ 161,563.38
Α						\$ 163,053.08	\$ 167,370.80
В						\$ 168,870.19	\$ 173,178.26
С						\$ 174,682.45	\$ 178,988.12

#### CLASS PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL PLACEMENT AND/OR CLASS CHANGES

CLASS I a) Bachelor's degree

b) CTE placement - appropriate minimum qualifications

CLASS II

- a) Master's degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - Associate degree or 65 approved semester units plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus three years approved work experience credit

#### CLASS III

- a) Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 49 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus six years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2026/2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 175 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

## CLASS IV

- a) Master's degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 64 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III

## CLASS V

- a) Master's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 79 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Master's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV

#### CLASS VI

- a) Master's degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 94 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units plus nine years
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years approved work experience credit after placement on Class V

#### CLASS VII

a) Doctorate degree

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 175 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	 CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	(	CLASS VII
1								
2								
3	\$ 86,766.35	\$ 93,223.36	\$ 97,499.79	\$ 101,774.54	\$ 106,049.26	\$ 110,324.02	\$	114,781.59
4	\$ 90,768.55	\$ 97,225.52	\$ 101,505.28	\$ 105,773.38	\$ 110,051.45	\$ 114,307.90	\$	118,770.47
5	\$ 94,755.77	\$ 101,224.38	\$ 105,495.82	\$ 109,775.56	\$ 114,028.68	\$ 118,310.07	\$	122,770.97
6	\$ 98,752.98	\$ 105,219.89	\$ 109,493.01	\$ 113,761.10	\$ 118,034.19	\$ 122,310.60	\$	126,766.53
7	\$ 102,745.16	\$ 109,217.09	\$ 113,496.85	\$ 117,779.91	\$ 122,038.05	\$ 126,316.12	\$	130,762.06
8	\$ 106,747.36	\$ 113,207.64	\$ 117,487.39	\$ 121,753.82	\$ 126,031.89	\$ 130,309.96	\$	134,757.57
9	\$ 110,746.19	\$ 117,211.47	\$ 121,496.20	\$ 125,752.68	\$ 130,034.08	\$ 134,298.82	\$	138,751.41
10	\$ 114,743.39	\$ 121,213.67	\$ 125,486.75	\$ 129,748.18	\$ 134,024.58	\$ 138,296.03	\$	142,750.27
11	\$ 118,740.57	\$ 125,209.19	\$ 129,472.27	\$ 133,753.67	\$ 138,025.11	\$ 142,294.86	\$	146,750.77
12	\$ 122,739.41	\$ 129,208.02	\$ 133,476.15	\$ 137,745.92	\$ 142,012.32	\$ 146,290.40	\$	150,744.66
13		\$ 133,201.91	\$ 137,469.98	\$ 141,748.05	\$ 146,019.48	\$ 150,290.91	\$	154,741.84
14		\$ 137,199.09	\$ 141,468.85	\$ 145,745.27	\$ 150,018.35	\$ 154,293.07	\$	158,740.69
15		\$ 141,196.28	\$ 145,467.70	\$ 149,745.76	\$ 154,012.21	\$ 158,286.96	\$	162,736.21
16				\$ 153,744.62	\$ 158,004.41	\$ 162,282.48	\$	166,733.41
Α						\$ 168,270.78	\$	172,726.66
В						\$ 174,274.03	\$	178,719.96
С						\$ 180,272.29	\$	184,715.74

## CLASS PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL PLACEMENT AND/OR CLASS CHANGES

CLASS I a) Bachelor's degree

b) CTE placement - appropriate minimum qualifications

CLASS II a) Mas

- a) Master's degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree or 65 approved semester units plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus three years approved work experience credit

CLASS III

- a) Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 49 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 3. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 175 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### CLASS IV

- a) Master's degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 64 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III

#### CLASS V

- a) Master's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 79 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Master's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV

#### CLASS VI

- a) Master's degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 94 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units plus nine years
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years approved work experience credit after placement on Class V

#### CLASS VII

a) Doctorate degree

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 192 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$ 89,384.09	\$ 96,035.20	\$ 100,440.66	\$ 104,844.56	\$ 109,248.47	\$ 113,652.32	\$ 118,243.50
4	\$ 93,507.10	\$ 100,158.21	\$ 104,566.77	\$ 108,964.42	\$ 113,371.43	\$ 117,756.62	\$ 122,352.49
5	\$ 97,614.47	\$ 104,278.07	\$ 108,678.82	\$ 113,087.41	\$ 117,467.89	\$ 121,879.61	\$ 126,473.88
6	\$ 101,731.23	\$ 108,393.25	\$ 112,795.61	\$ 117,193.24	\$ 121,594.01	\$ 125,999.45	\$ 130,590.65
7	\$ 105,844.86	\$ 112,511.56	\$ 116,920.16	\$ 121,333.38	\$ 125,718.60	\$ 130,125.59	\$ 134,705.82
8	\$ 109,967.86	\$ 116,622.08	\$ 121,030.66	\$ 125,426.76	\$ 129,833.76	\$ 134,240.79	\$ 138,822.60
9	\$ 114,086.16	\$ 120,746.63	\$ 125,161.44	\$ 129,546.64	\$ 133,956.78	\$ 138,349.73	\$ 142,936.20
10	\$ 118,204.49	\$ 124,869.63	\$ 129,271.96	\$ 133,661.83	\$ 138,067.28	\$ 142,468.06	\$ 147,056.08
11	\$ 122,322.78	\$ 128,986.37	\$ 133,377.78	\$ 137,787.93	\$ 142,188.68	\$ 146,586.36	\$ 151,177.53
12	\$ 126,441.13	\$ 133,104.71	\$ 137,502.34	\$ 141,901.59	\$ 146,296.08	\$ 150,703.11	\$ 155,291.17
13		\$ 137,219.89	\$ 141,615.99	\$ 146,023.02	\$ 150,423.79	\$ 154,824.55	\$ 159,409.49
14		\$ 141,338.20	\$ 145,735.85	\$ 150,141.33	\$ 154,543.64	\$ 158,947.52	\$ 163,529.34
15		\$ 145,454.96	\$ 149,855.72	\$ 154,262.77	\$ 158,657.28	\$ 163,061.19	\$ 167,644.54
16				\$ 158,382.60	\$ 162,770.90	\$ 167,177.91	\$ 171,762.83
Α						\$ 173,346.04	\$ 177,935.65
В						\$ 179,530.54	\$ 184,110.78
С						\$ 185,710.34	\$ 190,285.90

#### CLASS PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL PLACEMENT AND/OR CLASS CHANGES

CLASS I a) Bachelor's degree

b) CTE placement - appropriate minimum qualifications

CLASS II a) Master's degree

- b) Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree or 65 approved semester units plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus three years approved work experience credit

CLASS III

- a) Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 49 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 3. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II

Human Resources, 6/30/2025

Reflects 8% increase effective 1st day of unit member's work year (Article 7.1.1)

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 192 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### CLASS IV

- a) Master's degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 64 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III

#### CLASS V

- a) Master's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 79 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Master's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 3. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV

#### CLASS VI

- a) Master's degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 94 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units plus nine years
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years approved work experience credit after placement on Class V

#### CLASS VII

a) Doctorate degree

#### RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

# 2026/2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 192 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$ 92,244.38	\$ 99,108.32	\$ 103,654.76	\$ 108,199.59	\$ 112,744.42	\$ 117,289.19	\$ 122,027.29
4	\$ 96,499.33	\$ 103,363.27	\$ 107,912.91	\$ 112,451.28	\$ 116,999.32	\$ 121,524.83	\$ 126,267.77
5	\$ 100,738.14	\$ 107,614.96	\$ 112,156.55	\$ 116,706.20	\$ 121,226.87	\$ 125,779.76	\$ 130,521.05
6	\$ 104,986.63	\$ 111,861.84	\$ 116,405.07	\$ 120,943.43	\$ 125,485.02	\$ 130,031.44	\$ 134,769.55
7	\$ 109,231.90	\$ 116,111.93	\$ 120,661.60	\$ 125,216.05	\$ 129,741.60	\$ 134,289.61	\$ 139,016.40
8	\$ 113,486.83	\$ 120,353.98	\$ 124,903.64	\$ 129,440.42	\$ 133,988.44	\$ 138,536.49	\$ 143,264.92
9	\$ 117,736.91	\$ 124,610.52	\$ 129,166.61	\$ 133,692.14	\$ 138,243.39	\$ 142,776.92	\$ 147,510.16
10	\$ 121,987.03	\$ 128,865.46	\$ 133,408.66	\$ 137,939.01	\$ 142,485.43	\$ 147,027.04	\$ 151,761.88
11	\$ 126,237.11	\$ 133,113.94	\$ 137,645.87	\$ 142,197.14	\$ 146,738.72	\$ 151,277.12	\$ 156,015.22
12	\$ 130,487.24	\$ 137,364.06	\$ 141,902.42	\$ 146,442.44	\$ 150,977.56	\$ 155,525.61	\$ 160,260.49
13		\$ 141,610.93	\$ 146,147.71	\$ 150,695.76	\$ 155,237.35	\$ 159,778.93	\$ 164,510.60
14		\$ 145,861.02	\$ 150,399.40	\$ 154,945.85	\$ 159,489.04	\$ 164,033.84	\$ 168,762.27
15		\$ 150,109.52	\$ 154,651.10	\$ 159,199.17	\$ 163,734.32	\$ 168,279.14	\$ 173,009.16
16				\$ 163,450.84	\$ 167,979.57	\$ 172,527.60	\$ 177,259.24
Α						\$ 178,893.12	\$ 183,629.59
В						\$ 185,275.52	\$ 190,002.33
С						\$ 191,653.07	\$ 196,375.05

#### CLASS PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL PLACEMENT AND/OR CLASS CHANGES

CLASS I a) Bachelor's degree

b) CTE placement - appropriate minimum qualifications

CLASS II

- a) Master's degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree or 65 approved semester units plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus three years approved work experience credit

CLASS III

- a) Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 49 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus six years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II

#### RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

# 2026/2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 192 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### CLASS IV

- a) Master's degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 64 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III

#### CLASS V

- a) Master's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 79 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Master's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 3. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV

# CLASS VI

- a) Master's degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 94 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units plus nine years
  - 2. Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years approved work experience credit after placement on Class V

#### CLASS VII

a) Doctorate degree

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 192 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$ 95,196.20	\$ 102,279.79	\$ 106,971.71	\$ 111,661.98	\$ 116,352.24	\$ 121,042.45	\$ 125,932.16
4	\$ 99,587.31	\$ 106,670.90	\$ 111,366.12	\$ 116,049.72	\$ 120,743.29	\$ 125,413.63	\$ 130,308.34
5	\$ 103,961.76	\$ 111,058.64	\$ 115,745.55	\$ 120,440.80	\$ 125,106.13	\$ 129,804.71	\$ 134,697.72
6	\$ 108,346.21	\$ 115,441.42	\$ 120,130.03	\$ 124,813.62	\$ 129,500.54	\$ 134,192.44	\$ 139,082.18
7	\$ 112,727.32	\$ 119,827.51	\$ 124,522.77	\$ 129,222.97	\$ 133,893.33	\$ 138,586.87	\$ 143,464.93
8	\$ 117,118.41	\$ 124,205.31	\$ 128,900.56	\$ 133,582.51	\$ 138,276.07	\$ 142,969.66	\$ 147,849.40
9	\$ 121,504.49	\$ 128,598.06	\$ 133,299.94	\$ 137,970.28	\$ 142,667.18	\$ 147,345.78	\$ 152,230.48
10	\$ 125,890.62	\$ 132,989.15	\$ 137,677.74	\$ 142,353.06	\$ 147,044.97	\$ 151,731.91	\$ 156,618.26
11	\$ 130,276.70	\$ 137,373.58	\$ 142,050.54	\$ 146,747.45	\$ 151,434.36	\$ 156,117.99	\$ 161,007.70
12	\$ 134,662.84	\$ 141,759.71	\$ 146,443.30	\$ 151,128.60	\$ 155,808.84	\$ 160,502.42	\$ 165,388.83
13		\$ 146,142.48	\$ 150,824.43	\$ 155,518.02	\$ 160,204.95	\$ 164,891.86	\$ 169,774.94
14		\$ 150,528.58	\$ 155,212.18	\$ 159,904.12	\$ 164,592.69	\$ 169,282.93	\$ 174,162.67
15		\$ 154,913.02	\$ 159,599.94	\$ 164,293.55	\$ 168,973.81	\$ 173,664.08	\$ 178,545.45
16				\$ 168,681.27	\$ 173,354.91	\$ 178,048.48	\$ 182,931.54
A						\$ 184,617.70	\$ 189,505.74
В						\$ 191,204.33	\$ 196,082.40
С						\$ 197,785.97	\$ 202,659.05

#### CLASS PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL PLACEMENT AND/OR CLASS CHANGES

CLASS I a) Bachelor's degree

b) CTE placement - appropriate minimum qualifications

CLASS II a) Master's degree

- b) Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree or 65 approved semester units plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus three years approved work experience credit

CLASS III

- a) Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 49 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus six years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 192 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### CLASS IV

- a) Master's degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 64 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III

#### CLASS V

- a) Master's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 79 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Master's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV

#### CLASS VI

- a) Master's degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 94 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units plus nine years
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years approved work experience credit after placement on Class V

#### CLASS VII

a) Doctorate degree

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 225 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	CLASS I	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$104,746.24	\$112,541.22	\$117,703.56	\$122,864.32	\$128,025.07	\$133,185.85	\$138,566.65
4	\$109,577.71	\$117,372.74	\$122,539.71	\$127,692.69	\$132,856.57	\$137,995.50	\$143,382.56
5	\$114,392.03	\$122,201.08	\$127,357.16	\$132,524.17	\$137,658.39	\$142,826.98	\$148,212.47
6	\$119,217.29	\$127,023.22	\$132,182.41	\$137,335.39	\$142,493.03	\$147,655.33	\$153,034.59
7	\$124,036.31	\$131,850.03	\$137,015.46	\$142,187.16	\$147,327.62	\$152,491.50	\$157,858.26
8	\$128,867.77	\$136,667.46	\$141,832.90	\$146,984.30	\$152,148.17	\$157,313.64	\$162,681.96
9	\$133,694.58	\$141,500.48	\$146,672.19	\$151,811.12	\$156,979.66	\$162,127.96	\$167,504.08
10	\$138,521.38	\$146,332.02	\$151,489.62	\$156,634.80	\$161,797.14	\$166,953.21	\$172,330.90
11	\$143,346.65	\$151,155.68	\$156,302.42	\$161,470.97	\$166,627.08	\$171,781.58	\$177,160.81
12	\$148,173.46	\$155,982.47	\$161,135.46	\$166,289.95	\$171,439.82	\$176,605.25	\$181,981.35
13		\$160,804.61	\$165,956.03	\$171,121.45	\$176,277.55	\$181,433.63	\$186,808.19
14		\$165,629.84	\$170,784.40	\$175,946.69	\$181,105.92	\$186,265.10	\$191,634.99
15		\$170,455.09	\$175,611.18	\$180,776.64	\$185,926.48	\$191,087.26	\$196,458.67
16				\$185,603.44	\$190,745.47	\$195,910.92	\$201,283.94
Α						\$203,139.44	\$208,519.45
В						\$210,386.68	\$215,754.98
С						\$217,629.21	\$222,992.87

# CLASS PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL PLACEMENT AND/OR CLASS CHANGES

CLASS I a) Bachelor's degree

b) CTE placement - appropriate minimum qualifications

CLASS II a) Master's degree

- b) Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree or 65 approved semester units plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus three years approved work experience credit

CLASS III

- a) Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 49 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus six years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II

Human Resources, 6/30/2025

Reflects 8% increase effective 1st day of unit member's work year (Article 7.1.1)

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 225 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### CLASS IV

- a) Master's degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 64 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III

#### CLASS V

- a) Master's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 79 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Master's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV

#### CLASS VI

- a) Master's degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 94 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units plus nine years
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years approved work experience credit after placement on Class V

#### CLASS VII

a) Doctorate degree

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2026/2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 225 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	CLASS I	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$108,098.12	\$116,142.54	\$121,470.07	\$126,795.97	\$132,121.88	\$137,447.80	\$143,000.78
4	\$113,084.20	\$121,128.67	\$126,460.98	\$131,778.86	\$137,107.98	\$142,411.35	\$147,970.80
5	\$118,052.58	\$126,111.51	\$131,432.58	\$136,764.94	\$142,063.45	\$147,397.44	\$152,955.27
6	\$123,032.24	\$131,087.96	\$136,412.25	\$141,730.12	\$147,052.81	\$152,380.30	\$157,931.70
7	\$128,005.47	\$136,069.23	\$141,399.95	\$146,737.15	\$152,042.11	\$157,371.23	\$162,909.73
8	\$132,991.54	\$141,040.82	\$146,371.55	\$151,687.79	\$157,016.91	\$162,347.67	\$167,887.78
9	\$137,972.81	\$146,028.50	\$151,365.70	\$156,669.08	\$162,003.01	\$167,316.05	\$172,864.21
10	\$142,954.06	\$151,014.64	\$156,337.29	\$161,647.11	\$166,974.65	\$172,295.72	\$177,845.49
11	\$147,933.74	\$155,992.66	\$161,304.09	\$166,638.05	\$171,959.14	\$177,278.59	\$182,829.96
12	\$152,915.01	\$160,973.91	\$166,291.80	\$171,611.23	\$176,925.90	\$182,256.62	\$187,804.76
13		\$165,950.35	\$171,266.62	\$176,597.34	\$181,918.43	\$187,239.50	\$192,786.06
14		\$170,929.99	\$176,249.50	\$181,576.99	\$186,901.31	\$192,225.58	\$197,767.30
15		\$175,909.66	\$181,230.74	\$186,561.50	\$191,876.13	\$197,202.05	\$202,745.35
16				\$191,542.75	\$196,849.32	\$202,180.07	\$207,725.02
Α						\$209,639.90	\$215,192.07
В						\$217,119.05	\$222,659.14
С						\$224,593.35	\$230,128.64

## CLASS PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL PLACEMENT AND/OR CLASS CHANGES

CLASS I a) Bachelor's degree

b) CTE placement - appropriate minimum qualifications

CLASS II a) Master's degree

- b) Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - Associate degree or 65 approved semester units plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus three years approved work experience credit

CLASS III

- a) Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 49 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus six years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II

Human Resources, 6/30/2025

Reflects 3.2% increase effective 1st day of unit member's work year (Article 7.1.1)

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2026/2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 225 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### CLASS IV

- a) Master's degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 64 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III

#### CLASS V

- a) Master's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 79 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Master's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV

#### CLASS VI

- a) Master's degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 94 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units plus nine years
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years approved work experience credit after placement on Class V

#### CLASS VII

a) Doctorate degree

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 225 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$ 111,557.26	\$ 119,859.10	\$ 125,357.12	\$ 130,853.45	\$ 136,349.78	\$ 141,846.13	\$ 147,576.81
4	\$ 116,702.89	\$ 125,004.79	\$ 130,507.74	\$ 135,995.78	\$ 141,495.44	\$ 146,968.51	\$ 152,705.86
5	\$ 121,830.26	\$ 130,147.08	\$ 135,638.43	\$ 141,141.42	\$ 146,609.48	\$ 152,114.16	\$ 157,849.84
6	\$ 126,969.28	\$ 135,282.77	\$ 140,777.44	\$ 146,265.49	\$ 151,758.50	\$ 157,256.47	\$ 162,985.51
7	\$ 132,101.64	\$ 140,423.45	\$ 145,924.75	\$ 151,432.74	\$ 156,907.45	\$ 162,407.11	\$ 168,122.84
8	\$ 137,247.27	\$ 145,554.13	\$ 151,055.44	\$ 156,541.80	\$ 162,041.46	\$ 167,542.80	\$ 173,260.19
9	\$ 142,387.94	\$ 150,701.41	\$ 156,209.40	\$ 161,682.49	\$ 167,187.10	\$ 172,670.17	\$ 178,395.87
10	\$ 147,528.59	\$ 155,847.11	\$ 161,340.08	\$ 166,819.82	\$ 172,317.83	\$ 177,809.18	\$ 183,536.55
11	\$ 152,667.62	\$ 160,984.42	\$ 166,465.82	\$ 171,970.46	\$ 177,461.83	\$ 182,951.50	\$ 188,680.52
12	\$ 157,808.29	\$ 166,125.07	\$ 171,613.13	\$ 177,102.79	\$ 182,587.53	\$ 188,088.83	\$ 193,814.51
13		\$ 171,260.76	\$ 176,747.15	\$ 182,248.45	\$ 187,739.82	\$ 193,231.17	\$ 198,955.21
14		\$ 176,399.75	\$ 181,889.49	\$ 187,387.45	\$ 192,882.15	\$ 198,376.80	\$ 204,095.86
15		\$ 181,538.77	\$ 187,030.12	\$ 192,531.46	\$ 198,016.16	\$ 203,512.52	\$ 209,233.20
16				\$ 197,672.11	\$ 203,148.50	\$ 208,649.83	\$ 214,372.22
Α						\$ 216,348.38	\$ 222,078.22
В						\$ 224,066.86	\$ 229,784.23
С						\$ 231,780.33	\$ 237,492.76

## CLASS PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL PLACEMENT AND/OR CLASS CHANGES

CLASS I a) Bachelor's degree

b) CTE placement - appropriate minimum qualifications

CLASS II a) Master's degree

- b) Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - Associate degree or 65 approved semester units plus six years approved work experience credit
    - 2. Bachelor's degree plus three years approved work experience credit

CLASS III

- a) Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 49 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Associate degree plus 30 approved semester units, or 95 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Bachelor's degree plus six years approved work experience credit
  - 3. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class II

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT ANNUAL 225 DAY SALARY SCHEDULE

#### CLASS IV

- a) Master's degree plus 30 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 64 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class III

#### CLASS V

- a) Master's degree plus 45 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 79 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Bachelor's degree plus 45 approved semester units plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - 2. Master's degree plus nine years approved work experience credit
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units after initial placement on Class IV

#### CLASS VI

- a) Master's degree plus 60 approved semester units earned after award of the degree
- b) Bachelor's degree plus 94 approved semester units including a master's degree
- c) CTE placement appropriate minimum qualifications plus one of the following:
  - 1. Master's degree plus 15 approved semester units plus nine years
  - Completion of 15 approved semester units or nine years approved work experience credit after placement on Class V

#### CLASS VII

a) Doctorate degree

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE A Effective Summer 2026

TEACHING	,	•		times the ho	• ,		01.400.1/11
STEP	CLASSI	CLASSII	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$113.16	\$121.57	\$127.15	\$132.72	\$138.30	\$143.87	\$149.69
4	\$118.37	\$126.79	\$132.36	\$137.94	\$143.52	\$149.07	\$154.89
5	\$123.56	\$132.01	\$137.58	\$143.15	\$148.71	\$154.30	\$160.09
LAB	· ·		lecture hour	)			
STEP	CLASS I	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$101.84	\$109.43	\$114.45	\$119.46	\$124.48	\$129.48	\$134.73
4	\$106.53	\$114.11	\$119.14	\$124.14	\$129.17	\$134.16	\$139.40
5	\$111.21	\$118.81	\$123.83	\$128.84	\$133.85	\$138.87	\$144.09
COUNSELING/							
LIBRARIAN/NURSING	(Equivalent	to .085 of a	lecture hour	)			
STEP	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1	0271001	32713311	<b>027 (00 III</b>	02/10011	<b>327133 7</b>	02, 100 TI	02,100 111
2							
	¢06.49	¢402.24	¢400.00	£440.04	¢447.55	¢400.00	¢407.00
3 4	\$96.18 \$100.61	\$103.34 \$107.77	\$108.08 \$112.51	\$112.81 \$117.24	\$117.55 \$121.99	\$122.28 \$126.71	\$127.23 \$131.65
5	\$100.01	\$107.77	\$116.95	\$117.24	\$121.99	\$120.71	\$131.03
3	\$105.02	φ112.20	φ110.93	φ121.00	φ120.41	φ131.13	φ130.06
NON TEACHING	/Carrieral t	4- 0 F - 1-	<b> </b>				
NON-TEACHING STEP	CLASS I	to 0.5 of a le	,	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	OLASS VI	OLASS VII
1							
2							

See Article 7.3.1 Schedule A - Intersession and Summer

\$56.59

\$59.19

\$61.78

\$60.79

\$63.40

\$66.02

\$63.58

\$66.19

\$68.79

\$66.37

\$68.97

\$71.59

\$69.15

\$71.77

\$74.36

Human Resources, 6/30/2025 Reflects 8% Increase

3

4

5

Board Approval Date: 7/14/2025

\$71.95

\$74.53

\$77.15

\$74.84

\$77.45

\$80.06

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2026/2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE A Effective Summer 2027

TEACHING				times the ho			
STEP	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	CLASS VI	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$116.78	\$125.46	\$131.22	\$136.97	\$142.72	\$148.47	\$154.48
4	\$122.16	\$130.85	\$136.60	\$142.35	\$148.11	\$153.84	\$159.85
5	\$127.51	\$136.23	\$141.98	\$147.73	\$153.47	\$159.23	\$165.21
LAB	(Equivalent	to 0.90 of a	lecture hour	)			
STEP	CLASS I	CLASS II	CLASS III	<b>CLASS IV</b>	CLASS V	<b>CLASS VI</b>	<b>CLASS VII</b>
1							
2							
3	\$105.10	\$112.93	\$118.11	\$123.28	\$128.46	\$133.62	\$139.04
4	\$109.94	\$117.76	\$122.95	\$128.11	\$133.30	\$138.45	\$143.86
5	\$114.77	\$122.61	\$127.80	\$132.96	\$138.13	\$143.31	\$148.70
COUNSELING/							
LIBRARIAN/NURSING	(Equivalent	to .085 of a	lecture hour	)			
STEP	CLASS I	<b>CLASS II</b>	<b>CLASS III</b>	<b>CLASS IV</b>	CLASS V	<b>CLASS VI</b>	<b>CLASS VII</b>
1							
2							
3	\$99.26	\$106.65	\$111.54	\$116.42	\$121.32	\$126.20	\$131.30
4	\$103.83	\$111.22	\$116.11	\$121.00	\$125.89	\$130.76	\$135.86
5	\$108.38	\$115.80	\$120.69	\$125.57	\$130.45	\$135.35	\$140.43
NON-TEACHING	(Equivalent	to 0.5 of a le	ecture hour)				
STEP	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	<b>CLASS IV</b>	CLASS V	<b>CLASS VI</b>	<b>CLASS VII</b>
1							
2							
3	\$58.40	\$62.73	\$65.61	\$68.50	\$71.36	\$74.25	\$77.24
4	\$61.09	\$65.43	\$68.31	\$71.18	\$74.07	\$76.92	\$79.92
5	\$63.76	\$68.13	\$70.99	\$73.88	\$76.74	\$79.62	\$82.62

See Article 7.3.1 Schedule A - Intersession and Summer

Human Resources, 6/30/2025 Reflects 3.2% Increase Board Approval Date: 7/14/2025

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE A Effective Summer 2028

TEACHING	(Lecture Ho			3 times the ho			
STEP	CLASS I	CLASS II	CLASS III	<b>CLASS IV</b>	CLASS V	<b>CLASS VI</b>	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$120.52	\$129.47	\$135.42	\$141.35	\$147.29	\$153.22	\$159.42
4	\$126.07	\$135.04	\$140.97	\$146.91	\$152.85	\$158.76	\$164.96
5	\$131.59	\$140.59	\$146.52	\$152.46	\$158.38	\$164.33	\$170.50
LAB	(Equivalent	to 0.90 of a	lecture hour	)			
STEP	CLASSI	<b>CLASS II</b>		CLASS IV	<b>CLASS V</b>	<b>CLASS VI</b>	<b>CLASS VII</b>
1							
2							
3	\$108.46	\$116.55	\$121.89	\$127.23	\$132.57	\$137.90	\$143.49
4	\$113.46	\$121.53	\$126.89	\$132.21	\$137.57	\$142.88	\$148.46
5	\$118.45	\$126.53	\$131.88	\$137.21	\$142.55	\$147.90	\$153.46
COUNSELING/							
LIBRARIAN/NURSING	(Equivalent	to .085 of a	lecture hour	)			
STEP	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	<b>CLASS IV</b>	CLASS V	<b>CLASS VI</b>	<b>CLASS VII</b>
1							
2							
3	\$102.44	\$110.06	\$115.11	\$120.15	\$125.20	\$130.24	\$135.50
4	\$107.16	\$114.78	\$119.83	\$124.87	\$129.92	\$134.94	\$140.21
5	\$111.85	\$119.50	\$124.55	\$129.59	\$134.63	\$139.68	\$144.93
NON-TEACHING	(Equivalent	to 0.5 of a le	ecture hour)				
STEP	CLASSI	<b>CLASS II</b>	,	<b>CLASS IV</b>	<b>CLASS V</b>	<b>CLASS VI</b>	<b>CLASS VII</b>
1							
2							
3	\$60.27	\$64.74	\$67.71	\$70.69	\$73.64	\$76.63	\$79.71
4	\$63.04	\$67.53	\$70.49	\$73.46	\$76.44	\$79.38	\$82.48

See Article 7.3.1 Schedule A - Intersession and Summer

Human Resources, 6/30/2025 Reflects 3.2% Increase Board Approval Date: 7/14/2025

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT BEYOND CONTRACT/OVERLOAD SCHEDULE B

	COLUMN I	COLUMN II	COLUMN III	COLUMN IV
TEACHING STEP	(Lecture Hour Equivalent [LHE] : LESS THAN MASTER'S	= 18 times the hourly ra	ate)  MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1 2				
3 4 5	\$ 81.58 \$ 85.67 \$ 89.94	\$ 85.67 \$ 89.94 \$ 94.43	\$ 89.94 \$ 94.43 \$ 99.15	\$ 94.43 \$ 99.15 \$ 104.11
LAB STEP	(Equivalent to 0.90 of a lecture h	·	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1 2	LESS THAN MASTER S	WIASTERS	WASTER 5 + 15	WASTER 3 + 30
3 4 5	\$ 73.42 \$ 77.10 \$ 80.95	\$ 77.10 \$ 80.95 \$ 85.00	\$ 80.95 \$ 85.00 \$ 89.25	\$ 85.00 \$ 89.25 \$ 93.70
COUNSELING/ LIBRARIAN/NURSING	(Equivalent to 0.85 of a lecture h	our)		
STEP	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1 2				
3	\$ 69.35	\$ 72.81	\$ 76.45	\$ 80.27
4	\$ 72.81	\$ 76.45	\$ 80.27	\$ 84.28
5	\$ 76.45	\$ 80.27	\$ 84.28	\$ 88.49
NON-TEACHING STEP	(Equivalent to 0.5 of a lecture ho	our) MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1 2				
3	\$40.80	\$42.83	\$44.98	\$47.22
4	\$42.83	\$44.98	\$47.22	\$49.57
5	\$44.98	\$47.22	\$49.57	\$52.06

# See Article 7.3.2 Schedule B - Beyond Contract

Human Resources, 6/30/2025

Reflects 8% increase effective 1st day of unit member's work year (Article 7.3.2)

Board Approval Date: 7/14/2025

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2026/2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT BEYOND CONTRACT/OVERLOAD SCHEDULE B

**COLUMN II** 

**COLUMN III** 

\$ 78.90

\$ 82.84

\$ 86.98

**COLUMN IV** 

**COLUMN I** 

\$ 71.57

\$ 75.14

\$ 78.90

TEACHING	(Lecture Hour I	Equivalent [I HF] = 18	3 times the hourly rate)		
STEP	LESS THAN N		MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1 2					
3	\$ 84		\$ 88.41	\$ 92.82	\$ 97.46
4	· ·	8.41	\$ 92.82	\$ 97.46	\$ 102.33 \$ 107.44
5	\$ 92	2.02	\$ 97.46	\$ 102.33	\$ 107.44
LAB		0.90 of a lecture hour	,	MACTERIO : 45	MA OTEDIO + 20
STEP	LESS THAN	N MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1 2					
3	\$ 75	5.77	\$ 79.57	\$ 83.54	\$ 87.72
4	•	9.57	\$ 83.54	\$ 87.72	\$ 92.10
5	\$ 83	3.54	\$ 87.72	\$ 92.10	\$ 96.70
COUNSELING/ LIBRARIAN/NURSING	(Equivalent to 0	0.85 of a lecture hour	)		
STEP	LESS THAN	MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1 2					

NON-TEACHING STEP	(Equivalent to 0.5 of a lecture hou LESS THAN MASTER'S	ur) <b>Master's</b>	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1 2				
3	\$42.11	\$44.20	\$46.42	\$48.73
4	\$44.20	\$46.42	\$48.73	\$51.16
5	\$46.42	\$48.73	\$51.16	\$53.73

\$ 75.14

\$ 78.90

\$ 82.84

# See Article 7.3.2 Schedule B - Beyond Contract

Human Resources, 6/30/2025

Reflects 8% increase effective 1st day of unit member's work year (Article 7.3.2)

Board Approval Date: 7/14/2025

\$ 82.84

\$ 86.98 \$ 91.32

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT BEYOND CONTRACT/OVERLOAD SCHEDULE B

	COLUMN I	COLUMN II	COLUMN III	COLUMN IV
TEACHING	(Lecture Hour Equivalent [LHE] = 1	8 times the hourly rate)		
STEP	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1				
2				
3	\$ 86.89	\$ 91.24	\$ 95.79	\$ 100.58
4	\$ 91.24	\$ 95.79	\$ 100.58	\$ 105.60
5	\$ 95.79	\$ 100.58	\$ 105.60	\$ 110.88
				_
LAB	(Equivalent to 0.90 of a lecture hour	)		
STEP	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1				
2				
3	\$ 78.19	\$ 82.11	\$ 86.21	\$ 90.53
4	\$ 82.11	\$ 86.21	\$ 90.53	\$ 95.05
5	\$ 86.21	\$ 90.53	\$ 95.05	\$ 99.80
COUNSELING/				
LIBRARIAN/NURSING	(Equivalent to 0.85 of a lecture hour	)		
STEP	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1				
2				
3	\$ 73.86	\$ 77.55	\$ 81.43	\$ 85.49
4	\$ 77.55	\$ 81.43	\$ 85.49	\$ 89.76
5	\$ 81.43	\$ 85.49	\$ 89.76	\$ 94.24
NON-TEACHING	(Equivalent to 0.5 of a lecture hour)			
STEP	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1				
2				
3	\$ 43.46	\$ 45.62	\$ 47.90	\$ 50.29
4	\$ 45.62	\$ 47.90	\$ 50.29	\$ 52.79
5	\$ 47.90	\$ 50.29	\$ 52.79	\$ 55.44
	<b>.</b>			

See Article 7.3.2 Schedule B - Beyond Contract

Board Approval Date: 7/14/2025

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PERMANENT NON-CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE "C" Effective Summer 2026

TEACHING														
STEP	С	LASSI	С	LASS II	С	LASS III	CI	LASS IV	С	LASS V	CL	ASS VI	CL	ASS VII
1														
2														
3	\$	127.30	\$	136.77	\$	143.04	\$	149.32	\$	155.58	\$	161.86	\$	168.40
4	\$	133.16	\$	142.63	\$	148.92	\$	155.19	\$	161.45	\$	167.69	\$	174.26
5	\$	139.01	\$	148.50	\$	154.78	\$	161.04	\$	167.30	\$	173.58	\$	180.11

### **NON-TEACHING**

STEP	C	lass I	Class II		С	lass III	Class IV		Class V		Class VI		Class VII	
1														
2														
3	\$	63.65	\$	68.39	\$	71.52	\$	74.66	\$	77.79	\$	80.93	\$	84.20
4	\$	66.58	\$	71.32	\$	74.46	\$	77.59	\$	80.73	\$	83.85	\$	87.13
5	\$	69.51	\$	74.25	\$	77.39	\$	80.52	\$	83.65	\$	86.79	\$	90.06

Schedule C applies to all college non-credit full-time employees who were employed on contract during the preceding academic year and are continuing on contract for the ensuing academic year.

Placement on Schedule C is according to class and step placement as of the spring semester immediately preceding summer school.

Full-time instructors assigned to teach the course, *Learning Disabilities Laboratory*, shall be paid at 0.85 of the appropriate rate on this schedule.

A summer session assignment shall not exceed a total of 170 hours.

Non-Teaching Rates are 50% of Teaching Rates

See Article 7.3.3 Schedule C - Continuing Education - Summer

Human Resources, 6/30/2025 Reflects 8% Increase

Board Approval Date: 7/14/2025

## RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2026/2027 FARSCCD PERMANENT NON-CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE "C" Effective Summer 2027

TEACHING							
STEP	CLASSI	CLASS II	CLASS III	CLASS IV	CLASS V	<b>CLASS VI</b>	CLASS VII
1							
2							
3	\$131.37	\$141.15	\$147.62	\$154.10	\$160.56	\$167.04	\$173.79
4	\$137.42	\$147.19	\$153.69	\$160.15	\$166.62	\$173.06	\$179.83
5	\$143.46	\$153.25	\$159.73	\$166.20	\$172.65	\$179.13	\$185.88

### **NON-TEACHING**

STEP	С	lass I	Class II		Class III		Class IV		Class V		Class VI		Class VII	
1														
2														
3	\$	65.69	\$	70.58	\$	73.81	\$	77.05	\$	80.28	\$	83.52	\$	86.89
4	\$	68.71	\$	73.60	\$	76.84	\$	80.08	\$	83.31	\$	86.53	\$	89.92
5	\$	71.73	\$	76.63	\$	79.87	\$	83.10	\$	86.33	\$	89.57	\$	92.94

Schedule C applies to all college non-credit full-time employees who were employed on contract during the preceding academic year and are continuing on contract for the ensuing academic year.

Placement on Schedule C is according to class and step placement as of the spring semester immediately preceding summer school.

Full-time instructors assigned to teach the course, *Learning Disabilities Laboratory*, shall be paid at 0.85 of the appropriate rate on this schedule.

A summer session assignment shall not exceed a total of 170 hours.

Non-Teaching Rates are 50% of Teaching Rates

See Article 7.3.3 Schedule C - Continuing Education - Summer

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PERMANENT NON-CREDIT SUMMER SALARY SCHEDULE "C" Effective Summer 2028

TEACHING														
STEP	С	LASS I	С	LASS II	С	LASS III	CI	_ASS IV	С	LASS V	CL	LASS VI	CL	ASS VII
1														
2														
3	\$	135.58	\$	145.67	\$	152.34	\$	159.03	\$	165.70	\$	172.39	\$	179.35
4	\$	141.82	\$	151.91	\$	158.60	\$	165.28	\$	171.95	\$	178.60	\$	185.59
5	\$	148.05	\$	158.16	\$	164.84	\$	171.52	\$	178.18	\$	184.86	\$	191.83

### **NON-TEACHING**

STEP	С	lass I	Class II		Class III		Class IV		Class V		Class VI		Class VII	
1														
2														
3	\$	67.79	\$	72.83	\$	76.17	\$	79.51	\$	82.85	\$	86.19	\$	89.68
4	\$	70.91	\$	75.95	\$	79.30	\$	82.64	\$	85.98	\$	89.30	\$	92.79
5	\$	74.03	\$	79.08	\$	82.42	\$	85.76	\$	89.09	\$	92.43	\$	95.91

Schedule C applies to all college non-credit full-time employees who were employed on contract during the preceding academic year and are continuing on contract for the ensuing academic year.

Placement on Schedule C is according to class and step placement as of the spring semester immediately preceding summer school.

Full-time instructors assigned to teach the course, *Learning Disabilities Laboratory*, shall be paid at 0.85 of the appropriate rate on this schedule.

A summer session assignment shall not exceed a total of 170 hours.

Non-Teaching Rates are 50% of Teaching Rates

See Article 7.3.3 Schedule C - Continuing Education - Summer

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2025/2026 FARSCCD PART-TIME SALARY SCHEDULE D

TEACHING		/alent [LHE] = 18 time	s the hourly rate)	
	LESS THAN	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
STEP	MASTER'S			
1				
2	\$85.66	\$89.95	\$94.44	\$99.16
3	\$89.95	\$94.44	\$99.16	\$104.11
	\$94.44	\$99.16	\$104.11	\$109.31
LAB	(Equivalent to 0.90	of a lecture hour)		
STEP	LESS THAN  MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1	I II GILITO			
2	\$77.09	\$80.95	\$85.00	\$89.25
0	\$80.95	\$85.00	\$89.25	\$93.71
3	\$85.00	\$89.25	\$93.71	\$98.39
COUNSELING/DSPS				
LIBRARIAN/NURSING STEP	(Equivalent to 0.85 LESS THAN MASTER'S	of a lecture hour) MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
LIBRARIAN/NURSING	LESS THAN	,	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
LIBRARIAN/NURSING STEP	LESS THAN	,	MASTER'S + 15 \$80.28	MASTER'S + 30 \$84.28
STEP 1 2	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S		
LIBRARIAN/NURSING STEP 1	LESS THAN MASTER'S \$72.81	MASTER'S \$76.45	\$80.28	\$84.28
STEP 1 2	LESS THAN MASTER'S \$72.81 \$76.45	\$76.45 \$80.28 \$84.28	\$80.28 \$84.28	\$84.28 \$88.49
STEP 1 2 3	\$72.81 \$76.45 \$80.28 (Equivalent to 0.5 or LESS THAN	\$76.45 \$80.28 \$84.28	\$80.28 \$84.28	\$84.28 \$88.49
STEP 1 2 3  NON-TEACHING	\$72.81 \$76.45 \$80.28 (Equivalent to 0.5 of	\$76.45 \$80.28 \$84.28 of a lecture hour)	\$80.28 \$84.28 \$88.49	\$84.28 \$88.49 \$92.92
STEP 1 2 3  NON-TEACHING	\$72.81 \$76.45 \$80.28 (Equivalent to 0.5 or LESS THAN	\$76.45 \$80.28 \$84.28 of a lecture hour)	\$80.28 \$84.28 \$88.49	\$84.28 \$88.49 \$92.92
STEP 1 2 3  NON-TEACHING  STEP 1	\$72.81 \$76.45 \$80.28 (Equivalent to 0.5 or LESS THAN MASTER'S	\$76.45 \$80.28 \$84.28 of a lecture hour)	\$80.28 \$84.28 \$88.49 MASTER'S + 15	\$84.28 \$88.49 \$92.92 MASTER'S+30

The hourly pay rate for **part-time psychologists** who are college counselors assigned specifically to provide psychological services through the Health Centers will be \$111.98.

Human Resources, 07/02/2025

Reflects 5% increase on 2024/2025 Schedule B.

Increase of 8% applied for 2025/2026 New Salary Schedule D, per article 7.1.1

Effective 1st day of unit member's work year.

Board Approval Date: 07/14/2025

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2026/2027 FARSCCD PART-TIME SALARY SCHEDULE D

TEACHING	`	valent [LHE] = 18 time	s the hourly rate)	
STEP	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1	MAGIENO			
•				
2	\$88.40	\$92.83	\$97.46	\$102.33
3	\$92.83	\$97.46	\$102.33	\$107.44
	\$97.46	\$102.33	\$107.44	\$112.81
LAB	(Equivalent to 0.90	of a lecture hour)		
STEP	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1	MASTERS			
ı				
2	\$79.56	\$83.54	\$87.72	\$92.10
3	\$83.54	\$87.72	\$92.10	\$96.71
Ç	\$87.72	\$92.10	\$96.71	\$101.54
COUNSELING/DSPS LIBRARIAN/NURSING	(Equivalent to 0.85	of a lecture hour)		
STEP	<b>LESS THAN</b> MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1	MASTERS			
1				
2	\$75.14	\$78.90	\$82.85	\$86.98
3	\$78.90	\$82.85	\$86.98	\$91.33
		ψ02.03	\$60.96	\$71.33
	\$82.85	\$86.98	\$91.33	\$95.89
NON-TEACHING	\$82.85 (Equivalent to 0.5 c	\$86.98		
	(Equivalent to 0.5 c	\$86.98		
STEP	(Equivalent to 0.5 c	\$86.98 of a lecture hour)	\$91.33	\$95.89
STEP 1	(Equivalent to 0.5 c	\$86.98 of a lecture hour)	\$91.33	\$95.89
STEP	(Equivalent to 0.5 c	\$86.98 of a lecture hour)	\$91.33 MASTER'S+15	\$95.89  MASTER'S + 30  \$51.16
STEP 1	(Equivalent to 0.5 of LESS THAN MASTER'S	\$86.98 of a lecture hour) MASTER'S	\$91.33 MASTER'S + 15	\$95.89 MASTER'S + 30

The hourly pay rate for **part-time psychologists** who are college counselors assigned specifically to provide psychological services through the Health Centers will be \$115.56.

Human Resources, 07/02/2025

Reflects 3.2% increase effective 1st day of unit member's work year (Article 7.1.1).

Board Approval Date: 07/14/2025

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 2027/2028 FARSCCD PART-TIME SALARY SCHEDULE D

TEACHING		ivalent [LHE] = 18 time	s the hourly rate)	
STEP	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1	MASILITS			
'				
2	\$91.23	\$95.80	\$100.58	\$105.60
3	\$95.80	\$100.58	\$105.60	\$110.88
	\$100.58	\$105.60	\$110.88	\$116.42
/ 40	/F			
LAB	(Equivalent to 0.90 LESS THAN	•		
STEP	MASTER'S	MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
1				
2	\$82.10	\$86.22	\$90.52	\$95.05
3	\$86.22	\$90.52	\$95.05	\$99.80
3	\$90.52	\$95.05	\$99.80	\$104.79
COUNSELING/DSPS			•	
COUNSELING/DSPS LIBRARIAN/NURSING  STEP 1	(Equivalent to 0.85 LESS THAN MASTER'S	of a lecture hour)  MASTER'S	MASTER'S + 15	MASTER'S + 30
LIBRARIAN/NURSING STEP 1	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S		
LIBRARIAN/NURSING STEP	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S \$81.43	\$85.50	\$89.76
LIBRARIAN/NURSING STEP 1	LESS THAN MASTER'S  \$77.55 \$81.43	\$81.43 \$85.50	\$85.50 \$89.76	\$89.76 \$94.25
STEP 1 2	LESS THAN MASTER'S	MASTER'S \$81.43	\$85.50	\$89.76
STEP 1 2	LESS THAN MASTER'S  \$77.55 \$81.43	\$81.43 \$85.50 \$89.76	\$85.50 \$89.76	\$89.76 \$94.25
STEP 1 2 3	\$77.55 \$81.43 \$85.50	\$81.43 \$85.50 \$89.76	\$85.50 \$89.76	\$89.76 \$94.25
STEP 1 2 3 NON_TEACHING	\$77.55 \$81.43 \$85.50 (Equivalent to 0.5 of	\$81.43 \$85.50 \$89.76	\$85.50 \$89.76 \$94.25	\$89.76 \$94.25 \$98.96
STEP 1 2 3 NON_TEACHING STEP	\$77.55 \$81.43 \$85.50 (Equivalent to 0.5 of	\$81.43 \$85.50 \$89.76	\$85.50 \$89.76 \$94.25 MASTER'S + 15	\$89.76 \$94.25 \$98.96 MASTER'S+30
STEP 1 2 3  NON_TEACHING STEP 1	\$77.55 \$81.43 \$85.50 (Equivalent to 0.5 of	\$81.43 \$85.50 \$89.76 f a lecture hour) MASTER'S	\$85.50 \$89.76 \$94.25	\$89.76 \$94.25 \$98.96

The hourly pay rate for **part-time psychologists** who are college counselors assigned specifically to provide psychological services through the Health Centers will be \$119.26.

Human Resources, 07/02/2025

Reflects 3.2% increase effective 1st day of unit member's work year (Article 7.1.1).

Board Approval Date: 07/14/2025

# Rancho Santiago Community College District Duties & Responsibilities: Department Chairs

The following document serves as the job description for the position of Department Chair.

# **DEFINITION OF A DEPARTMENT CHAIR:**

A unit member who coordinates departmental activities under the direction of the division dean or appropriate administrator. Provides academic leadership to the department. Facilitates communication between the departmental unit members/staff and the division dean or appropriate administrator. Meets regularly with department unit members. Attends regularly scheduled meetings as called by the appropriate administrator.

**SELECTION**: Elected by unit members as determined by the department through a pre-determined and publicized election timeline, process, and term.

**ELIGIBILITY**: Full-time unit members are eligible to be department chairs. When there are no full-time unit members assigned to the department, part-time unit members are eligible to be department chair and will be determined using the selection process established by the department.

# **RESPONSIBILITIES OF A DEPARTMENT CHAIR:**

The duties of the Department Chair are listed below.

### A. Coordination of Department activities

- 1. Schedules, organizes, and chairs monthly departmental meetings; coordinates the preparation of the meeting agenda and minutes.
- 2. Meets with and provides support to new unit members and part-time unit members, including meeting with part-time unit members during flex week.
- 3. Facilitates the development and review of department plans.
- 4. Attends and represents the department at Division meetings and communicates information to department faculty.

# B. Curriculum Planning

1. Keeps abreast of changes in career opportunities, job requirements, related interdisciplinary career developments, and demand for workers with training in discipline areas. Shares this information with colleagues and the Counseling Department. Keeps abreast of curricular development in other institutions. Acts as a leader in developing departmental offerings in occupational, transfer and general education curricula with appropriate department representatives in other discipline areas.

- 2. Assists in coordinating curricular offerings with other college departments and other colleges, universities and high schools.
- 3. Reviews, jointly with department unit members, current course outlines and prepares revisions or recommends new courses or programs to the area curriculum committee. Selects, jointly with department unit members, textbooks and recommends their adoption.
- 4. Represents the department, as needed, by serving on curriculum committees and submits pre-requisites and co-requisites for courses to college Curriculum and Instruction Council.
- 5. Conducts, jointly with department unit members, program review and quadrennial review activities.
- 6. Facilitates, jointly with department unit members, the development, revision and assessment of Student Learning Outcomes consistent with State requirements.

### C. Schedule

- 1. Recommends, after consulting with unit member, each semester's master schedule, enrollment limits and room assignments to the division dean or appropriate administrator.
- 2. Consults with discipline experts and recommends the assignment of part-time unit members.

# D. Budget

- 1. Analyzes department budget needs with unit members and staff and recommends budget requests to the division dean or appropriate administrator.
- 2. Informs department of resources available for approved budget items.

### E. Personnel

- 1. Works with representative department members and recommends the hiring of part-time unit members.
- 2. Works with representative department unit members and recommends equivalencies of potential unit members.
- 3. Works with program facilitators and appropriate unit members in recommending classified instructional support personnel for the department. May assist with the evaluation of and directs the work of classified personnel assigned to the department as appropriate.
- 4. Works with representative department unit members in submitting requests for additional full-time unit members to the division dean or appropriate administrator. May represent the department in establishing hiring priorities.
- 5. Provides, jointly with division dean or appropriate administrators, for peer review of

part-time unit members.

6. Selects peer evaluators for full-time unit members in the department.

# F. Facilities, Equipment and Materials

1. Submits, jointly with department faculty, orders for textbooks or instructional resources as appropriate.

# G. Other Responsibilities

- 1. Fields student complaints and refers complaints to the division dean or appropriate administrator when necessary.
- 2. Facilitates the assessment of student learning outcomes.
- 3. Lead department in establishing and reviewing chair terms and election process/timeline.

# H. Compensation Information

- 1. Department chair LHE for duties and responsibilities in this document shall be based on the negotiated formula with the minimum LHE assigned to any department being 3.0 LHE.
- 2. Department chair LHE assigned as overload shall be compensated on the basis of thirty-six (36) hours per LHE at the non-teaching rate.

# I. Department Chair LHE Formula

- 1. For stacked classes: The primary section is counted as 1 and the secondary sections are counted as 1/2 of primary section.
- 2. FTEF and head count numbers will be averaged to yield the generated LHE for that criterion.
- 3. Non-resident students must be included in the FTES.
- 4. The Chair LHE allocation formula will be reviewed and calculated on a 2-year cycle, using the data from the year two years preceding the change. (e.g., Fall 2025 and Spring 2026 data will determine Fall 2027 to Spring 2029 LHE allocations)

# 2025 Dept. Chair LHE Calculations

## Average of Fall 2023 & Spring 2024 Semester Data

FTES (EMT & RG540: Census, w/ Non-Resident)

Stacked sections Sections (EMT & RG540 data)

Minimum Chair LHE reduction factor Fac Hd Ct (EMT Query)

\*Only changes if weight factors / formula change

					duction factor Fac Hd Ct (EMT Query)							*Only changes if weight factors / formula changes					
		0.5				0.50											
	Weight factor		0.25				0.50		0.125		0.125			LHE data			LHE data
	Column divisor		111.8				35.3		13.6		8.21			w/o X-factor			with X-factor
		Base		LHE for	Sections	Stacked	Sections	LHE for	Fac Hd Ct	LHE for	Faculty	LHE for	Unround	Rounded	LHE data	X-Factor	TOTAL
Division	SAC Department Chairs	LHE	FTES	FTES	Offered	Sections	Used	Sect Used	FT & PT	Fac Hd Ct	FTEF	FTEF	Formula LHE	Formula LHE	2021/22	Boost	LHE
AA	Library Technology	0.5	9.50	0.06	4.00	0.00	4.0	0.16	4.00	0.11	0.71	0.03	0.86	1.0	1.0		3.0
BUS	Accounting	0.5	139.07	0.90	40.00	0.00	40.0	1.64	12.00	0.32	9.32	0.41	3.78	4.0	3.0		4.0
BUS	Business Applications & Technology	0.5	96.49	0.63	53.00	2.50	51.8	2.12	19.00	0.51	7.96	0.35	4.11	4.0	3.5		4.0
BUS	Computer Science	0.5	105.19	0.68	39.00	0.00	39.0	1.60	13.50	0.36	7.07	0.31	3.46	3.5	3.0		3.5
BUS	Engineering	0.5	48.42	0.31	23.00	11.00	17.5	0.72	8.50	0.23	2.63	0.12	1.88	2.0	2.0		3.0
BUS	Global Business & Entrepreneurship	0.5	108.77	0.71	53.50	4.00	51.5	2.11	19.50	0.52	8.59	0.38	4.22	4.0	3.0		4.0
BUS	Legal Studies	0.5	87.84	0.57	55.50	32.00	39.5	1.62	11.50	0.31	4.09	0.18	3.18	3.0	3.0		3.0
FPA	Art & Photography	0.5	211.59	1.37	93.50	35.00	76.0	3.12	28.50	0.76	15.22	0.67	6.42	6.5	5.5		6.5
FPA	Communication Studies (Speech)	0.5	172.39	1.12	60.00	2.00	59.0	2.42	17.00	0.45	11.60	0.51	5.01	5.0	4.5		5.0
FPA	Dance	0.5	25.59	0.17	36.50	19.00	27.0	1.11	6.00	0.16	3.75	0.17	2.10	2.0	1.5		3.0
FPA	Digital Media	0.5	109.72	0.71	50.00	17.00	41.5	1.70	20.00	0.53	8.53	0.38	3.83	4.0	3.5		4.0
FPA	Fashion Design & Merchandising	0.5	41.45	0.27	30.50	14.50	23.3	0.95	8.00	0.21	3.62	0.16	2.10	2.0	- 1.5		3.0
FPA	Journalism & Media Studies	0.5	28.87	0.19	17.00	6.50	13.8	0.56	6.50	0.17	2.97	0.13	1.56	1.5	1.0		3.0
FPA	Music	0.5	98.84	0.64	91.50	46.00	68.5	2.81	18.00	0.48	8.94	0.39	4.83	5.0	4.5		5.0
FPA	Theatre Arts	0.5	74.81	0.49	50.50	25.00	38.0	1.56	17.00	0.45	7.20	0.32	3.32	3.5	2.0		3.5
HSS	American Sign Language	0.5	65.91	0.43	22.00	0.00	22.0	0.90	10.00	0.27	5.70	0.25	2.35	2.5	2.0		3.0
HSS	Anthropology, Sociology & Women's Studies	0.5	123.38	0.80	44.00	0.00	44.0	1.81	14.50	0.39	8.80	0.39	3.88	4.0	3.5		4.0
HSS	Economics & Geography	0.5	84.01	0.55	27.50	0.00	27.5	1.13	7.50	0.20	5.30	0.23	2.61	2.5	2.5		3.0
HSS	English	0.5	418.13	2.71	133.50	4.00	131.5	5.39	53.50	1.43	34.61	1.53	11.57	11.5	10.0		11.5
HSS	English Multilingual Studies	0.5	16.71	0.11	5.00	0.00	5.0	0.21	2.00	0.05	1.23	0.05	0.92	1.0	1.0		3.0
HSS	Ethnic Studies	0.5	97.17	0.63	29.50	0.50	29.3	1.20	5.00	0.13	5.80	0.26	2.72	2.5	1.5		3.0
HSS	History	0.5	150.19	0.97	46.50	0.50	46.3	1.90	14.50	0.39	9.00	0.40	4.16	4.0	3.5		4.0
HSS	Modern Languages	0.5	146.12	0.95	42.50	4.50	40.3	1.65	24.00	0.64	12.48	0.55	4.29	4.5	3.5		4.5
HSS	Philosophy	0.5	60.51	0.39	18.50	1.50	17.8	0.73	5.00	0.13	3.82	0.17	1.92	2.0	1.5		3.0
HSS	Political Science	0.5	73.78	0.48	17.00	0.00	17.0	0.70	4.00	0.11	3.63	0.16	1.94	2.0	2.0		3.0
HSS	Psychology	0.5	161.64	1.05	43.50	0.00	43.5	1.78	10.50	0.28	10.28	0.45	4.07	4.0	3.5		4.0
HSS	Reading	0.5	3.40	0.02	3.50	0.00	3.5	0.14	1.00	0.03	0.70	0.03	0.72	0.5	1.0		3.0
HST	Auto Tech / Diesel / Welding	0.5	215.92	1.40	51.00	5.00	48.5	1.99	16.50	0.44	15.41	0.68	5.01	5.0	3.5		5.0
HST	Criminal Justice (SAC & SCC)	0.5	66.96	0.43	25.00	1.00	24.5	1.01	6.50	0.17	4.80	0.21	2.33	2.5	2.0		3.0
HST	Education & Child Development	0.5	136.61	0.89	55.50	5.00	53.0	2.17	23.50	0.63	9.51	0.42	4.61	4.5	4.5		4.5
HST	Fire Technology	0.5	227.77	1.48	72.50	0.00	72.5	2.97	20.50	0.55	11.12	0.49	5.99	6.0	5.5		6.0
HST	Manufacturing Technology	0.5	49.82	0.32	33.00	13.50	26.3	1.08	7.00	0.19	4.55	0.20	2.29	2.5	2.5		3.0
HST	Nutrition/Culinary	0.5	96.65	0.63	29.50	3.00	28.0	1.15	8.50	0.23	4.51	0.20	2.70	2.5	2.0		3.0
HST	Occupational Therapy Asst / Studies	0.5	82.20	0.53	19.50	0.00	19.5	0.80	9.00	0.24	4.76	0.21	2.28	2.5	2.0		3.0
HST	Pharmacy Technology	0.5	22.46	0.15	13.00	0.00	13.0	0.53	6.50	0.17	2.64	0.12	1.47	1.5	1.5		3.0
HST	Speech-Language Pathology Asst	0.5	22.95	0.15	6.50	0.00	6.5	0.27	4.00	0.11	1.37	0.06	1.08	1.0	1.0		3.0
KINES	Kinesiology	0.5	220.13	1.43	92.00	16.00	84.0	3.45	24.00	0.64	18.85	0.83	6.85	7.0	6.5		7.0
SMHS	Biology	0.5	334.90	2.17	66.00	2.00	65.0	2.67	27.00	0.72	18.81	0.83	6.89	7.0	7.5		7.0
SMHS	Chemistry	0.5	146.25	0.95	26.50	0.00	26.5	1.09	19.00	0.51	12.24	0.54	3.58	3.5	3.5		3.5
SMHS	Health Sciences	0.5	181.84	1.18	41.50	0.00	41.5	1.70	33.50	0.90	27.54	1.22	5.49	5.5	5.5		5.5
CIVILIO	riculti Sciences	0.5	101.07	1.10	71.50	0.00	71.5	1.70	33.30	0.50	27.54	1.22	J. <del>4</del> J	3.3	3.3		0.0

# 2025 Dept. Chair LHE Calculations

# Average of Fall 2023 & Spring 2024 Semester Data

FTES (EMT & RG540: Census, w/ Non-Resident)

			Stacked sections			ns	Sections (EMT & RG540 data)				2.9 Normalization Factor*						
	Minim	um Cha	ir LHE	r LHE reduc			reduction factor			Fac Hd Ct (EMT Query)			*Only changes if weight factors / formula changes				
		0.5				0.50							_				
	Weight factor		0.25				0.50		0.125		0.125			LHE data			LHE data
	Column divisor		111.8				35.3		13.6		8.21			w/o X-factor			with X-factor
SMHS	Mathematics	0.5	392.54	2.55	96.50	0.00	96.5	3.96	37.00	0.99	27.10	1.20	9.19	9.0	10.0		9.0
SMHS	Medical Assistant	0.5	87.74	0.57	22.00	0.00	22.0	0.90	4.50	0.12	3.99	0.18	2.27	2.5	2.0		3.0
SMHS	Physical Sciences	0.5	121.22	0.79	35.00	0.00	35.0	1.44	15.50	0.41	8.76	0.39	3.52	3.5	3.5		3.5
				•	•							•	SAC Total	158.0	141.0	0	171.5

		Base		LHE for	Sections	Stacked	Sections	LHE for	Fac Hd Ct	LHE for	Faculty	LHE for	Unround	Rounded	LHE data	X-Factor	TOTAL
Division	SCC Department Chairs	LHE	FTES	FTES	Offered	Sections	Used	Sect Used	FT & PT	Fac Hd Ct	FTEF	FTEF	Formula LHE	Formula LHE	2021/22	Boost	LHE
AHSS	American College English	0.5	0.80	0.01	0.50	0.00	0.5	0.02	0.50	0.01	0.21	0.01	0.55	0.5	0.5		3.0
AHSS	ANTH & ECON	0.5	59.03	0.38	20.00	0.00	20.0	0.82	7.00	0.19	4.00	0.18	2.07	2.0	2.5		3.0
AHSS	Fine Arts	0.5	64.21	0.42	22.50	3.00	21.0	0.86	8.00	0.21	4.35	0.19	2.18	2.0	2.5		3.0
AHSS	Communications	0.5	98.80	0.64	35.50	1.00	35.0	1.44	11.50	0.31	7.08	0.31	3.20	3.0	3.5		3.0
AHSS	English	0.5	251.07	1.63	74.50	0.00	74.5	3.06	29.50	0.79	22.75	1.01	6.98	7.0	8.5		7.0
AHSS	History	0.5	75.07	0.49	29.00	0.00	29.0	1.19	7.50	0.20	5.70	0.25	2.63	2.5	3.0		3.0
AHSS	Modern Languages (5 disciplines)	0.5	118.35	0.77	28.50	0.00	28.5	1.17	17.00	0.45	9.95	0.44	3.33	3.5	3.5		3.5
AHSS	Performing Arts (3 disciplines)	0.5	56.14	0.36	34.00	11.50	28.3	1.16	12.00	0.32	4.22	0.19	2.53	2.5	2.5		3.0
AHSS	Philosophy	0.5	42.65	0.28	14.00	0.50	13.8	0.56	3.50	0.09	3.05	0.13	1.57	1.5	2.0		3.0
AHSS	Political Science	0.5	75.30	0.49	18.50	0.00	18.5	0.76	3.50	0.09	3.88	0.17	2.01	2.0	2.5		3.0
AHSS	Psychology	0.5	108.47	0.70	30.50	0.00	30.5	1.25	10.50	0.28	6.73	0.30	3.03	3.0	4.0		3.0
AHSS	Social Sciences (5 disciplines)	0.5	107.58	0.70	35.00	0.00	35.0	1.44	14.50	0.39	7.00	0.31	3.33	3.5	3.0		3.5
AHSS/BCE	READ & EDUC	0.5	25.06	0.16	15.50	0.00	15.5	0.64	6.50	0.17	2.84	0.13	1.60	1.5	· 1.5		3.0
BCE	Business (5 disciplines)	0.5	118.08	0.77	39.00	6.50	35.8	1.47	20.00	0.53	7.62	0.34	3.60	3.5	4.0		3.5
BCE	Child Development	0.5	51.53	0.33	23.50	1.00	23.0	0.94	8.50	0.23	4.70	0.21	2.21	2.0	2.0		3.0
BCE	Cinema Studies	0.5	43.40	0.28	11.00	0.50	10.8	0.44	4.00	0.11	2.10	0.09	1.42	1.5	1.5		3.0
BCE	Public Works (2 disciplines)	0.5	77.72	0.50	34.00	2.00	33.0	1.35	22.00	0.59	5.08	0.22	3.17	3.0	3.0		3.0
MS	Astronomy	0.5	21.66	0.14	9.00	0.00	9.0	0.37	2.00	0.05	1.80	0.08	1.14	1.0	· 1.5		3.0
MS	Biology	0.5	212.64	1.38	40.00	0.00	40.0	1.64	17.50	0.47	13.51	0.60	4.58	4.5	7.0		4.5
MS	Chemistry	0.5	158.72	1.03	27.50	0.00	27.5	1.13	15.50	0.41	13.17	0.58	3.65	3.5	· · ·5.5		3.5
MS	Earth Sciences (2 disciplines)	0.5	52.11	0.34	22.50	0.00	22.5	0.92	7.50	0.20	4.83	0.21	2.18	2.0	×2.5		3.0
MS	KIN & NUTR	0.5	80.65	0.52	45.00	12.00	39.0	1.60	14.00	0.37	8.83	0.39	3.39	3.5	* *3.5 *		3.5
MS	Mathematics	0.5	321.37	2.08	76.50	0.00	76.5	3.14	32.50	0.87	21.28	0.94	7.53	7.5	9.5		7.5
MS	Physics & Engineering (4 disciplines)	0.5	101.78	0.66	21.00	0.00	21.0	0.86	10.50	0.28	5.68	0.25	2.55	2.5	3.5		3.0
												•	SCC Total	69.0	83.0	0	84.5

# 2025-2027 Non-Credit Dept Chair LHE Calculations

# Average of Fall 2023 and Spring 2024 semester data

FTES (EMT & RG540: Census, w/ Non-Resident)

						(		,,		-,				
	Updated Max LHE (exact)	11.50		SAC'	s ENG dept	pt. Sections (EMT & RG540 data)				St	tacked sectio			
	Minimum Chair LHE	0.5		Fac Hd Ct (EMT Query)					and affect forther					
	*Normalization Factor	3.00				rac	Hu Ct (EM)	Query		0.50	duction fact	OI .		LHE data
	Weight factor		0.25				0.50		0.125		0.125			2021
	Column divisor		358.4				115.6		70.3		17.26			w/o X-factor
		Base		LHE for	Sections	Stacked	Sections	LHE for	Fac Hd Ct	LHE for	Faculty	LHE for	Unround	Rounded
Division	SAC Department Chairs	LHE	FTES	FTES	Offered	Sections	Used	Sect Used	FT & PT	Fac Hd Ct	FTEF	FTEF	Formula LHE	Formula LHE
CEC	HHS	0.5	520.78	1.09	181.50		181.5	2.36	87.00	0.46	18.63	0.40	4.81	5.0
CEC	ABE Minimum LHE 3 per contract*	0.5	141.61	0.30	57.00		57.0	0.74	32.00	0.17	3.04	0.07	1.77	3.0
CEC	Counseling (LHE set at 6 per contract)	0.5	0.00	0.00			0.0	0.00		0.00		0.00	0.50	6.0
CEC	ESL	0.5	890.93	1.86	181.50		181.5	2.36	116.50	0.62	35.87	0.78	6.12	6.0
CEC	Business Skills	0.5	238.49	0.50	158.00		158.0	2.05	45.50	0.24	11.52	0.25	3.54	3.5
													SAC Total	23.5

	Weight factor		0.25				0.50		0.125		0.125			
	Column divisor		253.6				153.6		34.0		17.6			
	SCC Department Chairs	Base		LHE for	Sections	Stacked	Sections	LHE for	Fac Hd Ct	LHE for	Faculty	LHE for	Unround	Rounded
Division	See Department Chairs	LHE	FTES	FTES	Offered	Sections	Used	Sect Used	FT & PT	Fac Hd Ct	FTEF	FTEF	Formula LHE	Formula LHE
OEC	HSS and ABE Combined	0.5	307.29	0.91	371.5	6.0	368.5	3.60	33.5	0.37	18.4	0.39	5.77	6.0
OEC	Older Adults (Will be a department in Spring 2026)	0.5	232.91	0.69	176.5		176.5	1.72	51.0	0.56	14.4	0.31	3.78	4.0
OEC	Counseling (counseling does not offer courses in noncredit)	0.5		0.00			0.0			0.00		0.00	0.50	6.0
OEC	ESL	0.5	284.70	0.84	92.5	0.0	92.5	0.90	31.5	0.35	25.4	0.54	3.13	4.0
OEC	Business Skills	0.5	189.45	0.56	155.0	49.0	130.5	1.27	20.0	0.22	12.3	0.26	2.82	3.5
•						•	•		FI0040	_			SCC Total	23.5

# THE RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT DEPARTMENT CHAIR X-FACTOR

The District and FARSCCD agree that the following process will be used to determine Department Chair X-factor as included below:

- 1. X-factor represents the work that is done beyond the listed standard Chair duties. It is contractual and is based on the ratio of 1 LHE for every 36 hours of required work (Section 6.3.3 and Appendix K-1, section G.1).
- 2. X-factor LHE is determined by consultation between the faculty member and the Division dean. Faculty must request and deans must approve any additional work.
- 3. X-factor LHE can be granted for chair work beyond regular scope, such as an increase in volume, complexity, and/or special projects.
- 4. X-factor LHE can be assigned to the department chair, co-chair or other unit member by the Division Dean, and in consultation with the department chair; the individual assigned the work will be responsible for completing the agreed upon work.

# Rancho Santiago Community College District

# Santa Ana College

Non-Instructional Department Chair Assignments	LHE/Semester
Library	3
Student Services (DSPS)	3
Counseling	6
Non-Credit Non-Instructional Department Chair Assignments	LHE/Semester
Counseling	6

# Santiago Canyon College

Non-Instructional Department Chair Assignments	LHE/Semester
Disabled Students Programs & Services	3
Library	3
Counseling	6
Non-Credit Non-Instructional Department Chair	LHE/Semester
Assignments Counseling	6

# 

 $\underline{\text{DIRECTIONS:}}$  FILE WITH THE ADMINISTRATOR WHOSE ACTIONS THE ALLEGED GRIEVANCE IS BASED UPON.

GRIEVANT NAME:	SITE:	DEPARTMENT:
DATE OF ALLEGED	NAME OF ADMINISTRATOR	TITLE OF ADMINISTRATOR:
GRIEVANCE:	WHO TOOK THE ALLEGED	THE OF ADMINISTRATOR.
	ACTION PROMPTING THE	
	GRIEVANCE:	
DATE OF FILING WRITTEN	SPECIFIC ARTICLES AND SECTIO	NS ALLEGED TO HAVE
STATEMENT:	BEEN VIOLATED:	
GRIEVANT'S STATEMENT OF A	l LLEGED VIOLATION AND GRIEVA	NCE. WHAT IS THE
FACTUAL CONTENTION? WHAT	THAS OCCURRED? PROVIDE FULL	
SUPPORT YOUR POSITION.		
	ACTION YOU BELIEVE IS REQUIRE	D TO RESOLVE THIS
ALLEGED GRIEVANCE.		
GRIEVANT SIGNATURE:		
CLUB (THAT SIGNATIONE).		

# LEVEL ONE-SUPERVISING/RESPONDING ADMINISTRATOR

If the responding administrator at Level I is a College President, as outlined in Article 9, should the grievance proceed, additional filing will be at Level III.

IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR/RESPONDING ADMINISTRATOR	DATE OF RESPONSE:
DECISION ON ALLEGED GRIEVANCE:	
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE:	
SIGNATURE:	

# LEVEL TWO - COLLEGE PRESIDENT/DESIGNEE

GRIEVANT RESPONSE:	DATE OF RECEIPT:	
	DATE OF RESPONSE:	
DECISION ON ALLEGED GRIEVANCE:	DATE OF RESPONSE:	
	DATE OF RECEIPT:	
SIGNATURE:		
SIGNATURE.	166	

# LEVEL THREE - CHANCELLOR

GRIEVANT RESPONSE:	DATE OF RECEIPT:
	DATE OF RESPONSE:
DECISION ON ALLEGED GRIEVANCE:	DATE OF RECEIPT:
	DATE OF DESDONSE.
	DATE OF RESPONSE:
SIGNATURE:	
	167

# LEVEL FOUR - REQUEST FOR ARBITRATION

ASSOCIATION RESPONSE:	DATE OF RECEIPT:
	DATE OF RESPONSE:
SIGNATURE:	
	168

# APPENDIX M

Counseling Assignment Grid Academic Year Teaching and Coordination LHE as Part of Load

	Counselors - In Load Teaching or Coordination			
	0 LHE	1 LHE	2 LHE	3 LHE
Scheduled Hours	30	30	30	30
Classroom Hours		1	2	3
Prep and Grades		1	2	3
Office Hours		1	1	1
Hours Remaining				
Student Contact	30	27	25	23

-				
	Counselor Coordinators - In Load Teaching			
	0 LHE	1 LHE	2LHE	3 LHE
Scheduled Hours	35	35	35	35
Classroom Hours		1	2	3
Prep and Grades		1	2	3
Office Hours		1	1	1
Hours Remaining				
Coordinating Hours	35	32	30	28

Criteria for Extensive Preparation Laboratory Classes (Article 6.1.4)

Lab Rate = 1.0 Lecture Rate for laboratory classes requiring extensive preparation and student evaluation

Criteria for determining an extensive preparation laboratory class are as follows:

- 1. The laboratory class requires the active continuing presence of the instructor with ongoing involvement in lecturing, demonstrating, or assisting the students;
- 2. The laboratory class requires evaluation of student performance on a regular basis in the same manner as in non-laboratory classes;
- 3. The laboratory class requires extensive instructor and student preparation from text and lecture material prior to and after each laboratory session;
- 4. The laboratory class requires the instructor to ensure that it is related to and correlated with an extensive classroom lecture program and is supplemented with assigned readings in texts;
- 5. The laboratory class requires that instructors be involved with professional development, as in lecture courses, in order to maintain proficiency in the areas covered by the laboratory work;
- 6. The laboratory class is described in the course outline of record which clearly identifies compliance with the five criteria above;
- 7. The laboratory class is comparable to similar labs in other community colleges and four- year institutions in the state of California, by one-to-one course equivalency or by use of laboratory or teaching assistants.

Please see list of Extensive Preparation Laboratory Courses below -

# SAC LABS WITH P1 SCHEDULE TYPE Active as of 5/22/25

	, , , , , ,	
CITE	COLUDE	TITLE
SITE	COURSE	TITLE
SAC SAC	ANTH 101L	Biological Anthropology Laboratory
SAC	ASTR 140	Astronomy Laboratory Fundamentals of Biology Laboratory
SAC	BIOL 109L BIOL 111	Marine Biology
SAC	BIOL 115	Concepts in Biology for Educators
SAC	BIOL 139	Health Microbiology
SAC	BIOL 139	Human Anatomy and Physiology
SAC	BIOL 149 BIOL 191	Biotech A: Basic Skills
SAC	BIOL 191 BIOL 192	Biotech B: Proteins
SAC	BIOL 193	Biotech C: Nucleic Acids
SAC	BIOL 195	Biotech: QC/QA Microbiology
SAC	BIOL 193	Cellular and Molecular Biology
SAC	BIOL 211	Animal Diversity and Ecology
SAC	BIOL 212	Plant Diversity and Evolution
SAC	BIOL 214 BIOL 229	General Microbiology
SAC	BIOL 239	General Human Anatomy
SAC	BIOL 249	Human Physiology
SAC	BIOL 259	
SAC	BIOL 239	Environmental Biology Cell and Molecular Biology
SAC	BIOL 273	Biochemistry and Molecular Biology
SAC	CHEM 109	Chemistry in the Community
SAC	CHEM 109 CHEM 115	Concepts in Physical Sciences for Educators
SAC	CHEM 209	Introductory Chemistry
SAC	CHEM 210	General, Organic and Biochemistry
SAC	CHEM 219	General Chemistry
SAC	CHEM 219H	Honors General Chemistry
SAC	CHEM 229	General Chemistry and Qualitative Analysis
SAC	CHEM 249	Organic Chemistry I
SAC	CHEM 259	Organic Chemistry II
SAC	ENGR 118	Surveying
SAC	ENGR 119	Advanced Plane Surveying
SAC	ENGR 122	Engineering Drawing
SAC	ENGR 125	Engineering Graphics
SAC	ENGR 133	Mechatronics I
SAC	ENGR 134	Mechatronics II
SAC	ENGR 250L	Electric Circuits Laboratory
SAC	ERTH 115	Earth Science for Educators
SAC	GEOG 101L	Introduction to the Natural Environment Laboratory
SAC	GEOL 101L	Dynamic Earth: Introduction to Geology Laboratory
SAC	GEOL 201	The Earth Through Time
SAC	NRN 106A	Health Science Skills Laboratory - First Semester
SAC	NRN 106B	Health Sciences Skills Laboratory - Second Semester
SAC	NRN 106C	Health Sciences Skills Laboratory - First Year
		Refresher
SAC	NRN 171L	Principles of Nursing Practice and Simple Concepts
		Lab
SAC	NRN 172L	Family Health and Illness Concepts Lab
SAC	NRN 206A	Health Sciences Skills Laboratory - Third Semester
SAC	NRN 206B	Health Sciences Skills Laboratory - Fourth Semester
SAC	NRN 206C	Health Sciences Skills Laboratory - Second Year
		Transition
SAC	NRN 271L	Mental Health and Acute Concepts Lab
SAC	NRN 272L	Complex Concepts and Preceptorship Lab
SAC	PHYS 109	Survey of General Physics
SAC	PHYS 210	Principles of Physics I
SAC	PHYS 211	Principles of Physics II
SAC	PHYS 217	Engineering Physics I
SAC	PHYS 227	Engineering Physics II
SAC	PHYS 237	Engineering Physics III
SAC	PHYS 279	College Physics I
SAC	PHYS 289	College Physics II
SAC	PSC 118	Physical Science Survey Laboratory

# SCC LABS WITH P1 SCHEDULE TYPE

	SCC LADS	WITH PT SCHEDULE TIPE
Site	COURSE	TITLE
SCC	ANTH-101L	Physical Anthropology Laboratory
SCC	ASTR-I00L	Astronomy Laboratory (Prev ASTR 140)
SCC	BIOL-109L	Fundamentals of Biology Laboratory
SCC	BIOL-109HL	Honors Fundamental Biology Lab (Added Honors)
SCC	BIOL-139	Health Microbiology
SCC	BIOL-149	Human Anatomy and Physiology
SCC	BIOL-191	Biotech A: Basic Lab Skills
SCC	BIOL-192	Biotech B: Proteins
SCC	BIOL-193	Biotech C: Nucleic Acid
SCC	BIOL-211	Cellular and Molecular Biology
SCC	BIOL-212	Ecology and Animal Diversity
SCC	BIOL-214	Plant Diversity and Evolution
SCC	BIOL-221	Animal Diversity and Evolution
SCC	BIOL-229	General Microbiology
SCC	BIOL-231	Plant Diversity and Ecology
SCC	BIOL-239	General Human Anatomy
SCC	BIOL-249	Human Physiology
SCC	BIOL-259	Environmental Biology
SCC	BIOL-290	Biochemistry and Molecular Bio
SCC	CHEM-100	Introductory (Prev CHEM 209)
SCC	CHEM-200A	General Chemistry A (Prev CHEM 219)
SCC	CHEM-200AH	Honors General Chemistry A (Prev CHEM 219H)
SCC	CHEM-200B	General Chemistry B (Prev CHEM 229)
SCC	CHEM-280A	Organic Chemistry A (Prev CHEM 249)
SCC	CHEM-2808	Organic Chemistry B (Prev CHEM 259)
SCC	ENGR-230	Network Analysis
SCC	ERTH-IOOL	Physical Geology Laboratory (Prev GEOG 101L)
SCC	ERTH-111	Historical Geology (Prev GEOG 201)
SCC	GEOG-101l	Physical Geography laboratory
SCC	PHYS-100	Conceptual Physics (Prev PHYS 109)
SCC	PHYS-150A	Introductory Physics I
SCC	PHYS-1508	Introductory Physics II
SCC	PHYS-250A	Physics for Scientists/Eng I
SCC	PHYS-250B	Physics for Scientists/Eng II
SCC	PHYS-250C	Physics for Scientists/Eng III
SCC	PSC-100	Physical Science



# Distance Education Unit Member Evaluation Packet

This packet is designed to assist you in completing the process of unit member evaluations per FARSCCD contract, Article 8.

# **Distance Education Unit Member Evaluation Criteria**

- A. Title 5, Section 55202 The same standards of course quality shall be applied to any portion of a course conducted through distance education as are applied to in-person classes.
- B. Title 5, Section 55204 In addition to the requirements of section 55002 and any locally established requirements applicable to all courses, district governing boards shall ensure that: Any portion of a course conducted through distance education includes regular and substantive interaction between the instructor(s) and students, (and among students, if described in the course outline of record or distance education addendum), either synchronously or asynchronously, through group or individual meetings, orientation and review sessions, supplemental seminar or study sessions, field trips, library workshops, telephone contact, voice mail, e-mail, or other activities.
- C. "Substantive interaction" means engaging students in teaching, learning, and assessment, consistent with the content under discussion, and also includes at least two of the following:
  - 1. Providing direct instruction;
  - 2. Assessing or providing feedback on a student's coursework;
  - 3. Providing information or responding to questions about the content of a course or competency;
  - 4. Facilitating a group discussion regarding the content of a course or competency; or
  - 5. Other instructional activities approved by the institution's or program's accrediting agency.
- D. Regular interaction between a student and instructor(s) is ensured by, prior to the student's completion of a course or competency:
  - 1. Providing the opportunity for substantive interactions with the student on a predictable and scheduled basis commensurate with the length of time and the amount of content in the course or competency; and
  - 2. Monitoring the student's academic engagement and success and ensuring that an instructor is responsible for promptly and proactively engaging in substantive interaction with the student when needed on the basis of such monitoring, or upon request by the student.
- E. Regular and substantive interaction is an academic and professional matter pursuant to sections 53200 et seq.
- F. For purposes of calculating instructional time in the context of asynchronous distance education, a week of instructional time is any week in which:
  - 1. The institution makes available the instructional materials, other resources, and instructor support necessary for academic engagement and completion of course objectives; and
  - 2. The institution expects enrolled students to perform educational activities demonstrating academic engagement during the week.
- G. Recognizing that a student-centered pedagogy increases student achievement and improves learning outcomes, a well- established policy of regular and substantive interaction (RSI) will be derived from the example methods from each of the three categories listed below, as applicable. The following are meant to assist the reviewer and are not a comprehensive list of RSI, nor do all of these examples need to be present to meet expectation.

# **Faculty Guided Interaction:**

- Faculty-Initiated Announcements.
- Course is designed to ease students into the online environment utilizing instructor made videos, tutorials, and/or a well-developed course information module.
- Design summative and formative assessments that reflect the course outline of record and departmental guidelines.
- Create student engagement opportunities that promote interaction among all course participants.
- Participate regularly in discussion activities and/or provide individual feedback.
- Monitor activity to ensure that students participate and are engaged in course content.
- Provide a specific forum for unstructured student to student interaction.

# **Frequency of Interaction:**

- Declare response time for student questions and/or assignment feedback.
- Maintain an active presence throughout the course.
- Give regular and substantive feedback throughout the course.
- Provided clear expectations to students regarding the frequency and quality of their interactions.
- Specify course policy in the syllabus regarding frequency and timeliness of all contact initiated by the instructor.
- Explain course policy regarding student-initiated contact.
- Clarify important dates, such as assignment and assessment deadlines.

### **Tools for Effective Contact:**

- Course announcements.
- Personalized feedback via speed grader, or discussion boards.
- Discussion Boards (e.g., question and answer forums).
- Collaborative projects (blogs, discussion Boards, peer review, etc.).
- Instructor-created modules/units.
- Lectures and Videos (both instructor created and/or curated).
- Podcasts and webinars (both instructors created or curated).
- Zoom sessions and breakout rooms.
- Virtual office hours.
- Canvas Inbox.
- Pronto, Canvas Chat, etc.
- And other methods, not listed here, as deemed appropriate by the instructor.

### RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

# **Unit Member Observation Report for Online Classes**

Unit Member's Name:	Date:	
(Please print)		(Date of observation)
Unit Member's Employee ID #:	Semester:	
Class/Assignment:	_	
I. Demonstrates professional knowledge and prepares of	effective, current, and accessible course	Check one:
materials:		Outstanding
		Meets expectations
		Needs Improvement*
		Unsatisfactory*
II. Applies appropriate instructional design methods as	nd RSI practices:	Check one:
		Outstanding
		Meets expectations
		Needs Improvement*
		Unsatisfactory*
III. Communicates effectively and provides regular, tin	nely feedback:	Check one:
		Outstanding
		Meets expectations
		Needs Improvement*
		Unsatisfactory*
IV. Regular and Substantive Interaction (RSI) Checklis		Check one:
Instructor-initiated contact is frequent and predi Substantive feedback is timely and ongoing	ctable	Outstanding
Discussion forums are monitored and guided by		Meets expectations
Virtual office hours or synchronous sessions are interactions are evident	offered, or robust asynchronous	Needs Improvement*
Multimodal content delivery is present (e.g., vid slides)	eo lectures, screencasts, narrated	Unsatisfactory*
V. Professional Responsibilities (for non-contract unit	members):	Check one:
		Outstanding
		Meets expectations
		Needs Improvement*
		Unsatisfactory*

<sup>\*</sup>Does not meet Expectations: Comments regarding performance that does not meet expectations should include specific citations of weakness. Specific recommendations for improvement should be included in the FPIP.

Strengths Observed (Narrative Required):	
Suggestions for Improvement (Narrative Required):	
Evaluator (print name):	Date:
Signature:	
Unit Member (print name):	Date:
Signature:	
Administrator (print name):	Date:
Signature:	

<u>Note:</u> Per Article 8.3.E, my signature indicates that I have read this report but does not necessarily indicate that I agree with it. Per Article 8.4.1.A.14 I understand that I must respond in writing within 15 working days in order for the response to become part of the official evaluation.



# Non-contract (Part-time) Unit Member Evaluation Packet

This packet is designed to assist you in completing the process of unit member evaluations per FARSCCD contract, Article 8 - Section 8.7 which primarily address *non-contract* (part-time) unit member evaluation procedures.

# Non-contract Unit Members (Part-time) Evaluation Instructional/Worksite Observation Criteria

Depending on the unit member role there are 2 forms to select from included in this packet:

- 1. Unit member : Instructional Assignments
  - a. Use the classroom observation report for on campus classes.
  - b. Use the DE Evaluation for online/hybrid classes.
- 2. Unit member: Non-Instructional Assignments (counselors, coordinators, librarians, health services and DSPS unit member)
  - a. Use the worksite observation report

The following criteria are provided to assist the evaluator in the preparation of the observation report. Effective performance may include, but is not limited to, the following:

# Currency and Depth of Knowledge

- Provides instruction consistent with the Course Outline of Record.
- Creates an environment conducive to discussion, analysis, and critical thinking

# Methods and Techniques of Instruction/Responsiveness to Students

- Provides organized and effective delivery of instruction.
- Remains courteous and approachable by students.
- Stimulates student participation.
- Engages with students and encourages all to respect the opinions of others.
- Shows enthusiasm for the subject matter.
- Uses effective motivation to create desire in students to learn the subject/skill(s).
- Employs a variety of instructional materials.
- Makes effective use of teaching aids and materials, including visual, audio and various modalities.
- Demonstrates respect for students in general, creating a learning environment that is conducive to learning, setting up an atmosphere of trust and sensitivity.
- Evidence of understanding of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility (DEIA) that enhances the educational experience for students.

### **Organization Skills**

- Plans for and is well prepared to teach.
- Observes appropriate safety protocols.
- Manages student conduct to avoid disruption.
- Arrives on time and holds class for the assigned time.
- Provides sufficient time for responses to and from students.
- Utilizes group/individual activities that contribute to learning.

# Relevance of Laboratory to Class Objectives: Safety of Students and Aides

- Maintains a safe learning environment.
- Aligns student laboratory assignments to the Course Outline of Record.

# Professional Responsibilities/Professionalism and Civility – to be completed by the administrative

# supervisor

- Submits required materials (course syllabi, rosters, grades) in a timely manner
- Assesses effectiveness of student learning
- Participates in flex and other professional responsibilities as required
- Treats colleagues and students with respect and complies with the district civility code.

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

# Non-contract Unit member *(Part-time)* Evaluation Instructional Observation Report

Name:	Date:	
Name:(Please print unit member member's name)	(Date of observation)	
Unit Member's Employee ID #:	Site:	_
Class		
Class: (Include class number & title)		_
I. Currency and Depth of Knowledge:	Check one:	
	Outstanding	
	Meets expectations	
	Needs Improvement*	
	Unsatisfactory*	
II. Methods and Techniques of Instruction/Responsiveness to Stud	lents: <u>Check one:</u> Outstanding	
	Meets expectations	
	Needs Improvement*	
	Unsatisfactory*	
III. Organizational Skills:	Check one:	
	Outstanding	
	Meets expectations	
	Needs Improvement*	
	Unsatisfactory*	
IV. Relevance of Laboratory to Class Objectives/Safety of Student	<del></del>	
	Outstanding	
	Meets expectations	
	Needs Improvement*	
	Unsatisfactory*	
V. Professional Responsibilities and/or Professionalism and Civilit	ty: (to be completed by Check one:	
the administrative supervisor)	Outstanding	
	Meets expectations	
	Needs Improvement*	
	Unsatisfactory*	
	Olisatisfactory	

* Does not meet Expectations: Comments regarding performance that does not meet expectate citations of weakness. Specific recommendations for improvement should be included in the F	
Strengths Observed (Narrative Required):	
Suggestions for Improvement (Narrative Required):	
Observer (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Dean (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Unit Member (please print):	Date:
Signature:	_
<u>Note:</u> Per Article 8.3.E, my signature indicates that I have read this report but does not necessarily indicate that I respond in writing within 15 working days in order for the response to become part of the official evaluation.	agree with it. I understand that I mus

Original – Return to Supervising Administrator (Submit to Human Resources Department)

Human Resources Revised May 2025

## Non-contract Unit member (*Part-time*) Evaluation Worksite Observation Report

Name:	Date:	
Name:(Please print unit member member's name)		(Date of observation)
Unit member Member's Employee ID #:	Site:	
Worksite:		
I. Currency and Depth of Knowledge:		neck one:
j i		Outstanding
		Meets expectations
		Needs Improvement*
		Unsatisfactory*
II. Methods of Student Support Practices /Responsiveness to Students:	Che	eck one:
		Outstanding
		Meets expectations
		Needs Improvement*
		Unsatisfactory*
III. Organizational Skills:	Ch	eck one:
		Outstanding
		Meets expectations
		Needs Improvement*
		Unsatisfactory*
IV. Professionalism and Civility:	Ch	eck one:
		Outstanding
		Meets expectations
		Needs Improvement*
		Unsatisfactory*
V. Professional Responsibilities: (to be completed by the administrative supervisor)	<u>Ch</u>	eck one:
		Outstanding
		Meets expectations
		Needs Improvement*
		Unsatisfactory*

* Does not meet Expectations: Comments regarding performa citations of weakness. Specific recommendations for improvem	
Strengths Observed (Narrative Required):	
Suggestions for Improvement (Narrative Required):	
Observer (please print):	Date:
Obbet ver (preuße print).	
Signature:	
Dean (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Unit Member (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Note: Per Article 8.3.E, my signature indicates that I have read this report be must respond in writing within 15 working days in order for the response to	out does not necessarily indicate that I agree with it. I understand that I
Original – Return to Supervising Administrator (Submit to Human Resources	s Department)



# Contract (Probationary) Tenure Review Packet

This packet is designed to assist you in completing the process of unit member evaluations per Article 8 of the FARSCCD contract.

Section 8.4 addresses contract (probationary) unit member evaluation procedures.

#### Contract (Probationary) Evaluation/Tenure Review Process

#### **Checklist of materials to be forwarded to College Vice-Presidents:**

1. Self-Evaluation

2.	Student Reviews: Numerical Data and Student Comments
3.	Instructional/Worksite Observation Forms by:
	a. Supervising Administrator
	b. Two Tenured Faculty Peers
4.	Colleague Surveys: Numerical Data and typed Written Comments
5.	Summary Evaluation Report
6.	Administrative Recommendation
7.	Faculty Performance Improvement Plan (if necessary)

# CONTRACT (PROBATIONARY) TENURE REVIEW ACTIVITY CHECKLIST

1.	Notification to unit	member of Evaluation	on and Timeline	
	Yes	No	Date:	
2.	Initial Meeting with	Peer Evaluators		
	Yes	No	Date:	
3.	Notification to unit	member of Classroon	n/Worksite Observation	
	Yes	No	Date:	
4.	Receipt of Instruction	onal/Worksite Evalua	tion by Peers	
	Yes	No	Date:	
5.	<b>Completion of Instr</b>	uctional/Worksite Ev	aluation by immediate supervisor	
	Yes	No	Date:	
6.	6. Completion of Student Reviews			
	Yes	No	Date:	
7.	<b>Completion of Colle</b>	ague Surveys		
	Yes	No	Date:	
8.	Receipt of Self-Eval	uation from Unit Me	mber	
	Yes	No	Date:	
9.	Meeting with Peer B	Evaluators to review a	all evaluation materials	
	Yes	No	Date:	
10. Finalization of Summary Evaluation Report (includes FPIP – if applicable)				
	Yes	No	Date:	
11.	11. Meeting with unit member to review all evaluation materials			
	Ves	No	Date:	

#### **Instructional/Worksite Observation Criteria**

Depending on the unit member role there are 2 forms to select from included in this packet:

- 1. Unit Member: Instructional Assignments
  - a. Use the instructional observation report for on campus classes.
  - b. Use the Distance Education Evaluation for online/hybrid classes.
- 2. Unit Member: Non-Instructional Assignments (counselors, coordinators, librarians, health services and DSPS faculty)
  - a. Use the worksite observation report

Per Article 8.3.3, The following criteria are provided to assist the evaluator in the preparation of the observation report. Effective performance may include, but is not limited to, the following:

#### Currency and Depth of Knowledge

- Provides instruction consistent with the Course Outline of Record (COR).
- Creates an environment conducive to discussion, analysis, and critical thinking.

#### Methods and Techniques of Instruction/Responsiveness to Students and/or Professionalism and Civility

- Provides organized and effective delivery of instruction.
- Remains courteous to and approachable by students.
- Stimulates student participation.
- Engages with students and encourages all to respect the opinions of others.
- Shows enthusiasm for the subject matter.
- Uses effective motivation to create desire in students to learn the subject/skill(s).
- Employs a variety of instructional materials.
- Makes effective use of teaching aids and materials, including visual, audio and various modalities.
- Demonstrates respect for students in general, creating a learning environment that is conducive to learning, setting an atmosphere of trust and sensitivity.
- Evidence of understanding of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility (DEIA) that enhances the educational experience for students.

#### Organization Skills

- Plans for and is well prepared to teach.
- Observes appropriate safety protocols.
- Manages student conduct to avoid disruption.
- Arrives on time and holds class for the assigned time.
- Provides sufficient time for responses to and from students.
- Utilizes group/individual activities that contribute to learning.

#### Relevance of Laboratory to Class Objectives: Safety of Students and Aides

- Maintains a safe learning environment.
- Aligns student laboratory assignments to the Course Outline of Record.

#### Contract (Probationary) Unit Member Self-Evaluation Report

Name:	Unit member's name – please print)  Employee ID #			
(Unit member	(Unit member's name – please print) Dept:		C:4	
Current Probationary Status (Ch	eck one): Contract I	Contract II	Contract III A B	
be included in the self-evaluation other pertinent document. The Self-Evaluation Report  • Student learning out  • Campus involvement  • Examples of actions Accessibility (DEIA)  • Professional development	nation portfolio along wints (publications, awards should describe your extcomes.  In and institutional services have you taken to improve the education of the	th class materials (s, verification of staperience with:  ce.  rove understanding ional experience for		etc.)
Signature:			Date:	
(include this signed document in th	e portfolio)			

# Contract (*Probationary*) Unit Member Instructional Observation Report

Name:	Employee ID #:		
Name: (Unit member's name – please print)			
Class:(Include class number & title)	Date: _	(Date of obser	
(Include class number & title)		(Date of obser	vation)
Probationary Status (Check one): Contract I Contract II	Contract III	A B	
I. Currency and Depth of Knowledge:			<u>Check one:</u>
			Outstanding
			Meets expectations
			Needs Improvement*
			Unsatisfactory*
II. Methods and Techniques of Instruction/Responsiveness to Studen Civility:	its and/or Profession	nalism and	Check one:
			Outstanding
			Meets expectations
			Needs Improvement*
			Unsatisfactory*
III. Organizational Skills:			Check one:
			Outstanding
			Meets expectations
			Needs Improvement*
			Unsatisfactory*
IV. Relevance of Laboratory to Class Objectives/Safety of Students a	and Aides (if application	able)	Check one:
			Outstanding
			Meets expectations
			Needs Improvement*
			Unsatisfactory*
*Does not meet Expectations: Comments regarding performance that of weakness. Specific recommendations for improvement should be in			d include specific citations
Strengths Observed (Narrative Required):	Clauca in inc 1 1 11 .	•	

Suggestions for Improvement (Narrative Required):	
Observer (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Unit Member (please print):	Date:
Signature:	

<u>Note:</u> Per Article 8.3.E, my signature indicates that I have read this report but does not necessarily indicate that I agree with it. Per Article 8.4.A.14, I understand that I must respond in writing within 15 working days in order for the response to become part of the official evaluation.

#### Contract (Probationary) Unit Member Worksite Observation Report

Name:(Unit member's name – please print)		Employee ID #:	
Worksite:		Date:(Date of observation	<i>n)</i>
Probationary Status (Check one): Contract I	Contract II	Contract III A	_ B
I. Currency and Depth of Knowledge:			Check one:  Outstanding  Meets expectations  Needs Improvement*  Unsatisfactory*
II. Methods of Student Support Practices /Responsiv	veness to Students:		Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
III. Organizational Skills:			Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
IV. Professionalism and Civility:			Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
*Comments regarding performance that does not more recommendations for improvement should be included.  Strengths Observed (Narrative Required):		uld include specific citat	tions of weakness. Specific

Suggestions for Improvement (Narrative Required):	
Observer (please print):	Date:
Signature:	<u> </u>
Unit Member (please print):	Date:
Signature:	

<u>Note:</u> Per Article 8.3.E, my signature indicates that I have read this report but does not necessarily indicate that I agree with it. Per Article 8.4.B.14 I understand that I must respond in writing within 15 working days in order for the response to become part of the official evaluation.

## Contract (*Probationary*) Unit Member Summary Evaluation Report

Per Article 8.4.1.B.10 the Probationary Tenure Review Committee (PTRC) will meet to review all of the evaluation materials and will make their recommendation. Based on the PTRC meeting, the Supervising Administrator will prepare this form, which summarizes the results of all evaluation activities and PTRC observations. This document will include the administrative summary and recommendation. The peer evaluators will have an opportunity to review and sign this form for accuracy prior to submission to the probationary faculty member.

Name: Emplo	oyee ID #
(Unit member's name – please print)  Discipline: Dept:	Site:
Current Probationary Status (Check one): Contract I Contract II Contract III A	В
I. Classroom/Worksite Performance (attached Classroom/Worksite Observations) e.g., instructional faculty, program coordinator, counselor, librarian, coach:	Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
II. Respect for students and colleagues:	Check one:  Outstanding  Meets expectations  Needs Improvement*  Unsatisfactory*
III. Professional growth, responsibilities, and administrative summary:	Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*

<sup>\*</sup>Comments regarding performance that does not meet expectations should include specific citations of weakness. Specific recommendations for improvement should be included in the FPIP.

Recommendation (Pleas	Recommendation (Please check <u>only</u> one):				
Current Contract I	Recommend for Contract II	Tenure (if applicable)	Not Recommended for Rehire		
Current Contract II	Recommend for Contract IIIA	Tenure (if applicable)	Not Recommended for Rehire		
For Contract III A		Tenure (if applicable)			
For Contract III B		Tenure (if applicable)	Not Recommended for Rehire		
	nt):		Date:		
Signature:					
Peer Evaluator (please pr	int):		Date:		
Signature:					
Peer Evaluator (please pr	int):		Date:		
Signature:					
Unit Member (please prin	nt):		Date:		
Signature:					

<u>Note:</u> Per Article 8 .3.E, my signature indicates that I have read this report but does not necessarily indicate that I agree with it. Per Article 8.4.1.A.14 & 8.4.1.B.14, I understand that I must respond in writing within 15 working days in order for the response to become part of the official evaluation.

# Administrative Recommendation Contract (*Probationary*) Unit Member (*Confidential*)

	Date:
Unit member's name – please print)	(Of Institutional Tenure Review)
Employee ID #:	
FARSCCD Member (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Academic Senate Member (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Vice President's Recommendation	
Recommendation (Please check only one)	
Contract III Contract III Tenure	
Not Recommended for Rehire	
Vice President (please print):	Date:
Vice President (please print):  Signature:	
Signature:	
Signature:  College President's Recommendation	
Signature:  College President's Recommendation  (Must be submitted to Human Resources by Febru	
College President's Recommendation  (Must be submitted to Human Resources by Febru  Recommendation (Please check only one)	
College President's Recommendation  (Must be submitted to Human Resources by Febru  Recommendation (Please check only one)  Contract II Contract III Tenure	uary 15 <sup>th</sup> )

#### 4. . 4 - 4 . .

institutional Tenure R	eview (IIK) Form
Faculty Member/Evaluee:	ID#
Please print faculty member's name	9
FARSCCD and Academic Senate Members:	
<ul> <li>The role of FARSCCD is to ensure that process has been according to the Senate is to ensure that process has been protocols</li> </ul>	
Academic Senate Protocols (10+1) followed: Yes No If r	not, please explain and specify.
Academic Senate Representative (please print):	
Signature:	
Article 8 followed: Yes No If not, please explain and spe	cify.
FARSCOD Representative (please print):	
FARSCCD Representative (please print):	
Signature:	Date:
Received by Vice President:	
Signature:	Date of Review:
upproved 09/26/2018	196



# Tenured Unit Member Evaluation Packet

(Includes Non-Teaching Unit Member, Coordinators, Counselors, Librarians, and Health Service Staff)

This packet is designed to assist you in completing the process of unit member evaluations per FARSCCD contract, Article 8. Section 8.5 and thereafter primarily address the evaluation of tenured unit members.

#### **Classroom/Worksite Observation Criteria**

Depending on the unit member role, there are 3 forms to select from included in this packet:

- 1. Unit Member: Instructional Assignments
  - a. Use the instructional observation report for on campus classes.
  - b. Use the DE Evaluation for online/hybrid classes.
- 2. Unit Member: Non-Instructional Assignments (counselors, coordinators, librarians, health services and DSPS unit members)
  - a. Use the worksite observation report
- 3. Colleague Consultation Memo
  - a. Use the colleague consultation memo if Option 2 or Option 3 are selected

Per Article 8.3.3, The following criteria are provided to assist the evaluator in the preparation of the observation report. Effective performance may include, but is not limited to, the following:

#### Currency and Depth of Knowledge

- Provides instruction consistent with the Course Outline of Record.
- Creates an environment conducive to discussion, analysis, and critical thinking.

#### Methods and Techniques of Instruction/Responsiveness to Students

- Provides organized and effective delivery of instruction.
- Remains courteous to and approachable by students.
- Stimulates student participation.
- Engages with students and encourages all to respect the opinions of others.
- Shows enthusiasm for the subject matter.
- Uses effective motivation to create desire in students to learn the subject/skill(s).
- Employs a variety of instructional materials.
- Makes effective use of teaching aids and materials, including visual, audio and various modalities.
- Demonstrates respect for students in general, creating a learning environment that is conducive to learning, setting up an atmosphere of trust and sensitivity.
- Evidence of understanding of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility (DEIA) that enhances the educational experience for students.

#### **Organization Skills**

- Plans for and is well prepared to teach.
- Observes appropriate safety protocols.
- Manages student conduct to avoid disruption.
- Arrives on time and holds class for the assigned time.
- Provides sufficient time for responses to and from students.
- Utilizes group/individual activities that contribute to learning.

#### Relevance of Laboratory to Class Objectives: Safety of Students and Aides

- Maintains a safe learning environment.
- Aligns student laboratory assignments to the Course Outline of Record.

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT Tenured Unit Member Self-Evaluation Report

Name:	Employee ID #	
	(Unit member member's name – please print)	
Discipline :	Dept:	Site:
The Self-Evaluation included in the self-pertinent document. The Self-Evaluation  • Student lea  • Campus inv  • Examples of Accessibility  • Professionary  • Other depart	n should address perceived strengths and areas	s for improvement. This document shall be s (sample syllabi, assignments, etc.) and other evelopment activities, etc.).  a:  adding of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and acce for students.
Signature		Data
Signature:		Date:

 $\underline{\textbf{Note:}} \ \ \textit{Article 8 Section 8.4.1.A.7 of FARSCCD contract requires that the Self-Evaluation Report be completed the 12$^{th}$ week of the semester.}$ 

Original – Return to Supervising Administrator

#### **Tenured Unit Member Instructional Observation Report**

Unit Member's Name:	Date:	(Date of observation)
(please print) Unit Member's Employee ID #:	Site:	(Date of observation)
Class:(include class number & title)		
(include class number & title)		
I. Currency and Depth of Knowledge:		Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
II. Methods and Techniques of Instruction/Responsiveness to Students and/or Professionalism and Civility:		Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
III. Organizational Skills:		Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
IV. Relevance of Laboratory to Class Objectives/Safety of Students and Aides (applicable)	(if	Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
*Does not meet Expectations: Comments regarding performance that does not meet expectations should inc Specific recommendations for improvement should be included in the FPIP.  Strengths Observed (Narrative Required):	clude specij	fic citations of weakness.

Suggestions for Improvement (Na	arrative Required):		
Observer (please print):		Date:	
Signature:			
Unit member (please print):		Date:	
Signature:			
	es that I have read this report but does not nec ithin 15 working days in order for the response	essarily indicate that I agree with it. Per Article 8. to become part of the official evaluation.	5.2.12
Original – Unit member	Copy – Supervisor (Submit to Hi	man Resources)	

Human Resources

#### **Tenured Unit Member Worksite Observation Report**

Unit Member's Name: Dat (please print)	(Date of observation)
	(Date of observation)
Worksite: (include class number & title)	·
I. Currency and Depth of Knowledge:	Check one:
	Outstanding  Meets expectations
	Needs Improvement*
	Unsatisfactory*
II. Methods of Student Support Practices /Responsiveness to Students:	Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
III. Organizational Skills:	Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
IV. Professionalism and Civility	Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
*Comments regarding performance that does not meet expectations should include specific citations of weakness. improvement should be included in the FPIP.	Specific recommendations for
Strengths Observed (Narrative Required):	

Human Resources Revised May 2025

Suggestions for Improvement (Narrative R	equired):
Observer (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Unit Member (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
	e read this report but does not necessarily indicate that I agree with it. Per Article 8.5.2.12 king days in order for the response to become part of the official evaluation.
Original – Unit member	Copy – Supervisor (Submit to Human Resources)

Human Resources Revised May 2025 203

#### RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT **Colleague Consultation Memo**

Name:		Employee ID #		
(Unit	member's name – please print			
Discipline :	Dept:	Site:		
document should address areas	, textbooks, course overviews, handou	area of responsibility including but not		
Signature:	e print):			
ignature:				

<u>Note:</u> Per Article 8.3.E, my signature indicates that I have read this report but does not necessarily indicate that I agree with it. Per Article 8.5.2.12 & 8.5.3.12 I understand that I must respond in writing within 15 working days in order for the response to become part of the official evaluation.

204

#### **Tenured Unit Member**

#### **Summary Evaluation Report**

Per Article 8.8.1, the Supervising Administrator will meet with the unit member peer evaluators to review all of the evaluation materials. At this meeting, the peer evaluators will make their recommendations to the administrator. The supervising administrator will prepare this form, which summarizes the results of all evaluation activities. The peer evaluators will have an opportunity to review this form for accuracy and signature prior to submission to the evaluee.

Name:	<b>Employee ID #</b>
(Unit member's name – please print)  Discipline: Dept:	Site:
I. Classroom/Worksite Performance (attached Classroom/Worksite Obser e.g., instructional unit member, program coordinator, counselor, librarian,	
II. Respect for students and colleagues:	Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*
III. Professional growth and responsibilities, and administrative summary	Check one: Outstanding Meets expectations Needs Improvement* Unsatisfactory*

<sup>\*</sup>Comments regarding performance that does not meet expectations should include specific citations of weakness. Specific recommendations for improvement should be included in the FPIP.

#### Recommendation (Check if applicable) Special Evaluation Recommended

Administrator (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Colleague (please print):	Date:
Signature:	
Unit Member (please print):	Date:
Signature:	

<u>Note:</u> Per Article 8.3.E, my signature indicates that I have read this report but does not necessarily indicate that I agree with it. I understand that I must respond in writing within 15 working days in order for the response to become part of the official evaluation.

Human Resources

# RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT Supplemental pages for form:

Name:Employee ID #		Employee ID #	
Discipline :	Dept:	Site:	
lass: (if applicable):		Page of	
	(Include class # and title)	1 agc 01	
		<b></b>	
Signature:	nt as part of the evaluation packet)	Date:	

#### **Faculty Performance Improvement Plan**

Name:Employee ID # _			ployee ID #		
	Cipline: Dept:		Site:	Site:	
Complete prior to the initial meeting wi	th the unit member.	it member.		ow-up meeting.	
Recommended Area of Improvement	OBJECTIVES	TIMELINE	EVALUATION DATE	FULFILLED	
1.				Yes	
				No	
2.				Yes	
				No	
3.				Yes	
				No	
4.				Yes	
				No	
INITIAL CONCLUSION/SUGGE	ESTIONS	,		,	
SIGNATURES upon Receipt Supe	ervising				
Dean/Administrator:		Signature		Date:	
NTRC/PTRC/TRC Faculty Co-chain	::	Signature		Date:	
Unit Member:		Signature		Date:	

#### FOLLOW-UP CONCLUSION/SUGGESTIONS

#### **SIGNATURES** upon Completion

Unit Member: Signature Date:

NTRC/PTRC/TRC Faculty Co-chair: Signature Date:

Supervising Dean/Administrator: Signature Date: